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 ASSEMBLYMAN JAY WEBBER (Co-Chair):  Good 

afternoon.  My name is Jay Webber; I am the co-chair of the 2011 

Apportionment Commission.  My fellow Co-Chair, Assemblyman John 

Wisniewski, is to my right.   

 I want to welcome you to the fourth public hearing of the 2011 

Apportionment Commission. 

 The first order of business is to call the roll.  Our Secretary, 

Frank Parisi, from the Office of Legislative Services, serves as our Secretary, 

and he’ll call the roll. 

 MR. PARISI (Secretary):  Senator Sarlo. 

 SENATOR SARLO:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Bill Palatucci. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Senator O’Toole. 

 SENATOR O’TOOLE:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Speaker Oliver. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  George Gilmore.  

 MR. GILMORE:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Assemblyman Cryan. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Vice Chair Nilsa Cruz-Perez. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Here. 
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 MR. PARISI:  Vice Chair Irene Kim Asbury. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Co-Chairman John S. Wisniewski. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN JOHN S. WISNIEWSKI (Co-Chair):  

Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  Chairman Jay Webber. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Here. 

 MR. PARISI:  We have a quorum. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 Again, I’d like to thank you for coming out today.  There are a 

lot of things you could do on your Sunday afternoon, but that you want to 

participate and/or observe a process that comes around once a decade says a 

lot about our democracy, and a lot about you.  So thank you very much for 

coming. 

 Assemblyman Wisniewski and I alternate chairing the hearings, 

and today I have the privilege of chairing this hearing. 

 I want to, first, thank our hosts, Hudson County Community 

College and Mayor Healy, for providing us this terrific venue to have our 

session. 

 The Apportionment Commission, as many of you know, meets 

once a decade.  The Federally mandated census was completed last year; 

and after the census, each decade, New Jersey is obliged to redraw the 40 

legislative districts that elect our State Assemblymen and our State Senators 

who represent us in Trenton.  The census is complete, and the 10 members 
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of the Commission now have the job of redrawing the legislative map for 

the next decade. 

 The Commission was selected, pursuant to the New Jersey 

State Constitution, by our respective party chairs -- the Republican State 

Committee and the Democrat State Committee.  If the 10 members of the 

Commission cannot agree on a map by the constitutionally mandated 

deadline, which is March 5-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Fifth. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  --or so -- we’ll hash that out -- 

then an 11th member is appointed by the Chief Justice of the New Jersey 

State Supreme Court, Stuart Rabner. 

 The Commission has 30 days from the time that the State 

receives the final census numbers from the Federal government.  The State 

received those numbers on February 3; and so 30 days from there is about 

March 5.   If we cannot come to an agreement before March 5, Chief Justice 

Rabner will appoint an 11th member to break a tie, and then the 

Commission is constituted--  The 11 members will have 30 days from the 

day that the 11th member joins the Commission -- or about April 4 -- to 

come to a map and produce a map that will be used for the 2011 elections, 

and then every State legislative election for the next decade. 

 We are constrained by several things in our work redrawing the 

map -- the first is the United States Constitution.  We must respect the 

principle enshrined in the United States Constitution of one person, one 

vote; which means that each of the legislative districts that we draw has to 

be roughly equal in population -- as close to equal as we can get it.  For the 
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next decade, the proper number -- population -- for each legislative district 

is about 220,000 residents.  So when we draw that map we have to keep 

that 220,000 number in mind, and the Federal Constitution requires that 

we try to --  we  get as close as possible to that. 

 We have other Federal requirements -- especially the Federal 

Voting Rights Act -- that governs our work, and State constitutional 

requirements regarding keeping municipalities whole with the exception of 

municipalities that are too large, or larger than 220,000.  In those instances, 

those municipalities should be split only so many times as they need to be 

to meet the constitutional and Federal Voting Rights Act requirements. 

 We know that the map that we are currently under will change.  

The map will change because the law that governs the map has changed.  

The Federal Constitution has been interpreted over the last decade to 

clarify what one person, one vote means.  The Federal Voting Rights Act 

has been interpreted and, more specifically, interpreted over the last decade.  

And State constitutional law has also changed over the last decade, and that 

will impact how we draw the map, going forward.  That law has changed 

substantially, so we would expect the map to change substantially. 

 The State of New Jersey has also witnessed a change in 

demographics, and we have to respect the changes in demographics.  We 

know that we’ve grown slightly as a state; but different regions of the state 

have grown more quickly than others.  Some regions of the state have 

shrunk in terms of population.  We also know that the racial and ethnic 

composition of the state has changed significantly over the 10 years, and so 
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the map will have to reflect all of those changes in demographics and the 

law.  

 What we are doing today is actually the fourth public hearing 

that we will have had.  And I think it’s a credit to all 10 members of the 

Commission that this is the most open Commission that has been 

constituted since the State Constitution was changed to create this 

Commission about 40 years ago.  There’s an unprecedented level of public 

access to this process: four public hearings so far -- we hope we have more.  

We do expect to have additional public hearings when the 11th member -- 

if the 11th member comes on after the beginning of March.  That level of 

public input has been impassioned and substantive -- rooms packed like this 

in Camden, Toms River, and Newark.  We appreciate your coming out and 

we have need of your input.  This is the only chance that people in New 

Jersey get to tell us what you think the map should look like for the next 

decade.  And so as those changes that we draw into the map come to 

fruition, we need your help telling us which communities are underserved, 

underrepresented; which communities have interests that we need to keep 

in mind going forward. 

 So we thank you for that.  We also want to direct your 

attention to the Apportionment Commission’s website -- 

apportionmentcommission.org -- a place where you can find the census data 

that we will be using to draw the maps.  You can also find the current 

legislative map and, perhaps most importantly, the website provides a 

function to give us input in a written form via the web.  As Assemblyman 

Wisniewski said in Newark, when the Commission breaks today and goes 
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home, you will have missed this chance, or had the chance and used it, to 

testify.  When you go home, you log onto your computer, you have another 

chance to tell us what you think and what’s important about this process.  

And we welcome your input through that medium as well. 

 A couple of housekeeping items for today:  If you haven’t 

already, and you would like to testify, please fill out a slip.  They are 

available at the door, and if you don’t fill out a slip telling us that you want 

to testify, we won’t call your name because we won’t know you want to 

participate.  We’d love your participation, but please fill out the form. 

 We are going to ask that witnesses keep their comments to five 

minutes or shorter.  We have in excess of 50 witnesses signed up, and we 

want to hear from everybody.  We also want it to be an efficient process, so 

please keep your comments to about five minutes.  We have an egg timer 

that has a very pleasant, gentle, but firm ring.  (laughter)  And if you hear 

that, and you haven’t finished, please wrap up your comments 

expeditiously. 

 We are here to talk about redistricting.  I know this is an 

opportunity and a public forum, and people have a lot of things to say to 

their elected representatives and people in politics; but if you could keep 

your comments focused on the Apportionment Commission’s core mission, 

that would be appreciated.  If you have written testimony to submit, we’ll 

take it here, just as much as we’ll take it over the website.  If you do, please 

give it to Mr. Parisi or at the front desk and we’ll make it part of the official 

record. 
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 If -- and we’ve seen this before -- if other witnesses have said 

what you’re going to say and you want to associate yourself with those 

comments, we welcome you to shortcut your testimony and associate 

yourself with those comments.  Certainly everyone has a right to speak; 

everyone has a right to get up for five minutes and speak on the subject.  

But if you can make it a little more efficient for everybody and make sure 

that everybody gets an opportunity to testify by associating yourself with 

comments from others, please do that. 

 And the way this will work is I will call a witness, and then I 

will call the next two in order so that you’re prepared and ready to come up.  

And if we can keep the flow going, it will assist us.  I think--  We had a 

marathon session in Newark that went very well; this one might be a little 

longer than that one, and so about halfway thorough this session we might 

adjourn for a brief 10-minute intermission.  But we’ll be sure to flash the 

lights for you before you come back.  In any event, we do want to make for 

an expeditious day, and a good day.  We’re looking forward to hearing from 

you. 

 I know that the Assemblyman is prepared to make just a couple 

of comments, and I’ll turn the floor over to Assemblyman Wisniewski. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Thank you, Chairman 

Webber. 

 Ladies and gentlemen, good afternoon.  And let me thank you, 

first of all, and echo the comments of Chairman Webber.  Thank you for 

being here to participate in this public hearing on legislative 

reapportionment.  This is a process that is rare -- it comes once a decade -- 
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but it has consequences that last for the entire decade about who represents 

us in the Legislature.  And so your input is sought by the 10 of us, and we 

are here to listen.  That’s our job today: to listen to what you have to say.  

We may occasionally ask questions at the end of your prepared remarks, 

but we are here to listen to what you have to say because you come from a 

variety of areas, you have a variety of issues that you wish to address.  It is 

important for us, as a Commission, to listen to them, to digest them, to 

consider them in our deliberations.   

 But it’s also important to understand that the map making that 

we will ultimately engage in is map making that is in part governed by the 

things here today, but fundamentally governed by the United State 

Constitution and the series of case laws that have interpreted not only the 

constitutional requirement of one person, one vote; but that have 

interpreted the Voting Rights Act and a variety of other laws, both in this 

State and on a Federal level.  

 And so we have a very complicated set of rules under which we 

must ultimately prepare our map that fairly represents the 40 legislative 

districts in the State of New Jersey.  And just to, again, echo some prior 

comments:  We are very interested in what you have to say, but if it’s been 

said before, we don’t mind you coming up and associating yourself.  But 

certainly understand, with 50 people who have signed up to testify, the 

more expedient we can make the process, the more opportunity there is for 

everyone in the room to have an opportunity to have their voices heard. 

 I want to thank Mayor Healy; the Hudson County Community 

College; the County of Hudson; and our staff, Mr. Parisi, and the staff from 
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the Office of Legislative Services who has been staffing all of these hearings 

and preparing the transcripts that are available online.   You can go online 

and see what has been said before today, understand the points of view that 

were made in Camden, in Toms River, and in Newark.  And what happens 

here today will ultimately find its way online as well.  And you will continue 

to have the ability to submit written comments, submit documents on what 

you think we should be considering and how you think we should be acting 

as we move forward in this process of preparing a map for the next decade.  

 With that, I look forward to your testimony.  I know, 

Chairman, my Vice Chair has opening remarks she’d like to make. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Very brief. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblywoman Nilsa Cruz-

Perez. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Mr. Chairman, thank you.  I’m just going 

to be very brief. 

 I just want to say good morning -- muy buenos dias.  Thank 

you to the members of the public who have come here to testify and express 

your opinion in this very important process.  We have made some progress 

as minorities in the Legislature, but much, much, much work has to be 

done.  We just have to be careful so that we don’t pit one racial group 

against another.   

 New Jersey has grown, and we have to grow together -- not 

grow apart.  Mr. Chairman, I look forward to working with this 

Commission to draw a fair, constitutional, and forward-looking map. 

 Thank you. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 I would recognize Vice Chair for the Republican delegation, 

Jersey City resident Irene Kim Asbury. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you, Chairman, and thank you 

Chairman; thank you, Vice Chair Cruz-Perez, for giving us all some 

guidance as we go into this process.   

 And I’m glad you brought to our attention the changes -- that 

New Jersey’s minority communities have grown in the last decade.  

Hispanics and Asian-American populations have really increased 

considerably, while the African-American population has increased by 

almost 14 percent.  This means, first, that minorities are a presence in New 

Jersey, and they should be given the opportunity to represent their 

communities at these public hearings.   

 Second, the old legislative map drawn 10 years ago must be 

adjusted to reflect these changes.  Speaking as someone who lives in one of 

the most diverse areas in the country, I’m looking forward to this open 

process -- as all the Commissioners are.  I’m committed to improving 

minority communities’ access to government services, and this Commission 

is no exception.  We need to hear your views so we can keep all of these 

interests in mind as we draw this map.  We must redistrict in a manner that 

is fair, equitable, and constitutional.  Everyone in New Jersey deserves the 

right to be treated fairly, equitably, and constitutionally.    

 That being said, the Commission can’t wait to hear from the 

public.  We look forward to all of your input, and we look forward to 

working with the many faces of New Jersey. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any other members?  (no 

response) 

 Okay, with that we’ll call our first witness -- Congressman Albio 

Sires, followed by Mayor Healy, followed by Assemblyman Ramos.  

C O N G R E S S M A N   A L B I O   S  I R E S:  Good afternoon, 

everyone; welcome to Hudson County.  Welcome to Hudson Community 

College, and welcome to the Culinary School here.  This is one of our 

proudest buildings, and one of our proudest schools.  This is one of the 

outstanding places in the state. 

 And I want to thank you for coming, and I want to thank you 

for serving.  I don’t know if anybody has said that, but at the end of the day 

you have a very difficult job, and I don’t think you’re going to make a lot of 

people happy.  But, knowing that, you still care a great deal about the state; 

you still care about the presentation and that you get a fair map.  And I 

know all of you think that, because I know most of you. 

 I’m here as someone who came from a district in this county 

that has performed extremely well in terms of giving opportunities to 

minorities to hold office.  When you look at this district, and you look at 

the people who come out of this district, you have people who have been 

elected to the Assembly; you have people who have been elected to the -- 

minorities, I’m talking about -- to the State Senate; you have people who 

have been elected to represent in Washington -- Congressmen; and you 

have people elected here that have been elected to the U.S. House as 

Senators.  You also have people out of this district who have been elected as 

mayors, and a Speaker of this great State -- all of them minority. 
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 So what I’m talking about is a unique district.  You have 40 

districts that you have to make a decision on.  This happens to be a very 

unique, well-performing, high-performing district in terms of getting 

minorities elected.  I think that the makeup of the district is extremely 

important:  it is very diverse in terms of -- within its own ethnic 

composition, and of the people who serve it.  I would just point out that, 

currently, we have freeholders who are minorities; we have Assembly people 

who are minorities -- including a woman, which is something that we always 

strive to make sure that they have an opportunity to get elected.   

 By saying that, I guess one of the things that I want you to 

consider when you’re making your decision is that you cannot have a 

blanket position for all 40 districts.  There are districts that have different 

makeup, and you might have to not use something standard for the 40 

districts, and take into consideration the district that you are going to put 

together. 

 As I look at this district, I can tell you that the community that 

I come from, West New York, and the community of Union City are almost 

one.  You start on 5th Street, you go to 67th Street -- you can’t tell the 

difference.  When they move from West New York to Union City, Union 

City becomes the most highly populated mile in the country.  When their 

relatives move back to West New York, West New York becomes the most 

populated mile -- square mile in the country.  (laughter)  That is the type of 

district that it is: it is a district that is unique.  I don’t know where you’re 

going to find that in this state anywhere; because I know a little bit about 

the state having traveled throughout the state.   
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 So I think that gives you an idea when I say to you that there’s 

a uniqueness to every single district that has to be taken into consideration.  

If you’re going to go by just blanket this or blanket this all over the districts, 

I think you’re going to have a difficult time drawing some of these maps.  

 I came from this district; I was a mayor in this district; we have 

freeholders -- right down to the County Committee.  You even look at the 

County Committee, the opportunities are there for minorities to serve.  And 

I think that the people who are represented in this district, all of the time, 

are represented well. 

 In terms of what you have to do:  Look, I have no magic bullet 

to tell you that this is how.  I’ve been involved with this once before.  You 

have a hard job.  The Asian-American community has grown.  In this city, 

the population is very diverse.  I think the Mayor will probably testify  that 

there’s like 27 languages spoken in this community, and we all speak it 

every time we go to a different event -- right, Mayor?  (laughter) -- even if 

we just say hello. 

 But that’s how diverse this County is, and that’s how diverse 

this state is.  So what I’m saying to you is this:  Please take into 

consideration the little nuances that some of these districts have.  It is not 

just “we cut here, we cut there” -- if it was that easy, New Jersey wouldn’t 

be the kind of place that it is.  New Jersey is just a great place where many 

people come to this country, start their lives, and continue to stay in this 

state.   

 So I thank you for allowing me to participate and be a speaker.  

I know that my redistricting is coming up, and you’re not going to be there; 
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but it is important for me to let you know how I feel because I’ve been such 

a part of this community.  I came to this country in 1962; and I’ve been in 

this County and in this district -- and in the same district ever since.  Even 

at one time, we had two Republican Assembly people elected, and a 

minority by the name of Jose Arango was elected as a Republican out of this 

district.   

 So it’s a well-performing district, and I guess that’s the 

comment--  I’ll stop here because you have so many people that you have to 

hear.   

 But I thank you for allowing me to say a few words.   Thank 

you very much.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Congressman.  

(applause) 

 Next would be Mayor Healy, and if the Assemblyman wouldn’t 

mind--  I didn’t realize we have State Senator Cunningham here.  The 

Senator would go next, and then Assemblyman Ramos, followed by 

Assemblyman Rodriguez. 

M A Y O R   J E R R A M I A H   T.   H E A L Y:  Good afternoon, and 

thank you for the opportunity.  I thank the members of the public for 

coming down here today, the elected officials, and of course all of you 

Commissioners. 

 Jersey City, as you know -- the census is done -- different from 

most major cities, we have grown.  We went--  Our population went up 3 

percent.  We plan to challenge the count anyway because, once again, we’re 

convinced that we were undercounted by at least 20,000 people.  The 
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numbers came out to be 247,000 and change; and just by the number of 

buildings that went up in this city in the last 10 years, to have our 

population only have grown by 7,000 is indicative of another big 

undercount for our city. 

 But what we have always said about our city:  we’re the most 

ethnically, culturally diverse city in the state.  Well, that was borne out 

once again by this census.  The population numbers here, in this city:  22 

percent white, 23 percent Asian, 24 percent black, and 28 percent Hispanic.  

And there’s something listed as 4 percent other -- I don’t know exactly what 

that is, but it confirms what we’ve been saying:  we’re very much ethnically 

diverse in this city. 

 One of my big concerns -- I don’t believe it’s a concern 

anymore; I think the law is on our side, the U.S. Supreme Court case.  And 

from what I’ve heard through the grapevine about this Commission, my 

concern was our city being into (sic) three districts.  And I believe 

representation in a case like that -- our representation -- gets diluted.  So at 

some point (applause) -- somebody agrees with me; thank you.  (laughter)  I 

think that was my wife and children.  (laughter)  They clap every place I go. 

 But at any rate, getting two districts for our city, I think, will 

ensure that we get 100 percent representation, rather than diluting it.   

 Also, there were a couple of articles that I read recently by 

former Assemblyman Caraballo, and by our Assemblywoman Joan Quigley, 

and I want to warn this Commission to keep that in mind: the stacking 

issue.  I don’t think it helps Jersey City; I don’t think it helps any of our 

minority people in Jersey City or Hudson County, or the State of New 
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Jersey, for that matter.  So I’d ask you to keep that in mind and please 

avoid it. 

 And, once again, thank you for serving here; and I wish you all 

the wisdom, the patience, and the diligence that you’re going to need to do 

a good job in this very, very difficult task.  So I wish you all luck. 

 And I’ve kept my remarks under five minutes.  Thank you, and 

good luck. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Mayor.  (applause) 

 Senator Cunningham, followed by Assembly representatives 

Ramos and Rodriguez. 

S E N A T O R   S A N D R A   B.   C U N N I N G H A M:  Good 

afternoon. 

 Let me first of all welcome you to the great, diverse District of 

the 31st.  This is probably the most dynamic district in the entire State of 

New Jersey, because we are fortunate in that this district consists of African-

American neighborhoods, white neighborhoods, Asian neighborhoods, 

Hispanic neighborhoods; young people, old people, rich people, and poor 

people.  It is a district that, by its own design, gives all people proper 

representation. 

 While African-Americans, Latinos, and other minorities are 

often central to the process when crafting the legislative map, we continue 

to fight for inclusion when both parties ultimately choose their candidates 

after the map is complete.  As you prepare to craft a map which will be in 

place for the next 10 years, you should be mindful that the purpose of this 

process is to ensure fairness for all of New Jersey. 
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 Ultimately, the map will create a Legislature that is charged 

with the task of setting public policy for the State.  The practice of packing 

minorities or stacking, as Mayor Healy said, into a district will have the 

impact of creating an “us versus them” district, where legislation that meets 

the needs of minorities will have difficulty in passing.  Where minorities are 

packed into a few districts, it may become increasingly difficult to pass gun 

legislation like we did recently, because those representatives without urban 

constituents have little motivation to respond to urban concerns. 

 However, when a legislator is faced with a diverse electorate, 

they are forced to view the diversity of their district as a family, as all 

members of the family may have different needs, but they’re all a family 

nonetheless.  My district is a shining example of the kind of diversity every 

district should reflect.   

 Pigeon-holing representatives in narrow, racially and ethnically 

bound districts would only mean that you’re inevitably creating lawmakers 

that would only be known as the black Senator or the Latina 

Assemblywoman, rather than simply “Senator” or “Assemblywoman.”  It 

would diminish the very important role that they have in the public policy 

of this State, as well as giving their colleagues a pass on taking their words 

and concerns seriously. 

 Since this last map was crafted, the 31st District has sent a 

group of men and women to represent them that has been diverse -- from 

Joe Doria to Joe Charles, to Elba Perez-Cinciarelli, to Charles Mainor, to 

Harvey Smith, to my late husband Glenn Cunningham and myself.  

Whether it has been responding to the needs of longtime residents in Jersey 
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City’s urban core, the young professional who has just moved into our 

waterfront, or the retired senior citizen in Bayonne, the diversity of this 

district and its representation ensures that each gets the same amount of 

attention. 

 You will not see that by gerrymandering minorities into seats -- 

as possible as in a few places.  The diversity of the 31st District should be 

the rule, not the exception.  As I’ve learned as this district’s Senator, and as 

those before me have learned, the interest of everyone has to be served.  

The 31st District has done that the way that it is. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  We have, actually, two 

representatives from the 33rd District -- Assemblyman Ruben Ramos and 

Assemblywoman Caridad Rodriguez.  I don’t know if you want to share the 

microphone?  A legislative team. 

 So you know when you come up, the larger microphone is to 

amplify your voice so everyone can hear you; the smaller microphones are 

to record your voice for the transcripts that are being provided.  So please 

speak into the larger microphone, and the others will pick up your 

testimony. 

 Next would be Assemblywoman Annette Quijano, followed by 

Mayor Wilda Diaz. 

A S S E M B L Y M A N   R U B E N   J.   R A M O S   JR.:  Thank you, 

Chairman.   

 Again, I’d like to reiterate Congressman Sires’ statements, and 

Mayor Healy, in welcoming you to Jersey City and Hudson County -- the 
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great County of Hudson.  And good afternoon to all you members of the 

Commission and thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak in front 

of you today regarding an issue of much importance. 

 Over the past four years I have had the honor of being an 

Assemblyman representing the 33rd Legislative District.  I have had the 

distinct pleasure of representing a diverse selection of citizens and interests 

as well.   

 As a member of the Latino community myself, I can tell you 

that I have formed ethnic bonds with the people in this district that 

transcend municipal borders.  Although the Latino community is increasing 

in influence throughout our state, I can tell you that this community is a 

tight-knit community -- we know our neighbors, our neighbors know us -- 

where our towns almost seem to be intertwined.   

 The members of the minority community in the 33rd District 

share common bonds that deserve to be represented in unison and aside 

from the cultural and social aspect of the ties, common thread between our 

cities.   

 There are a variety of funding and legislative initiatives that 

affect the minority community as a whole, and we represent those interests.  

I am proud to represent West New York, Guttenberg, and Weehawken, as I 

am to represent Jersey City, Union City, and Hoboken as well.   

 I firmly believe the 33rd Legislative District is represented 

correctly, as reflective of its ethnic diversity, the way it is.  I urge the 

Commission to refrain from approving a map that would sever the 

relationships that have been forged between the people of the 33rd District 
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and our delegation.  I implore this Commission to keep the 33rd Legislative 

District intact. 

 And I appreciate you guys for coming here today; I know you 

have a long day ahead of you.  But once again, I’d like to reiterate that 

Caridad Rodriguez, myself, and Senator Stack -- we are what’s right about 

the map the way it is today.  We specifically represent our community the 

way it is right now. 

 So I appreciate you guys taking the time to come out and hear 

our words today.  Thank you very much.   

 I pass the mike to Assemblywoman Rodriguez. 

A S S E M B L Y W O M A N   C A R I D A D   R O D R I G U E Z:  

Good morning, everyone -- may be afternoon by now. 

 Thank you to the Commission for being here today and 

spending this time with us.  This is a very important hearing, and this is 

part of our democratic process, and we’re happy to be going through it. 

 But as we go through the process, the main thing that comes to 

mind is to be mindful of the people we represent -- very mindful of the 

people who put us here.   

 I came to this district back in 1962 from another country and 

have been a part of it ever since.  I was involved in local government since 

1995, and learned through that process a little bit about each community, 

each ethnicity -- a very diverse community in our district.  But together, as a 

family, we allow each other to be what we are, and practicing as we want to 

practice.   
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 Saying that, we have geared, since we became an assembly 

through Ruben and me, together with Senator Stack, to serve our people in 

their needs. I feel that you need to know what their needs are in order to 

serve them, and this is what we are striving to do.  And the people are 

happy. 

 I know that Senator Stack has around three district offices in 

the district; Ruben has one; I have another one in West New York.  And 

those offices are packed with people demanding, requesting, begging for 

services; sometimes not at the State level, but local, basic needs that we can 

provide nonetheless.  If not, the big portion. 

 So we’re very proud of what service we’re giving our people; 

and we are always, again, mindful of their needs, and we would love to 

continue to do that as a threesome. 

 I beg you to keep our district intact.  Thank you. (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you.  

 Assemblywoman Annette Quijano, followed by Mayor Wilda 

Diaz and Councilman Julio Tavarez. 

A S S E M B L Y W O M A N   A N N E T T E   Q U I J A N O:  Good 

afternoon.  I’m not sure if I’m synched in here to all the microphones. 

 Thank you for allowing me to testify today.  My name is 

Annette Quijano, and I have had the honor of serving as the 

Assemblywoman from the 20th Legislative District.   

 I know you heard some testimony before that kind of gave you 

the impression that I don’t exist, but here I am; I do exist.  (laughter) 
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 And I am from the City of Elizabeth.  As a resident, I was 

selected to fill the unexpired term by the committee members from the four 

towns, which is the City of Elizabeth, Kenilworth, Union, and Roselle.  I 

was sworn in on September 25, 2008; I was the only legislator to run in the 

general election that November to fill the unexpired term.  People learned 

my last name -- how to say it and how to identify it. 

 Yet, I was not the only Latino on the ballot that November; in 

fact, there were two others.  I was joined by Albio Sires, who represents the 

13th Congressional District in the City of Elizabeth; and Angel Estrada, as 

an incumbent freeholder, also from the City of Elizabeth.  As you can see, 

that year alone there were Latinos on the ballots in three different levels: 

Congressional, County -- and for those who don’t know Union County, that 

means there are 21 towns -- and the Legislature.  All three competed in that 

election and won in the City of Elizabeth, and won our respective seats. 

 And now I represent the 20th Legislative District, along with 

Senator Lesniak and Assemblyman Cryan.  We are a team: we respect each 

other, we rely on each other, and we have learned from each other.  I felt 

the need to come today and set the record straight.  Our district is, in fact, 

very diverse, perhaps the most diverse in the State.  We are a district filled 

with Latinos from South and Central America, Caribbean, Puerto Ricans, 

Cubanos, Dominicanos, African-Americans, Africans, Haitians.  We are also 

European, which includes people of Polish, Irish, Italian, Portuguese, and 

Spanish descent.  We are Jewish, Catholic, Protestant, Baptist, Muslim, and 

atheist.  We are seniors, children; we are gay, we are straight; we are 

disabled.  We are the new immigrants and ancestors of those brought to 
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America on slave ships.  We are the diversity that defines New Jersey, and 

our legislators do represent all that diversity in Trenton. 

 In the 1990s, I served as a member of the New Jersey 

congressional redistricting commission; only we were faced with the 

elimination of one congressional district due to population losses in the 

state.  I thought then that that task of losing one congressional district was 

difficult while maintaining the population numbers; however, your task is 

much more difficult.   

 This is compounded by what I believe is an undercount by the 

U.S. Census.  Unfortunately, there were some organizations during the last 

census that directed Latinos to boycott the census -- something I think is 

absolutely irresponsible.  But some listened and did not submit the census 

forms.  As a result, I believe our population had been undercounted. 

 Nevertheless, I urge that you analyze the official census 

numbers and develop a new map.  Please keep two important things in 

mind:  how to handle the counting of prisoners, and the damaging effect of 

packing and bleaching. 

 First, the Census Bureau counts incarcerated persons as 

residents of the prison location, even though these people don’t vote and 

are not often part of the community where the prison is located.  If you 

assign prisoners to the census block where the prison is located rather than 

the census block of their home address, what happens is that it creates a 

significant enhancement of the weight of a vote cast in districts with 

prisons, and dilutes votes of all other residents in other districts in the state.  

So I urge you not to count the prisoner population in a district where the 
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prison is located, but rather where the prisoner’s home is located.  This is 

consistent with the way we actually define residence for voting purposes -- 

where a person intends to permanently reside.  

 Second, I oppose stacking and cracking.  These words all come 

to major importance every 10 years, I know.  You’ve already heard 

testimony about the effects of cracking, which is where districts with smaller 

numbers of Latinos are broken up and spread among various districts.  This 

dilutes the power of Latinos and makes it less likely that Latinos’ voices will 

be heard.  It also results in bleaching, where some districts become even 

more white than ever before.  This is undemocratic and also flies in the face 

of diversity that helps define the State of New Jersey. 

 So as you continue to take testimony, and deliberate, and make 

decisions, I urge you to respect that there are various viewpoints.  I am one 

who is a Latina who believes you must have a fair map: one that recognizes 

each community, and one which recognizes every town in New Jersey does, 

indeed, have Latinos.   

 We are fortunate in the 20th District to have a diverse team of 

legislators, to have Latino representation in the U.S. Senate, Congress, our 

County government, our local government, and school districts. 

 Thank you so much for your time and consideration. (applause) 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Chair, if I could -- just a question or two. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblywoman, we have a 

question. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Assemblywoman, I happen to live in 

Westfield, so I’m from Union County. 
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 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Oh, great. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  So I’d just like to ask a couple of questions 

just to clarify the record. 

 Did you ever challenge Assemblyman Cohen in a primary? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Did I challenge him? 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Did you ever run in a primary against 

Assemblyman Cohen? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  No. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Did you ever run in a general election 

against Assemblyman Cohen? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  No. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  So you were initially--  You got to the 

Legislature via a county convention -- Title IX -- convention.  That’s how 

you got on the ballot the first time. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Yes. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Okay.  That’s all; thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  I also did run -- I don’t 

know if you know -- for freeholder on the County ticket. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Well, I appreciate that.  I know 

Congressman Sires very, very well, and he spoke very eloquently.  Our task 

here is legislative redistricting.  And so I’d love to talk to you about 

redistricting on the freeholder level in Union County, but that’s for another 

day.  (laughter)  We’re here talking about legislative redistricting and the 

opportunity for every New Jerseyan.  And so I was just curious to make sure 
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the record was clear in terms of how you got to the Legislature, and you 

answered my questions, so thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Okay, thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblywoman, did we have 

another question? 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  But you were appointed, and then how 

many times have you been elected from the people? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  I have run two cycles -- two 

election cycles: one for the unexpired term, six weeks after I was selected.  

And then again within one year for the two-year term. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  And New Jersey’s lucky to have you. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblywoman, if I might-- 

 Any other questions?   (no response) 

 If I might, I took your testimony to understand that you were 

against the practice of what some people call packing? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Can you define that for me? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  When you put minorities all 

in one district, and as a result expect just to have one elected official to 

represent that one group. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay, and then you oppose the 

practice that you described as called cracking.  I think you defined that in 

your testimony. 
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 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Do you want me to get my 

book out with all the definitions, so that we make sure that-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Sure. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Okay -- would you like to 

go back to packing? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  No, no.  If that was your 

understanding of packing, if you--  You can add to the record whatever 

you’d like.  What book are you reading from? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  I am reading from the 

Impact of Redistricting in Your Community -- a publication from the NAACP 

Legal Defense and Education Fund, the Asian-American Justice Center, and 

the Mexican-American Legal Defense and Education Fund. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay.  Is there something from 

there you want to include in the record. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Well, you just asked me a 

question -- to define it. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay, no -- I thought you were 

very eloquent in your definition.  But if you would like to include 

something from there, that would be fine, too. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Okay.  Well, it’s a form of 

vote dilution, prohibited under the Voting Rights Act, where a minority 

group is over-concentrated in a small number of districts -- that’s packing. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  And then cracking -- is that 

defined in there as well? 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Yes, it is. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  A form of dilution occurring 

when districts are drawn so as to divide a geographically compact minority 

community into two or more districts. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay.  So not too concentrated, 

not too spread out -- somewhere in between is your preference. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  I believe everyone should 

have a vote, and since Latinos are in every county in the state, they should 

vote where they live, and have district lines accordingly. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay.  I was just trying to get the 

calibration of what your recommendation is. 

 Any other questions?  (no response) 

 Thank you for your time. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN QUIJANO:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mayor Wilda Diaz.  Now Mayor, 

do you have people that you want to join you, or-- 

M A Y O R   W I L D A   D I A Z:  No. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay; followed by Julio Tavarez, 

followed by Martin Perez. 

 MAYOR DIAZ:   Good afternoon.  Thank you, I’m excited 

about being here.  And I know that you have a challenge here, but I’m 

excited that I have been--  I thank you for giving me the chance. 

 My name is Wilda Diaz, and in May 2008 I became the first 

woman elected mayor in the 325-year-history of the City of Perth Amboy.  

(applause)  Previous to my administration, Perth Amboy was designated as 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

a hard-to-count community by the United States Census.  Through the 

concerted efforts of many members of the community, Perth Amboy’s 

mailed response in the Census of 2010 was 71 percent -- the second highest 

of any predominantly minority community in New Jersey. 

 Perth Amboy is in Middlesex County, which is the second-

largest most populous county in New Jersey, with a population of 810,000 

people in Middlesex County and 149,000 Latinos. 

 Our population is more -- by 175,000 -- more than Hudson 

County, and close to 26,000 more residents than Essex County; and yet we 

have no elected Senator -- in our county -- or Assembly person of Latino 

descent. 

 In Middlesex County, non-Hispanic whites constitute less than 

half of the county’s population, but most of our State and County 

legislators are overwhelmingly white males.  In the 19th Legislative District, 

which covers Perth Amboy, Hispanics are 31 percent of the population, and 

non-Hispanic whites are 43 percent of the district’s population.   We can 

surmise that at least half of the non-Hispanic white population in the 19th 

District is composed of women; however, the district is represented by three 

white men who live in the same community. 

 Obviously, the figures I have shared speak glaringly about the 

lack of diversity in the elected leadership in the county and the district 

where I am an elected official.  Minorities and women continue to be 

essentially disenfranchised from appropriately being represented in our 

community.  Additionally, although Perth Amboy is the second-largest 
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municipality in the 19th District, we have no elected representation at the 

State, Legislative, or County levels. 

 I ask myself this question quite often:  How can a municipality, 

a large municipality, dominate the Senate, Assembly, and Freeholder -- one 

township -- and yet Perth Amboy have no representation. 

 We have been placed in the legislative district where one large 

municipality monopolizes the selection process of an elective representation 

outside the municipality.  This prevents -- structural limits -- Perth Amboy’s 

ability to engage in the political process other than the general election.  

Perth Amboy would be more fairly represented in a district of a similar size.   

 I was elected Mayor of a city where Hispanics comprise 78 

percent of the population.  Being a woman was obviously not a liability in 

my election.  Furthermore, in recent elections non-Hispanic candidates have 

been elected to the City Council, onto the Board of Education in Perth 

Amboy.  Our city accepts diversity as part of democracy; however, these 

principles pertaining to our community we do not see fairly well represented 

in the State.  I hope that this Commission understands that the redistricting 

process that occurred after the last two censuses essentially served to 

disenfranchise large numbers of the state’s population.  We in Perth Amboy 

are requesting a more equitable structure that is more inclusive of all our 

citizens, and certain groups’ votes are not diluted for the benefit of partisan 

politics. 

 I just wanted to say that, before me, you heard our 

Congressman, who I think very highly of -- our Congressman Sires.  You 

also heard from the Senator; you also heard from our Assembly people.  
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They represent their communities.  But when you take a look at ours, when 

you take a look at Perth Amboy, that reached over 50,000 residents -- and 

we believe also that we were undercounted -- but yet, when you take a look 

at that district, you can see that we’re not represented.   

 And needless to say, when you take at a look at even the 

women who are--  We have no women in the 19th District.  So I’m hoping 

that when you take a look at this map -- redistricting -- that you take that 

into account. 

 We believe, again, in diversity because that’s what makes our 

country so great, and our state such a wonderful state to live in.  But when 

it came to our community, that was not the case. 

 And I want to set the record straight.  I see that our 

Assemblyman John Wisniewski is here.  He tried to help us in the 19th 

District in the last election.  But what happened was that when you have a 

town that dominates, I want to say, committee people, they out-power and 

outnumber a community like Perth Amboy.  And now, in the past, we had 

an Assemblyman of Latino descent, but now we don’t. 

 So I’m here before you asking you to please to take that into 

account.  We also deserve representation -- especially when we went from 

70 percent Latino in (indiscernible) to 78 percent in Perth Amboy. 

 And I publicly want to thank again Assemblyman Wisniewski 

for trying to help us in that endeavor, and it didn’t work out.  But we just 

want to make sure that this map also takes into account our community.  

And I believe in diversity. 

 Thank you.   
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Mayor.  (applause) 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Mayor, before you go.  Mr. Chairman, can 

I-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Do you have anything? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  No, I don’t have anything. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Palatucci. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Mayor, a quick question:  You spoke very 

movingly about the situation.  We hope to have additional hearings going 

forward.  Would you be so kind to host us if we agree as a Commission to 

have additional hearings?  Could we come to your town and have a hearing? 

 MAYOR DIAZ:  Absolutely.  We will welcome you with open 

arms.  Perth Amboy will definitely be proud to actually host.  So thank you 

again. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Mayor. 

 We have Paterson City Councilman Julio Tavarez, followed by 

Martin Perez, followed by Passaic Mayor Alex Blanco. 

C O U N C I L M A N   J U L I O   T A V A R E Z:  Good afternoon. 

 First, I want to say thank you for allowing me to testify today. 

 As stated before, my name is Julio Tavarez.  I am Councilman 

of the 5th Ward of the City of Paterson.   

 I am here today to ask this Commission to pay close attention 

to the impact the growth of the Latino community has had on my 

legislative district, as well as surrounding districts, in the State of New 

Jersey.  For instance, this Commission should be aware of the significant 
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increase in the populations of Latinos in Districts 34, 35, and 36.  the 

population in the cities of Passaic and Clifton have increased, due mainly to 

an increase in the Latino population.  Passaic has moved from 62 percent 

Latino in 2000 to 71 percent Latino in 2010.  And in Clifton, Latinos 

increased from 20 percent to 32 percent in 10 years. 

 In addition, in Paterson, the percentage of Latinos has 

increased while the total population has decreased.  And by the way, like 

everybody else, we feel we were undercounted as well.  (laughter) 

 Even with the population decrease, by 3,000 individuals, 

Latinos increased by 9,494.  Latinos now represent 57.6 percent of the 

city’s population -- that’s up from 50 percent in 2000. 

 Finally, the City of Garfield stands at 32 percent Latino.  And 

let’s not forget communities that aren’t usually considered as “Latino” -- 

like Elmwood Park, where the population now for Latinos stands at 21 

percent; in the Borough of Haledon, where the Latino population stands at 

42  percent -- almost half in the Borough of Haledon. 

 What does all this data mean?  It means that the Latino 

community in the State of New Jersey has grown.  And with this growth 

comes the opportunity and responsibility of selecting candidates of our 

choice who will represent the best interests of our community. 

 I believe that these communities I mentioned earlier now share 

strong commonalities.  Does this Commission -- should consider creating 

legislative districts that unify these municipalities, since they have matured 

into communities of interest.  And I know folks talk about packing and 
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cracking and stacking -- this is not packing, this is fairness -- it’s complete 

fairness. 

 For instance:  residents of the City of Passaic, Clifton, and 

Paterson -- which, if you know anything about Passaic County, they are 

joined together by Main Street -- Main Ave, whatever you call it -- share 

much well-documented commonalities such as language, socioeconomic 

status, religion, means of transportation, sources of information -- we all use 

the same newspaper -- political interests, in culture expression, among other 

factors.  And yes, so do Elmwood Park, Haledon, and Garfield. 

 In fact, once again, this is what is called a community of 

interest.  Legislators from three different legislative districts currently 

represent this community of interest.  District 34 covers the City of Clifton, 

District 35 covers the City of Paterson, District 36 covers the City of 

Passaic.  This fragmentation dilutes the strength of the Latino community’s 

voting capability and harms the ability of this community of interest of 

selecting candidates of our choice. 

 Let me give you an example of what I mean by that.  There are 

six wards in the City of Paterson, each represented by a council 

representative.  Out of the six wards, there is only one Latino representing a 

ward -- that’s me.  Now remember: Paterson is 57 percent Latino, but of the 

six wards, there’s only  one Latino representing the community. 

 When folks call my office, regardless of the ward -- they can’t 

speak the language, a Latino can’t speak the language -- they come to me.  

They come from the 1st Ward, the 6th Ward, the 2nd Ward -- they call my 
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office, regardless of which ward they live.  And I have to step up to the plate 

and help them out, plus help the people in my ward. 

 The only reason why this district came to be is because years 

ago a district was drawn with communities of interest in mind -- 

neighborhoods.  Now that the Latino community continues to surge in the 

City of Paterson, new lines will be drawn once again to represent a 

demographic shift in the City of Paterson; and this Commission should do 

the same at the State level and the congressional level. 

 Once again, this is not packing -- this is fairness for a 

community that continues to grow and invest in the State of New Jersey.  

While other communities are moving out -- out West -- Latinos are coming 

to New Jersey and continue to make an impact in this state, and be an 

economic engine, and continue to grow in this community -- which is the 

State of New Jersey. 

 Finally, I would like to ask this Commission to take into 

consideration the Voting Rights Act of 1965.  This Federal law offers this 

community of interest an opportunity to achieve the goal of having a 

legislative district where they could elect a candidate of their choosing. 

 Thank you for your time and consideration.  I really appreciate 

this.  Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Martin Perez, followed by Mayor 

Blanco, followed by Amy Braunstein. 

M A R T I N   P E R E Z,   ESQ.:  Good afternoon, distinguished 

members of the Commission. 
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 I echo the words of Congressman Albio Sires -- like always he’s 

on point and because he--  I agree that you have a tremendous task in front 

of you.  It’s not going to be easy; it’s going to be very hard and, at times, 

very contentious. 

 But it’s a task that must be done, and it must be done 

effectively.  This is not the first time that I am here in front of this 

Commission.  I testified in the 2001 Commission, and submitted maps, and 

here we go again to the same situation. 

 I have an opportunity to send in written testimony to the 

hearing (indiscernible), so I just want to take this opportunity to make a 

few comments. 

 After having the benefit of receiving the numbers from the 

census and witnessing the testimony in past hearings, the first thing that I 

want to say is that the census confirmed what we already knew in this State 

-- is that it’s been an explosion in the growth of the Latino population in 

this state, from 13 percent to 18 percent.  Yet we still are only 5-and-

something percent of the Assembly and only 2 percent of the Senate.  

Something is wrong with this picture, and it must be changed.  And you 

have the task to change it -- to create the mechanism to change that, 

because you serve--  If you really believe in diversity and the people who are 

talking here, the first thing that you have to make sure is -- that it’s diverse -

- is the Legislature of the State of New Jersey.  The Senate cannot--  We 

cannot have any group that has a 10 percent of the population and doesn’t 

have -- and only has one Senator. 
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 So I think that that’s the task at hand.  I think that the issue of 

packing is what we call, in law school, a red herring, because nobody that has 

testified in this hearing has testified in support of packing -- no one.  And 

I’ve been reading the testimony and nobody supports it. 

 So let’s pull the issue of packing and cracking aside.  What we 

want is fair representation in the State Legislature.  (applause)  And I think 

that where we experienced growth you can draw districts that truly give us a 

chance to elect a representative of our own choosing.  Sometimes it’s going 

to be Latinos, sometimes it’s not going to be Latinos.  But if we choose 

them -- we choose then the Senator of District 33, Latinos can have a 

chance there to elect a Latino there.  But they choose to elect a Senator that 

truly understands, that truly represents the Latinos.  I don’t have any 

problem with that.  

 But we have a choice, and choice is important.  And 

opportunity is important.  And the issue of Section 2 of the Voting Rights 

Act is about the ability to elect representatives of our own choosing. 

 Now, in the past redistricting process, the mechanism that you 

created to try to solve the problem of underrepresentation of Latinos and 

African-Americans was district of influence.  Yet that issue, that process, didn’t 

work.  You went all the way to the Court; the Court supported the map, but 

it didn’t work because after 10 years we have the same amount of 

representatives in the Assembly that we had in 2001 -- six.  We have grown 

from 13 percent to 18 percent of the population, but we still have six 

Assemblymen, which is 5 percent of the total (indiscernible) percent of the 

Legislature. 
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 The reason why the process didn’t work is because they didn’t 

take -- the issue of influence didn’t work is because there are other issues 

that affect the election of people to the Legislature.  One is the machine 

politics; and the other thing is the lack of true coalition building.  The 

incumbents need protection.  Another is the campaign finances.  Another is 

the lack of competitive districts, and the (indiscernible) of multi-member 

districts.  All of that affects the ability of us to elect people of our own 

liking. 

 Now, in that process, that problem affects not just the ability of 

the amount of people of ethnic groups, of minorities that you would select, 

but also the quality -- the quality.  Because not all Latinos are members of 

the Democratic Party or the Republican Party, for that matter.  Forty-six 

percent of the population of Latinos don’t belong to any party.  I would like 

to say that we create opportunities for the community to come together and 

elect other people that don’t belong to the machine, (applause) because I 

have experience that we have -- in that process of influence we have a 

legislator in the area of Newark -- that he was elected, and he was actually a 

legislator.  But as soon as he became, and went against the machine, he was 

eliminated.  He ran in the primary -- you know how many votes he got?  

Seventeen percent of the vote.  The machine wiped him out.  So because -- 

not only is there area of influence, but the ability to -- the totality of the 

circumstances to be able to elect our people. 

 So I think that--  The other thing that worries me is when the 

Senator comes here -- which I have a lot of respect for her, but I disagree 

with her -- that says that when you elect somebody in a district that has a 
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lot of minorities, that you are going to call that legislator, that Senator, the 

black Senator or the Hispanic Senator.  Why do you do that?  Why are you 

going to do that?  I’m going to tell you something.   There are 27 districts in 

New Jersey with 50 percent to 90 percent of white control.  And all of them 

are represented by one Senator -- a white Senator, and mostly male whites.  

Nobody calls them the white Senator.  Nobody is calling them the white 

Senator.  Why are we doing it if we are going to have a black Senator for 

Hudson County; or for Passaic County you are going to call them the Latino 

Senator?  No, he’s the Senator of everybody who is going to elect him.  

What you have to create is the opportunity to elect that person. 

 And so I think that this whole issue of red herring -- of packing 

is a red herring to deny us representation; it’s gamesmanship and you are 

playing; and why I said put it aside and give fair representation.  That’s 

what I want to see, and that’s what we deserve.  And it should not be only a 

concern of the Latinos that we have no proper representation in the State 

Legislature.  It should be the concern of all of you -- everybody, Latinos and 

non-Latinos. 

 So you have your task cut out for you.  We are here to support 

you and assist you in any way we can. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mayor Blanco from Passaic, 

followed by Amy Braunstein, followed by Assemblywoman Pou. 

M A Y O R   A L E X   D.   B L A N C O,   M.D.:  Good afternoon, 

members of the public and distinguished Chairs -- Co-Chair Webber and 

Chairman Wisniewski. 
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 I am Dr. Alex Blanco, Mayor of the City of Passaic.  Thank you 

for giving me the opportunity to testify. 

 As you may know, the latest census puts our population of our 

City at over 69,000 residents, with 71 percent Latino.  I am proud of my 

City, especially because the voters have chosen a city council that is very 

diverse.  We have two Puerto Ricans, one African-American, four 

caucasians. 

 And the City of Passaic also has a school board that within the 

last two years has elected its first Indian and Muslim representative, as well 

as the State’s first Ecuadorian elected official.  The School Board is also 

diverse; and it’s also the first step as elective service.  My first elected 

position, prior to serving as Mayor, was a member of the Board of 

Education for about five years. 

 We are fortunate that we have a legislative delegation that is 

dedicated and responsive to our city’s needs, a delegation that includes a 

representative from Passaic City -- our Council President, Gary Schaer.  

And, in fact, it was through the leadership of Senator Paul Sarlo, 

Assemblymen Gary Schaer and Fred Scalera that Passaic was able to secure 

millions of dollars in extraordinary aid from Trenton. 

 When I was elected last May, 2009, I did so with the votes 

from all across my city.  This includes the overwhelming support from the 

Orthodox community and every known Hispanic voter in our city, just as 

Gary Schaer wins with the overwhelming support from his community and 

the Latino voters. 
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 My views are closer in line with those of former Assemblyman 

Wilfredo Caraballo that were published in Wednesday’s Star-Ledger, where 

he wrote that we’re moving away from polarized voting in New Jersey.  

Communities of interest must have every opportunity to elect 

representatives who are in the line of their view, whether that means 

electing a non-Latino mayor, like in the City of Union City here in Hudson 

County -- Mr. Brian Stack; or electing a Latino, in the case of West New 

York with Mayor Sal Vega.  In the end, it is the community’s choice. 

 It is the challenge that you have been empowered to resolve.  It 

is the responsibility you have to all communities of interest in New Jersey as 

a whole.  I have heard and read that the only way to increase minorities 

representation in the Legislature is to pack minorities into fewer districts.  

In fact, I argue that nothing could be further from the truth.  Packing 

minorities might create the illusion of more power when, in fact, the 

opposite is reality.  Creating numerical majorities with one minority group 

in the legislative district is never a guarantee that they will elect a 

representative of their kind. 

 The time when voters only voted for their own race is becoming 

a thing of the past.  And beyond that, you end up limiting the number of 

districts where minorities have even the opportunity to run.  Both 

Assemblymen Cruz-Perez and Speaker Oliver were elected in districts where 

Latinos and African-Americans constituted far less than 50 percent of the 

population.  And that phenomenon is repeated in at least 10 other districts 

where minority legislators were elected from districts where their own 

minority population totals far less than half the total population.  The latest 
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census shows that New Jersey will have even more places where this 

opportunity can be created, and that’s what we should do. 

 So let me conclude by calling upon my own experience in the 

City of Passaic, where I was elected the first Dominican Mayor in the 

United States.  Both the politics and the government there demonstrate 

that diversity population not only votes for each other, but can also work 

together to get things done.  The best way to celebrate New Jersey’s 

diversity is not by racially dividing us, but by going out of our way to create 

as many legislative districts to reflect that diversity, and in so, to further 

unite us. 

 Thank you very much.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Amy Braunstein, followed by 

Assemblywoman Pou, followed by John Aspray. 

A M Y   B R A U N S T E I N:  I’d like to thank the members of the 

Apportionment Commission for allowing me this opportunity to testify. 

 My name is Amy Braunstein, and I’m a New Brunswick 

resident, a Rutgers graduate.  I’m a Democrat, and I’m also an organizer of 

the Empower Our Neighborhoods campaign for wards, and the Democrats 

for Change primary election in 2009. 

 I want to participate in local politics because most decisions 

affecting my day-to-day life are made on that level.  Our current legislative 

districting makes my participating more difficult because all decision 

making is run through just one party in the City of New Brunswick. 
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 I believe in the importance of district boundaries because of my 

experiences in a referendum to move New Brunswick to a city council based 

on wards, rather than the current at-large system. 

 The process of redistricting in New Brunswick was met with 

intense opposition by local party and political leaders long before we ever 

got the question on the ballot.  We had identified tying some New 

Brunswick council seats to districts or wards as a way of making our local 

government more representative of our city’s diverse communities, so the 

council members would serve the people they represent, rather than the 

local party structure. 

 Beyond getting new council people elected, we believe that 

smaller elections and more competitive elections would make our City 

representatives more accountable, because New Brunswick has been solidly 

Democratic for decades and almost all of the town candidates put forward 

by the New Brunswick Democratic organization are swept into office 

unopposed.   

 Lacking an alternative at the ballot box, it is very difficult to 

remove ineffective officials from office.  But once the New Brunswick 

political party leaders became aware of our petition effort, they began the 

process of passing a charter study of the board’s issue. 

 A charter study commission had been passed by city ordinance 

before in 1996, and the commission members recommended no change; so 

the question was not sent to voters -- effectively killing that particular 

citizens’ initiative.  But charter studies have the double effect of preventing 
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the issue from being voted on within four years, which can kill mobilization 

around a given issue. 

 We redoubled our canvassing and submitted our petition with 

the 1,100 signatures ahead of the charter study, but it was rejected on a 

technicality and the charter study was pushed through anyway.  It took over 

a year of legal wrangling before we could bring the wards question to a vote 

in New Brunswick. 

 I also ran for Democratic Committee in my city, and again 

faced extra legal obstacles to even getting on the primary ballot.  Twenty-

two candidates out of a slate of 50 were kicked off on the basis of a non-

existent residency requirement for party elections.  These 22 candidates 

were also every single candidate under the age of 30, and in a city with a 

very large university population, a population which pre-dates the American 

Revolution, I do not think it unreasonable to expect some representation of 

New Brunswick’s young adults -- especially in the wake of videos and 

allegations of police violence against these populations in my district in 

New Brunswick. 

 With the dedicated efforts of pro bono attorneys from New 

Jersey Appleseed, we won not only one, but four lawsuits in appeals.  A test 

in court of law found New Brunswick’s and the NBDO’s rejections 

overreaches or outright fabrications of law, and ruled that our referendum 

should proceed to the ballot. 

 But I want to emphasize just how lucky we were to find that 

representation with the limited funding of a grassroots organization.  Many 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

citizens are stopped dead in their tracks by similar moves by incumbent 

party structures, regardless of how legitimate they may be. 

 As the redistricting process moves forward, I hope the 

Commission will keep existing communities whole, and consider 

competitive elections a priority so that all New Jerseyans can enjoy all the 

benefits of a thriving democracy.  There are too many legislative districts 

where only one party consistently wins by a margin of more than 10 

percent, making it effectively a one-party district. 

 I would like to make the legislative districts more competitive 

so that local electoral races generate media attention, and the voting public 

can discuss issues and debates and campaign events, and have the 

opportunity outside of political party structure to hold officials accountable. 

 Thank you for your time. (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblywoman Pou, followed 

by John Aspray, followed by Patricia Bombelyn. 

A S S E M B L Y W O M A N   N E L L I E   P O U:  Good afternoon, 

Co-Chairman Wisniewski, Co-Chairman Webber, and members of the 

Commission.   

 My name is Nellie Pou, and I am here today as the 

Chairwoman of the Assembly Legislative Latino Caucus, which is comprised 

of seven legislative members: one Senator and six Assembly members of 

Hispanic descent.  I applaud every member of the public for taking the time 

today to join this process. 

 I am also heartened to see so many Latinos participating at 

these hearings.  If this any indication of the kind of civic engagement in our 
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communities, I look forward to welcoming newly elected members to the 

Caucus following the 2011 legislative elections. 

 The design of a new map will influence the course of elections 

for the next decade.  As Latinos, we need to invest in this process to ensure 

the map reflects the diversity of our great state.  The recent census clearly 

attributes the growth in New Jersey’s population to the increasing numbers 

of Latinos choosing New Jersey as their home. 

 Between 2000 and 2010, the Latino population grew from 1.1 

million to 1.6 million; going from 13.3 percent of New Jersey’s population 

in 2000 to 17.7 percent in 2010.  Nearly one in five of our residents are 

now Latinos.  And while Latinos grew by 39.2 percent, the non-Latino 

population declined slightly, by 0.8 percent. 

 The Latino community increased its population in the 

traditional cities with the largest concentrations of Latinos.  And we are 

pleased to see that in cities like Perth Amboy, with 78 percent; and Passaic 

with 71 percent, Latinos now make up more than 70 percent of the 

population in those cities.  And in the case of Union City, as much as 85 

percent of the city is Latino.  In Paterson, 58 percent of the residents are 

Latinos. 

 The Latino community also has reached beyond traditional 

urban areas to growing suburban towns like Red Bank, which experienced a 

34 percent increase in Latino residents; in towns like Bridgeton, 43 percent, 

the population is equally of note; Hightstown, 30 percent; and 

Wrightstown, 28 percent.  And Central Jersey counties posted smaller gains 
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which signal continued future growth.  These growing Latino communities 

are contributing to the economic, social, and civic progress of our state. 

 For two consecutive decades the increase in the Latino 

population has fueled the growth of our state.  While I am both proud and 

pleased that our progress is duly recognized, I am eager to move beyond 

such an accomplishment to foster a broader dialogue that focuses on 

building electoral representation proportional to our population. 

 In order to engage that dialogue we need to shift the focus from 

the increasing population of Latinos to considerations such as civic 

engagement and voting rights.  We need to increase opportunities for 

Latinos to choose their elected leadership.  The Latino communities’ 

potential to elect through coalition and crossover districts is definitely a  

reasonable means to achieve effective opportunities for Latinos.  

 I am specifically raising this issue in order to address the 

concern that I’ve read in the press that recent court decisions could be used 

to dismantle the current map.  While I may not be pleased by the current 

representation of Latinos in the Legislature, I caution that recent court 

decisions are not an open invitation to dismantle any existing effective 

districts -- whether the district is a majority-Latino, crossover, or a coalition 

district; and that there is nothing barring the Commission from creating 

opportunities for Latinos in areas where Latinos are not the majority, either 

by creating crossover or coalition districts. 

 This Commission is responsible for drawing legislative district 

lines that are equal in population and that respect traditional districting 

criteria.  Under the Voting Rights Act, it is also prohibited from relying on 
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the process of dilution, whether by packing or cracking the Latino 

community.  I do not believe dismantling opportunities for Latinos and 

creating segregated districts will yield the best results. 

 The experience of the last decade did not yield maximum 

opportunities for Latino candidates; however, the progress that has been 

achieved is largely attributable to the Democratic Party, which has sought 

to recognize the diversity of our communities. 

 Our work is only just underway. Today our Latino elected 

representatives hold leadership positions within their respective Democratic 

caucuses and have a greater opportunity to enact legislation that 

meaningfully impacts the daily lives of our Latino constituency.  It’s a good 

start, but we need to do much more to create opportunities for participation 

and to protect the voting rights of our community. 

 Thank you, ladies and gentlemen.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Assemblywoman. 

 ASSEMBLYWOMAN POU:  Mr. Chairman, I have copies of 

my testimony. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  That would be great. 

 Patricia Bombelyn. 

J O H N   A S P R A Y:  Wait -- not John Aspray? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Oh, I’m sorry -- John Aspray,  

sure -- I’ve already passed the slip along -- followed by Patricia Bombelyn, 

followed by Councilwoman Viola Richardson.  

 MR. ASPRAY:  Good afternoon, members of the 

Apportionment Commission.  My name is John Aspray.  I’m a Rutgers 
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undergraduate student studying planning and public policy.  I’m also the 

Internal Affairs Chair for the Rutgers University Student Assembly -- the 

undergraduate student government at Rutgers New Brunswick -- which 

represents around 30,000 undergraduate students. 

 Now, last year I also served as the Legislative Affairs Chair, and 

through my involvement with the student community I found myself 

getting involved with New Brunswick’s municipal politics.  In a city like 

New Brunswick, students make up a significant portion of the population--  

so much so that students, as a group, seek and have sought formal 

representation in the city’s politics.  It is the hometown of New Jersey’s 

flagship university. 

 But to my surprise students are somewhat taken for granted as 

a constituency in New Brunswick.  And with a little investigation it’s pretty 

easy to see why.  In New Brunswick the Democratic Party holds all five City 

Council seats, as well as the Mayor.  There is no functional Republican 

Party in New Brunswick.  In New Brunswick, any appeal to pay more 

attention to any particular group -- ethnic, racial, social class, what have you 

-- is treated as a threat.  And, quite frankly, it hurts the democracy within 

the city.  This is speaking, of course, as a registered Democrat; I’m a 

registered Democrat in New Brunswick. 

 So I joined a group of reformers, like my colleague Amy 

Braunstein with Empower Our Neighborhoods, and sought for district-

based representation in New Brunswick.  Now, this was conducted under a 

referendum through the Faulkner Act; and our petition, which is basically a 

copy of what was accepted in Edison a few years prior, was rejected due to 
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wording -- even though it was actually basically a copy, and there is no 

conflicting State statutes.   

 It’s my position that the political monopoly over the municipal 

machinery in New Brunswick basically allowed a single party to force out 

anyone, with the party or outside the party, that opposed them.  And that’s 

sort of why I’m coming here, because this can teach us a lesson about how 

redistricting should probably be for more competitive districts. 

 So while my organization sought legal redress against the 

County and municipality, students and other community members tried to 

gain representation on the party committee for Middlesex County.  Our 

canvassing was barred by the Municipal Clerk and the County Clerk, falsely 

citing residency requirements which should not apply, and with which the 

candidates were in compliance with anyway. 

 In areas without competition, party leaders are permitted to 

disregard ethnic and other groups because they are guaranteed a win.  This 

is not only bad for the public, but bad for the party.  Because if a party is 

not responsible to its own party members, then it ceases to have any 

meaningful connection to the people.  All these representatives are elected, 

but if there’s no connection then it seems rather hollow. 

 And these are very trying times which we’re speaking of.  So 

I’m here appearing before the Apportionment Commission to advocate on 

behalf of several policies, the first and foremost of which is competitive 

districts.  Without competition the interests of various communities are 

taken for granted and go unheard.  Now, with competition, both parties are 

really taken to task -- they are forced to compete for the votes of our various 
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communities: Latino, black; and also based on farmers, urban workers, and 

students -- which are a unique class for New Brunswick. 

 Now, the next policy is district size.  Now, I know this is 

somewhat outside the scope of the Apportionment Commission, but past 

Commissions have been tasked with not creating 40 districts, but actually 

80 districts for the Assembly.  Smaller district size is sort of the hallmark of 

the ward campaign -- the idea that smaller districts means less money, and 

more people who are just genuinely members of that community can vie for 

election.  And so smaller district size is something that should be looked at, 

especially when it was actually part of the process for past meetings of this 

Commission. 

 So I guess what I’m here to say is really that students and 

young persons, while they’re not federally protected as a voting group, it 

does seem clear that our ability to participate in this democracy rests, at 

least in some form, on creating conditions which cause both parties -- both 

Democratic and Republican parties -- to compete for our votes.  Because 

otherwise there doesn’t seem really to be a point.  And anything less creates 

a stagnant, unresponsive democracy -- which is really bad for everyone. 

 So thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I believe we have one question 

for you.  

 Vice Chair Asbury. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you. 
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 I understand that your range of expertise is usually in New 

Brunswick and Middlesex County, but are there any other areas in New 

Jersey where you feel that we need more competitive districts? 

 MR. ASPRAY:  For students, any of the areas surrounding our 

university campuses is a concern; there are a lot of commuter schools.  But I 

believe that students need to be a respected part, as sort of the future of 

New Jersey in electoral processes.  In areas such as Glassboro I know there 

have been some issues with the students of Rowan University also vying for 

representation.  And across New Jersey, competitive districts for ethnic and 

racial groups have always been an issue, and so that’s something that I’m 

also here to appeal upon. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  A quick question as well, if I could.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Palatucci. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:   I couldn’t let this go by.  I graduated 

Rutgers New Brunswick in 1980; there wasn’t a Republican Party there 

either.  (laughter)   

 But seriously, you bring up a good point that really hasn’t been 

talked about much in the past, though a couple of speakers have kind of 

touched on it a bit; I think Martin Perez did as well.  And that is that we 

need to be mindful, as well, of the intraparty rules that may or may not 

disenfranchise, or work to keep, whether it’s young people or certain ethnic 

voting groups, from participating.  Is that what you’re saying as well? 

 MR. ASPRAY:  Yes-- 
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 MR. PALATUCCI:  You mentioned that you -- I think one of 

the other previous speakers also talked about working within the 

Democratic Party as Democratic candidates. 

 MR. ASPRAY:  Yes, I believe that--  I mean, all this is outside 

the scope of this Commission.  I do believe that we do need widespread 

reforms to the State regulations, regulating both political parties in regards 

to transparency and the public access to their bylaws and various other 

processes, because otherwise they’re are just sort of things taken outside of 

the government that actually have a broad effect on our governance. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 Patricia Bombelyn, followed by Councilwoman Richardson, 

followed by William Ayala. 

P A T R I C I A   B O M B E L Y N,   ESQ.:  Good afternoon.  I want to 

say thank you so much for allowing me to appear here today.  And I want 

to commend you all for the hard work that you’re doing. 

 And as I sat and listened, and you contemplate that this is a 

huge task -- we know it’s so challenging -- and it’s going to impact all of us 

for 10 years and the opportunities that people have, I was reminded of that 

famous quote from, I think it’s Spider-Man movie: “With great power comes 

great responsibility.”  And we hope that, you know--  I’m feeling it here -- 

the task that you have on your shoulders.  And we want fair maps, we want 

constitutional maps, and we want to expand opportunity in New Jersey for 

people who otherwise get marginalized or elbowed out. 
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 I’m a lifelong resident -- half my life was spent in Passaic 

County, the other half in Middlesex County.  I’m an attorney.  I’ve been 

involved in union organizing; I come from a family of all union members -- 

lifelong workers, blue collar workers.   

 And what I want to bring to your attention is competition.  I 

think that what Congressman Sires said earlier, about that you have to--  

You’re going to be doing different things in different places.  We’ve heard 

these definitions thrown about -- packing and so on and so forth.  Now 

we’re talking about creating competitive districts, and I think in different 

areas there are different needs.   

 And you heard from the students -- and let me say to you that 

it was my privilege to work very closely with these students over the last 

two to three years and get to know them.  And I got to know them, because 

in Middlesex County there is a lack of competition.  And when 22 of them 

said, “We want to be members of our local party,” they were taken off the 

ballot, and not notified by a challenge or any of the deadlines that you’re 

supposed to provide such candidates -- but they were notified four hours 

before the deadline for filing your lawsuit to protect your candidacy.  And 

they’d gone to the County Clerk, and they’d said, “Are there any 

challenges?”  “No.”  “Are you sure?”  They go on the next deadline.  “Are 

we on the ballot?”  “You’re on the ballot, you’re on the ballot, you’re on the 

ballot.”  Four hours before a lawsuit had to be filed, they were notified.   

 I got to know them in that context, because I was able to file a 

challenge to taking them off -- and we won.  And they ran.  And they 

almost won a majority in New Brunswick -- almost.   
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 And it wasn’t them alone.  They were running in coalition with 

Latinos, African-Americans, and other members of the New Brunswick 

community who are marginalized.  And it was part of a larger organizing 

effort for wards.  And we want wards because we want more opportunity to 

be represented. 

 When competition is absent, those kinds of abuses can take 

place.  I was asked to debate a mayor -- an incumbent mayor of over 20 

years -- about wards, and all I said was I thought Montclair was a good 

example where wards work.  And I was told if I didn’t like it in New 

Brunswick I should move out of town -- on the radio, in public. 

 And that’s what we have when there’s no competition.  I echo 

the testimony of, of course, my partner and husband Martin Perez; Amy 

Braunstein and John Aspray; Julio Tavarez; Wilda Diaz; and the 

observation of Congressman Sires when he said, “You’ve got to do different 

things in different places, depending on what the needs are and what can be 

achieved, based on the demographics.”  I think that New Brunswick would 

benefit from being in a district with Perth Amboy and help address Perth 

Amboy’s needs -- also a city where I resided for some time in the past before 

I moved to New Brunswick. 

 And I’ll leave you with this observation:  The students who you 

heard from-- (timer rings)  I’m sorry.  The first time you’ve heard from 

college students, these are the college students that have been working so 

hard to gain representation for other groups in New Brunswick.  And we 

can reflect on what we saw in Egypt, which was also catalyzed by young 

people.  And I think we need to stand up and pay attention.  They want 
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transparency, they want representation.  I don’t know if you know that last 

November the FBI raided the very same County Clerk’s office that took 

them off the ballot.  But for their efforts -- seeking fair elections, 

transparency, being in the street, working with the communities -- that may 

not have happened.  But imagine that a search warrant was obtained in the 

Federal Court system for the County Clerk and the Board of Elections in 

Middlesex County.  And I submit to you that part of the problem there is 

that there isn’t enough competition. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Councilwoman Viola 

Richardson, followed by William Ayala, followed by Jose Bello. 

C O U N C I L W O M A N   V I O L A   R I C H A R D S O N:  Good 

afternoon.  I’d like to take this opportunity to thank the Commission for 

coming to Jersey City to allow us to have some input into this process. 

 I’d also like to acknowledge the Speaker of the Assembly, our 

Honorable Sheila Oliver. 

 I also agree with Congressman Sires who said that every one of 

these 40 districts is unique.  And so you can’t just take a look at all 40 and 

lump them together, but you have to do them individually and see what the 

needs of the people are. 

 When you take a look at the fact that in the 31st Legislative 

District there are 214,000 people--  Now, I agree with Senator 

Cunningham, who says that it’s a very diverse district.  And it is inclusive of 

not all ethnic groups, but age group, economic group, etc. 
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 But what we want to say is that the 31st Legislative District is 

not broken, so you don’t have to fix it.  That’s one that’s not broken, so you 

don’t have to fix that one, okay?   

 You have a momentous task in front of you, and I’m glad that 

you’re the ones who have to make this decision and not me.  But your job is 

to figure out what is the best interest of the communities that are 

represented -- not the best interest of the government, but of the 

communities.  And that’s a pretty hard task in front of you, but somebody 

has to do it.  Thank God it’s not me.   

 But let me say to you also that the thing that we really have to 

take a look at, also, is that there has been a great deal of undercounting that 

took place in the census -- especially in Jersey City.  Mayor Healy talks 

about the fact that we only gained 7,000 people, which is insane.  Seven 

thousand people are probably located in one of the high-rises downtown -- 

just one; and there are about 50,000 of them that have been put up.   

 So we need to have more Legislative Districts -- not less -- in 

New Jersey, especially in Hudson County.  We should not have less.  But 

the 31st is not broken, so we’re asking you not to fix it. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Councilwoman. 

 William Ayala, followed by Jose Bello, followed by the 

Reverend David Torres. 

W I L L I A M   A Y A L A,   ESQ.:  Good afternoon.  I’d like to thank the 

Commission for this opportunity to speak on the matter of drawing New 

Jersey’s 40 legislative districts. 
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 I want to address the issue of packing versus unpacking, 

because I think in this debate that we’ve seen here it’s been presented as a 

false dilemma.  It seems that we either have to pack or unpack, and what I’d 

like to submit is a definition that was put forth by the National Institute of 

Latino Policy.  And I’m citing this organization because about two weeks 

ago a large group of Latino voting rights activists from Massachusetts, New 

Jersey, New York, Rhode Island, Pennsylvania -- we all got together and we 

all decided to talk about what strategy we wanted to use in order to get 

fairer representation in our respective legislatures.  And everyone was 

looking at New Jersey -- we’re first up; we’re first out of the gate.   

 So I want to offer this definition:  The only point we would like 

to clarify is that packing usually refers not so much to all majority Latino 

districts, but rather to a district that has such a high percentage of Latinos -- 

let’s say 70 percent or so -- that it winds up wasting Latino votes that could 

go to other districts where Latinos could spread their influence.  A majority 

Latino district of more than 50 percent or so could or could not be 

considered packing, depending on the specific circumstances of the area it is 

in, especially when considering factors such as citizenship, age, and others 

that depress the level of Latino voter eligibility and participation levels.  

  Each of the two major political parties have their own 

strategies and approaches to engaging the Latino community, but this is an 

issue that Latinos need to determine independently in terms of what is best 

for their community. 

 So what we see here is that there is a range where you’re not 

packing or unpacking.  And if you take a look at New Jersey’s legislative 
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districts, when you’re talking about majority-minority I think you’re only 

talking about two: the district represented by Senator Stack, and also the 

district represented by Senator Rice.   

 Now, as I was sitting watching the proceedings, I noticed that 

some members of the Commission are reviewing a publication by the 

Brennan Center that has to do--  It’s the Citizen’s Guide to Redistricting.  I 

think it’s an excellent publication.  And also, Assemblywoman Quijano cited 

the NAACP publication, which was published with the Mexican-American 

Legal Defense Fund.  It’s also an excellent publication.  And I also 

recommend the ones produced by Eagleton Institute of Politics; they’re 

fantastic and instructive.  But if you take a look at every single one of them, 

they also say that you have to look at other circumstances when you’re 

considering drawing legislative districts. 

 You’ve heard from students today who addressed the issue of 

wards, because they think wards in the city is a more effective way of 

ensuring fair representation.  And as we look at trying to empower the 

Latino community, we have to look around the state and realize that in 

many cases, in 566 municipalities, the first opportunity for a single-member 

district, for a Latino to run, is mayor; because all the council districts are at-

large.  There are only three counties that I can see that use districts for 

freeholders.  And I also note that when we’re talking about the leadership -- 

and I’m also speaking about our Speaker of the Assembly, Madam Speaker; 

and also Albio Sires -- they came from two counties that use freeholder 

districts.  And when we’re looking at the Latino community -- so much of 

our community -- the first opportunity is to run for mayor or Senator for a 
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single-member district.  When we take a look at the Assembly, it’s a multi-

member district.  And if you take a look at all those publications that you 

have there, they all discuss how multi-member districts can harm minority 

representation. 

 One thing I’d like the Commission to consider is having nested 

districts, which would divide a Senate district into two equal districts.  The 

challenge there is the requirement for municipal integrity.  And there are 

other factors such as campaign finance, party structure, that have a negative 

impact on the Latino community. 

 So I ask you to take all these factors into consideration, and 

also county lines which have great significance when you’re talking about 

party organizations choosing candidates.  All these factors impact us, and 

it’s not just this one issue of drawing a legislative line. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Ayala, if you would hold on 

one moment. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  I’ll ask you a quick question just to make 

sure that you’re on the record, because I think you testified in Camden.  If 

not--  But just to ask you to clarify, because I don’t think you addressed it 

today:  Do you think the current map, as drawn, doesn’t adequately 

represent, or give adequate opportunity, for various minority communities 

to be represented in the Legislature? 

 MR. AYALA:  No, I don’t.  But again, that’s my opinion.  In 

Camden I was reading a statement from the President of the Alliance -- 
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Martin Perez -- and I didn’t take questions.  But I’d like to answer this 

question.  

 When you’re talking about packing and unpacking, and you’re 

talking about the issue of unpacking, I want you to consider how that effect 

is compounded down the line -- because Latinos don’t have the opportunity 

to run in wards and districts.  This is the first shot we have in a lot of 

communities.  So yes, that map -- I don’t think it works.  There is no way 

you can look at that map and say that it adequately reflects the population 

of New Jersey. 

 MR. PALATUCCI:  Thank you.  

 MR. AYALA:  Thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you.  (applause) 

 Jose Bello, followed by David Torres, followed by Christopher 

Irizarry. 

J O S E   R.   B E L L O:  Members of the Commission, my name is Jose 

Bello and I am here today as the National Director of the Dominican 

Redistricting Project.  This is a project of the Dominican Roundtable, an 

organization based in Washington, D.C., with membership chapters in 10 

states and Puerto Rico, which educates on civic duties and represents 1.5 

million Dominicans in the United States. 

 As a matter of background, we should inform you that 

Dominicans live wherever Hispanics live in the State of New Jersey, 

especially in the cities of Paterson, Passaic, Perth Amboy, Union City; as 

well as in Newark, Jersey City, and Elizabeth.  It is estimated that there are 
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more than 200,000 Dominican-Americans currently living in the Garden 

State. 

 We are here today because our project is focused on 

redistricting in several states, including Massachusetts, Rhode Island, New 

York, and New Jersey. After researching, working, and listening to 

Dominican and Hispanic community leaders all over New Jersey, we would 

like to make the following six recommendations for your consideration. 

 The first one is very straightforward:  The New Jersey 

Apportionment Commission should approve the map with more minority-

majority legislative districts.  This is, for instance:  If the Commission has to 

vote on two maps -- one proposing one majority-minority district; and the 

other map, let’s say, proposing five minority-majority districts, the 

Commission should approve the one with more, rather than less, majority-

minority districts.  This will not only reflect the demographic changes of the 

state, for example the 18 percent of Hispanics in this state, but also it will 

make your approved map to be in compliance with the spirit and the letter 

of the Voting Rights Act of 1965. 

 The second recommendation:  The current districts create only 

one, maybe two majority-minority districts.  If this Apportionment 

Commission keeps most of the current district boundaries, it will create 

only one -- that is, District 33, followed very closely by District 32, which 

has about 49 percent of Hispanics. 

 Three: Majority-minority districts help the election of 

candidates of choice for minority groups.  This is what is protected by law.  

Sometimes these candidates of choice will have last names such as 
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Rodriguez or Sanchez; other times, candidates of choice of minority groups 

will have last names such as Sarlo or Webber.  What is protected, given 

some circumstances, is that minority groups have the ability to elect the 

candidate of choice with majority-minority districts. 

 Fourth:  At-large Assembly districts, or in the case of New 

Jersey, multi-member districts, can harm the ability to elect candidates of 

choice in minority communities.  In addition, it should be said that 

multimember districts can harm the ability of Hispanic-origin candidates to 

be elected as well. 

 One strategy to create minority legislators, or candidates of 

choice of minorities’ communities, is to create Assembly districts nested 

inside of legislative districts.  The strategy will create in New Jersey 80 

single-member assembly districts with an ideal number of 110,000 people.  

As is the case in Newark and Jersey City, these single-member Assembly 

districts will probably divide towns and municipalities to achieve the 

number of people represented by each district.  By doing so, this 

Commission will have to secure the one person, one vote principle in Jersey 

City. 

 Finally, our final recommendation:  There is another strategy, 

whenever possible -- it is to unite communities of interest currently divided 

by municipal lines into legislative districts.  To illustrate this final 

suggestion, we would like this Commission to consider what is currently 

District 35, and the community of interest located within the cities of 

Paterson, Clifton, and Passaic. 
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 Let’s first take a look at District 35.  Right now as it is, it 

represents--  Inside of the boundaries are 46 percent of Hispanics.  If we 

change that district, as you can see on the map that you have in front of 

you, we could increase that district to 47 percent.  If you try farther, you 

can even increase that proposed new District 35 to 48 percent.  Therefore, 

although the population of Hispanics in this area has increased to a level to 

deserve a majority-minority district protected by law where they could elect 

a candidate of choice, if we have to be constrained by the town integrity 

principle we will not see an opportunity of creating in District 35 a district 

that represents 51 percent plus one (sic) minority votes.  However, if you 

consider the creation in some limited cases of districts that respect, 

primarily, the life of the community of interest, then it is possible to create 

additional majority-minority districts in the State of New Jersey. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Bello, is the balance of your 

testimony written-- 

 MR. BELLO:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  --in the presentation? 

 MR. BELLO:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  If you don’t mind, we’ll take the 

written testimony, the maps you’ve provided us--  I think this might be the 

first map someone has provided us -- thank you for that.   

 Any questions for-- 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  I do, I do.  I’m a little bit confused.   

 Hello, Mr. Jose Bello; how are you doing? 
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 Are you proposing that we split towns -- is that what I’m seeing 

here on the map -- in Paterson, in District 35?  That we split towns? 

 MR. BELLO:  This is one of the strategies that we are 

proposing. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Oh.  What is the logic behind it, of 

splitting towns? 

 MR. BELLO:  We are using here the Voting Rights Act of 

1965.  The concept here is that we--  Every time that there is an 

opportunity of even some circumstances -- one of them the numbers -- a 

majority-minority district should be created.  So in this case, if we add 

Paterson and Passaic using the town integrity concept, we can reunite them.  

It’s going to be above the ideal number.  So to achieve a majority-minority 

district of 50 percent plus one, we need to cross over Clifton in this case. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  May I? 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Go ahead. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblyman Cryan. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  I’m sorry, Mr. Bello, just as a 

follow-up, so you’re aware.  And thank you for the map.  It is our first map, 

so we’re all excited.  (laughter)  Thank you for that. 

 I do have to ask you, though, because the population deviations 

are fairly widespread on it.  You do know the districts should be at about 

220,000, right?   But my concern is, as you talk about communities of 

interest -- which is something we all have a focus on -- the map that you 

present which creates the majority-minority district doesn’t fit the 

requirements of the Constitution.  Are you aware, and are the folks that 
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you’re working with aware, we are not permitted to break up municipalities, 

with the exception of the state’s two largest cities -- Jersey City and Newark 

-- which have a population of above 220,000? 

 MR. BELLO:  Yes, we know that you are bound by your charter 

-- yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  Okay, so you understand that 

when that doesn’t happen -- because this Commission is restrained -- that 

it’s not in any way, shape, or form a rejection of what you proposed, but yet 

limited by the law as we have to work underneath it. 

 MR. BELLO:  Yes, we understand that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  All right, thank you. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  I have a question, Mr. 

Chairman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Speaker Oliver -- oh, I’m sorry. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Oh, yes.  Would you 

describe for me the strategy of increasing minority representation by 

creating a single-member Assembly district nestled inside of a legislative 

district?  Describe that to me. 

 MR. BELLO:  Bill Ayala presented a good argument about that, 

and I would like not to expand into that.  I would just like you to refer Bill 

Ayala’s comments.  (laughter) 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Okay. 

 MR. BELLO:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Thank you. 

 MR. BELLO:  Okay. 
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 MR. AYALA:  Do you want me to come up? 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Ayala, if you would like to 

address that. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Thank you, Mr. Ayala, yes. 

 What is your concept of creating a single-member legislative 

district nestled inside of a legislative district? 

 MR. AYALA:  If you take a look at the Brennan Center 

proposal, they have a good discussion on it.  But when you have--  New 

Jersey’s one area where you have what I would call a hybrid, but you have 

the boundaries that have an Assembly member, Senate district, and two -- a 

double-member Assembly district.  What you would have to do is divide 

that Senate district in half to have equal population.  The problem you 

would come up with, with that, is the requirement for municipal integrity.  

So this would take an act of the Legislature to accomplish.  But if you take 

a look at having 80 Assembly districts, you would have an--  It works the 

same way that wards do.  You shrink the district, and you have the 

opportunity where communities can elect--  You don’t have majority voters 

in the district swamping a minority enclave.  And that’s one of the 

arguments that we put forth that -- why we are concerned about unpacking 

a district.  When you have a district that, say, is only 25, 30 percent 

minority, it’s possible for the rest of that district to overwhelm that 

community and elect two non-minority representatives.  However, if you 

split it, then you have one majority-minority district in the Assembly. 
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 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Yes, we would have 

constitutional issues with that.  But I would make the proposition that 

multi-member districts, given the diversity of their candidacies in running, 

would offer broader opportunity for the election.  For instance, discussion 

was made, and pointed to two districts in Passaic County.  Now, without 

question Paterson, given its ethnic population, could certainly predominate 

and deliver a number of votes.  And I looked at some of the other proposals. 

 Well, I guess what I’m getting to the heart of is -- and previous 

speakers have touched upon it -- much of this also has to do with the local 

political apparatus committing to supporting multi-candidate tickets that 

are diverse.  Would you not agree with that?  Because last week I cited -- 

when I looked statewide at the growth of the Hispanic population from one 

end of this state to the other, starting at Salem and going all the way up, I 

was really astounded, when we got the census data delivered to us two 

weeks ago, at some of the communities in every sector of the state where 

you see phenomenal numbers of Hispanic residents living in those 

communities.  But when I look historically, the candidacies that are fielded, 

you don’t see that represented.  I pointed out Dover, as a matter of fact; 

when I looked at 62 percent of the population in Dover.  I looked at Asbury 

Park, and I also made mention of Monmouth Beach. 

 I don’t think the--  It’s more complex than just creating ward-

like districts for one minority candidate to run in, which--  By the way, I 

think it’s very effective when you have a multi-member kind of a structure, 

because if you do the right thing politically, you will structure tickets that 

are representative of that district.   
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 And so I think we have to work on that.  And some of the prior 

speakers made mention of that as well.  But I would suspect, first of all--  I 

get letters from people telling me there are too many legislators as it is, so--  

(laughter) (applause)  So I don’t think we could go the route of making 80 

new districts. 

 MR. AYALA:  No, I’m sorry.  I wasn’t talking about making 80 

new districts.  I’m saying taking--  We have a 120-member Assembly as it is 

right now. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Eighty. 

 MR. AYALA:  I’m sorry? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Eighty-member Assembly. 

 MR. AYALA:  No, I’m sorry -- in the Legislature.  Legislature. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  We have 120-- 

 MR. AYALA:  We have 40 Senate districts, and within each of 

those Senate districts, we elect two members of the Assembly. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Right. 

 MR. AYALA:  I’m saying, within that district just cut it in half, 

population-wise.  I’m not increasing the number of representatives; I’m just 

saying create a nestled district within that Senate district. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  But does that then get to be 

fair representation for the citizens that live within that district?  For 

instance, I represent the 34th Legislative District.  So if, in fact, we were to 

carve out one district within the 34th and just let that singular person or 

candidate run for that particular seat, don’t you think we’re then moving in 

the realm of discriminatory practice within a district? 
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 MR. AYALA:  No, I do not. 

 First of all, when you’re talking about legislative elections, the 

Senate and Assembly candidates don’t always run together -- it’s once every 

other election.  The Assembly terms are up every two years; and the Senate 

terms are up four years, except there’s one two-year term when you’re going 

through the redistricting.  Now, when you’re talking about running for a 

candidacy, you mentioned that the political party apparatus would choose 

the candidates so that they effectively represent-- 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  A particular political party. 

 MR. AYALA:  A particular--  In one area, you cited the example 

-- an urban example -- of Paterson.  But I also noticed that in your past 

questions you also mentioned that there are different factors in each 

legislative district, where our community is sometimes spread out.  And if 

you take a look at Middlesex County, we have a large population of Latinos 

in New Brunswick and a very large population in Perth Amboy.  When you 

divide that district to create a single-member district -- which we do in 

wards, which we do in the Senate -- I think that you have more of an 

identity with a specific community.  Now, what I heard Mayor Diaz speak 

about -- how Perth Amboy -- which provides a lot of Democratic votes, 

steady Democratic votes, and is growing -- is swallowed by a much-larger 

municipality.  If you were to create something where you split that district, 

and put Perth Amboy in its whole in one part of it, you really increase their 

leverage in that district to choose a candidate of their choice -- to vote for 

and elect. 
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 Now, there’s another factor that you mentioned -- political 

parties choosing.  I didn’t expound on this before, but in New Jersey’s -- 

under Title XIX, which establishes the structure for political party 

structures -- they’re based on municipal lines, they’re based on county lines, 

and also the financing of those candidates.  And when you’re talking about 

financing of candidates for the Legislature, those candidates that are backed 

by political parties have an overwhelming advantage, financially, over 

anyone who wants to challenge them in a primary. 

 So what we’re talking about is that when we face other factors  

-- incumbency -- maybe we have a community candidate who doesn’t agree 

with the political parties.  They’re not on equal footing in their ability to 

run.  And you’re talking about concentrating power in a very, very small 

group of individuals.  And that’s difficult for us because we’re not at the 

forefront; we’re not chosen, as Latinos, as much as we should be.   

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Yes, I hear you, and I know 

we can’t belabor this, but I would love to have a more detailed discussion 

with you about this; because I think a lot of this also is reflective of the 

ability to organize and mobilize.  Because I could point to you significant 

instances of candidates having success without having the most money, 

without being backed by a particular party. 

 MR. AYALA:  I love those candidates. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  But that’s a discussion for 

another day -- you and I will have. (laughter) 

 MR. AYALA:  But if I could just close up on one point.  
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  I had a conversation with another attorney a couple of days 

ago who mentioned a campaign finance system in Arizona that’s now the 

subject of a Supreme Court review, I believe.  And there was one point 

made that, when you equalize the finance structure you increase 

participation, and it’s fairer.  We didn’t have the time to discuss, in depth, 

but there’s also a fairness argument to this legislative -- the drawing of lines 

process.  And the point I wanted to make was that drawing the lines does 

not exist in a vacuum; there are other factors.  Now, when we’re talking 

about nestled districts, my opinion is that it gives that community, 

especially in the case of Perth Amboy -- to have more leverage in the county 

political structure, and to choose candidates of choice.   

 But this requires a district-by-district-by-district analysis in 

order to realize that there is no one methodology that can apply throughout 

the entire state.  And yes, Dover’s very interesting, because what happens if 

you have a nestled district in Morris County around a Dover or around a 

Morristown.  And I think it changes the calculus for Latino representation, 

the ability for us to mobilize.  Because then we have a chance, and we don’t 

have to go to someone else.  And I think that that would be one factor, one 

method to address.   

 And we could also talk about having a New Jersey version of 

the Voting Rights Act that provides greater protections for minorities.  We 

could do a lot more.  But this is the battle we’re fighting today.  And that 

was just one recommendation. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Thank you. 

 MR. AYALA:  Thank you, Madam Speaker. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  We have one more member with 

a question. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  I do. 

 MR. AYALA:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  And Mr. Cryan also? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  Go ahead, Mr. Chairman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Mr. Ayala, thank you for 

your testimony. 

 I want to make sure I understand.  A part of what you’re saying 

is that the map is important, but also the political process that underlies the 

map is equally important. 

 MR. AYALA:  Yes, sir. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  And so that it’s not all 

about the map, in terms of increasing minority representation; it’s about the 

process that either selects candidates, or funds candidates, or creates 

political organizations. 

 MR. AYALA:  That’s correct.  And I think that’s represented in 

a lot of the literature that’s out there -- that you have to look at the totality 

of circumstances; you have to look at all these other factors. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Just to correct the record, 

because you understand that in the 19th District you were talking about -- 

which I represent -- that political process--  You know, sometimes it works 

and sometimes it doesn’t.  Joe Vas was my running mate for six years-- 

 MR. AYALA:  I know Joe Vas; yes. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  --defeated Arline Friscia in a 

convention-- 

 MR. AYALA:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  --before the primary.  So it 

works both ways.  It’s not as though that political process only precludes 

minority candidates.  In that particular case, the minority candidate 

defeated the non-minority candidate. 

 MR. AYALA:  That’s correct, but I think there’s an interesting-- 

You’re talking about defeating a candidate in a convention -- the 

convention selection process.  The selection process for candidates statewide 

differs from county to county.  Bylaws are different from county to county.  

And then when you talk about county lines, in your case you’re talking 

about a district that is wholly contained within one county -- Middlesex 

County.  You have other circumstances where that’s not the case -- they 

cross county lines.  Now, for the purposes of drawing the lines you don’t 

consider county integrity; however, county lines become much more 

important when you consider other factors, as far as financing and as far as 

dealing with two different methodologies, with two different counties, of 

picking a candidate. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Right; but in terms of just--  

I wanted to make sure that the record was clear.  In terms of the 19th 

District, because the conversation thus far -- Mayor Diaz, yourself -- has 

implied that there has been no minority representation in the 19th.  And I 

just wanted to make sure-- 
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 But the other question I had for you:  So your advocacy is to 

create 80 Assembly districts? 

 MR. AYALA:  Not 80 additional to the 80 we already have. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  No, no, but-- 

 MR. AYALA:  But to have nestled districts within the Senate 

districts. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  How do--  I mean, the 

Constitution sets forth our current structure.  How do we do that in 

creating this-- 

 MR. AYALA:  You’d have to change-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  In creating this map with 

this Constitution, how do we do that and not violate our Constitution? 

 MR. AYALA:  You would have to--  The challenge is the 

municipal integrity provision that you’re citing.  You can’t do nestled 

districts if you maintain municipal integrity -- it’s impossible.  We 

understand that.  But there is a process for changing those provisions within 

the Constitution.  There is a process for changing those provisions -- there 

are statutory provisions which establish county lines for political party 

structure. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  But you would agree that 

we would have to amend the Constitution? 

 MR. AYALA:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Okay, thank you. 

 MR. AYALA:  But that’s--  To create a fairer map, I think that 

that would be a worthy undertaking. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Assemblyman Cryan, you have a 

question? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  No, no thank you, Chair. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  No? 

 Mr. Ayala, thank you, 

 All right.  The Reverend David Torres, followed by Christopher 

-- is it Irizarry? -- followed by Marie Day. 

 Now, before the Reverend gives his testimony:  For those of you 

keeping score, we’ve had, by my count, 17 speakers; we have 46 to go 

(laughter),  which is wonderful news because we’re getting great information 

from everybody who comes up here.  And we appreciate your involvement. 

 I wanted to indicate to you, or let you know that at about 4:00 

the Commission will take a brief break and come back and finish.  But until 

then we’ll continue as we have. 

 Reverend Torres, the floor is yours. 

R E V E R E N D   D A V I D   T O R R E S:  Thank you. 

 Good afternoon to all.  My name is Reverend David Torres.  I 

represent the Evangelical Pastor Association of Monmouth and Ocean 

County, and also affiliated Evangelical Pastor Association of Hudson, and 

the Church of God (indiscernible)  

 Please note that I am not a political expert, I am simply-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  (raps gavel) Mr. Torres, hold on 

a second. 
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 If we could give the speaker the courtesy of not speaking in the 

background.  We have plenty of room outside if you’d like to speak. 

 Thank you, Reverend. 

 REVEREND TORRES:  Thank you. 

 Please note that I am not a political expert, I am simply a 

humble minister who knows Hispanics are growing in New Jersey but are 

underrepresented. 

 In the Legislature we have 18 percent, but only have one 

Senator and six Assembly reps.  Please take the growing of our community 

to count when making the new map. 

 And that is the only thing that I wanted to ask you -- just to 

make sure that in the new map you get more Hispanics and more people 

involved. 

 Thank you so much for your time.  (applause) 

 Christopher Irizarry, followed by Marie Day, followed by Mike 

Taylor. 

C H R I S T O P H E R   F.   I R I Z A R R Y:  Good afternoon to 

members of the board.  My name is Christopher Irizarry.  I am the 

President and CEO of the North Hudson Community Action Corporation, 

which is a private, not-for-profit organization.  We actually provide services 

throughout the County of Hudson, Passaic, and Bergen counties.  We are a 

federally qualified health center in addition to a community action agency. 

 Last year, to give you an idea of the scope of the services we 

provide to the residents of the State of New Jersey, as the largest 

(indiscernible) in the State of New Jersey, we actually handled 245,000 
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patient visits.  A great majority of those patients that we see are of Latin 

descent.  The two communities which we see most of the folks -- both in the 

community action agency as well as the federally qualified health center -- 

reside in both Union City and West New York.  

 Now, I understand that the 33rd District is a point of 

contention, and I’d like to just explain the importance that--  Union City 

and West New York are two extremely similar communities -- they are both 

Abbott Districts, and I can tell you that currently the 33rd District, the 

Latinos make up over 50 percent of the representation in those 

communities. 

 I find it disturbing to consider the fact that these municipalities 

may be separated when redrawing these maps.  And the reason is because, 

not so much the Latino representation, but the factors that are common to 

both people from Union City and West New York.  You have folks that are 

impoverished; you have folks that work two to three jobs to make ends 

meet.  There are a lot commonalities between these two communities that 

cannot be separated by a boundary.  And what that basically does for this 

community is empower them to fight for and to be represented in order to 

provide all of the services -- social services, educational services -- that they 

need as Latinos living in our community. 

 And I think that that’s imperative to think about when you talk 

about redrawing these maps.  We have to keep in mind that their priority in 

Union City and West New York is unique.  And the fact that they’ve been 

under the same legislative district has empowered them to receive the 

appropriate services -- social services, health case services, and services in 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

education -- that they need.  Since 2004, Union City and West New York 

have built six brand new schools.  That hasn’t been because just the fact 

that they’re Abbot Districts; it’s been the fact that they want education for 

their children.  And so it’s an extremely delicate situation when you talk 

about taking the Latino community and splitting them. 

 And one of the very interesting things that Martin Perez said 

during his testimony was that there are six Assembly people that are of 

Latino descent in the Legislature.  Well, yes -- three of them come from 

Hudson; two come from the 33rd District.  The 33rd District has provided 

leadership in elected office, including Senator Robert Menendez.  So I think 

it’s very important that while we discuss redistricting, we’re very careful to 

not go backwards.  And I think that when we talk about creating more 

opportunity for Latinos, that we don’t start thinking about taking steps 

backwards in districts such as the 33rd. 

 So I thank you for your time and I’m sure it must not be 

comfortable sitting all these hours. 

 So thank you very much for the opportunity to speak.  

(applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Marie Day, followed by Mike 

Taylor, followed by Councilman Ravi Bhalla. 

M A R I E   D A Y:  Good afternoon.  My name is Marie Day.  I’m a small 

business owner, and a healthcare professor, and a former candidate for 

office. 

 I thank the Commission for coming to Jersey City.  We need 

you.   
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 We are a Caribbean community, and other communities of 

America need to be seen and heard. 

 Our city remains in trouble, and I believe now, as I did in the 

past, that we citizens must take an active role in making the corrections our 

community needs -- the corrections that will make Jersey City once again a 

place to live, work, shop, and raise a family.  And a place we can be proud 

of again. 

 The local path to change, however, is littered with bleached 

bones and the debris of the political machine.  The communities of the 

underserved must be given a better chance at change; and change comes by 

accessing public office.  We have untapped energy, creativity, resources, and 

the desire to better our city and all our communities.  We are Americans -- 

good Americans, yet with the stroke of a pen, a line across a page, we are 

disenfranchised.  I implore the Commission not to allow us to suffer for 

another lost decade. 

 I respectfully ask of the Commissioners not to look at the map 

in black and white, but in many colors.  New Jersey has many faces, and so 

one family -- we will only be perfect together when we are together. 

 Please give us, the Caribbean community, and all the new 

American communities more opportunities.  Give us a map that franchises 

us, not disenfranchises. 

 Thank you, and may God bless you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mike Taylor, followed by 

Councilman Ravi Bhalla, followed by Councilwoman Rebecca Williams. 
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M I K E   T A Y L O R:  Good afternoon, Chairman Webber, Speaker 

Oliver, honored members of the Commission.  My name is Mike Taylor; 

I’m from West Orange, New Jersey, and I’m here to talk about the 

boundaries of the 27th District. 

 In 1991, the 27th District was a minority or majority-minority 

district.  It comprised West Orange, Orange, Montclair, East Orange, and a 

small part of Newark.  Ten years ago, that minority-majority district was 

taken apart.  I believe the new term I learned today -- it was cracked.  And 

what happened was a large minority population was split in half, even 

though it was geographically contiguous, and it destroyed a minority-

majority community and created two districts that were not. 

 This seems to be counterproductive to the direction we’re 

going.  And what I came to do is to tell you that at your last meeting in 

Newark you had a parade of mayors telling you that you should retain the 

27th District as it stands.  And I’m here today to say that that is not how 

all of us in the 27th District feel. 

 I would like to see the boundaries of the 27th District restored 

to where they were in 1991, because that is more representative of the 

diverse communities that comprise what is the 27th District.  In 1991, 

Speaker Oliver, you and I lived in the same Legislative District.  Ten years 

later, that is no longer the case -- she lives in East Orange, I live in West 

Orange, and they’re not that far apart.  

 So I just want to ask this body today to rectify what is a 

political injustice committed against the minority community in suburban 
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Essex County, and restore the boundaries of the 27th District to where they 

were in 1991 -- or somewhere similar. 

 Thank you.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Questions?  (no response) 

 Thank you. 

 Councilman Ravi Bhalla, followed by Councilwoman Rebecca 

Williams, followed by Agha Khan.  

C O U N C I L M A N   R A V I N D E R   S.   B H A L L A,   ESQ.:  

Good afternoon, Chairman Webber, and Chairman Wisniewski, and 

members of the Commission. 

 My name is Ravi Bhalla; I’m a Councilman-at-Large of the City 

of Hoboken, and also Chairman of the Democratic Party in Hoboken, New 

Jersey.  But I come to you here today--  And also, by way of background I’m 

also the only elected Asian-American official in Hudson County. 

 But I don’t comer to you here today as a public official; I 

decided to leave my suit and tie at home and come to you here today as a 

resident, an Asian-American resident of Hudson County, and of Hoboken, 

and New Jersey. 

 I want to start with a little story.  Last week I was in Newark, 

New Jersey, at a meeting, and an elderly woman pulled me aside and said, 

“Hey, are you Egyptian?  Because you guys really know how to get it 

together out there.”  (laughter)  And I said, “No, ma’am, I’m originally from 

India, which is a part of Asia, but it’s not from the Middle East -- I’m not 

from the Middle East.”  And I should not assume everyone here knows 

what an Asian-American is.  By the way, the U.S. Census defines Asian-
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American, it’s a very broad category.  It includes South Asians, people from 

India, from Pakistan, from Sri Lanka, Bangladesh -- even from Afghanistan.  

Those are all Asian-Americans.  It includes East Asians from China, Korea, 

Japan; it includes Southeast Asia -- individuals from the Philippines, 

Thailand, Malaysia, Vietnam, and Cambodia.  So it’s a very broad category 

of people that we should consider. 

 Out of 120 State legislators in New Jersey, we only have two 

Asian-American legislators.  I would submit that is very unfortunate and 

needs to be addressed in this process.  

 And I would also submit that it’s nothing more than 

happenstance that we even have two, because Assemblyman Chivukula, I 

would submit, is not an Asian-American Assemblyman, but he’s an 

Assemblyman who happens to be Asian-American. Senator O’Toole, I 

would not (sic) submit, is an Asian-American Senator, but he is a Senator 

who happens to be Asian-American.  I am not an Asian-American 

Councilman, but I am a Councilman who just happens to be Asian-

American.  And I say that because we were not elected on the backs of the 

Asian-American community; we were elected in districts where--  We were 

elected for some other reason other than our ethnic heritage. 

 But I think things are changing in Hudson County, and they’re 

going to be changing more in the next two, four, six, and eight years.  In 

Hoboken, you have an expanding number of Asian-American young 

professionals who have come to Hoboken to live and work.  You also have 

at least two wards in Jersey City -- Ward E and Ward C -- that have 

substantial Asian-American populations. 
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 And I really feel this creates an opportunity; it creates an 

opportunity to elect an Asian-American legislator in Hudson County in the 

next 10 years.  Not a legislator who, by chance, happens to be Asian-

American; but a legislator who receives the support and the backing of the 

growing Asian-American population in Hudson County. 

 The only way this can happen is if the Commission does not 

fracture the Asian-American populations within Hudson County; but rather 

brings them together. 

 So all I would ask the Commission to do in this process is 

please take a look at the numbers, and take a look at where Asian-

Americans reside, and see if it’s possible to apportion one district within 

Hudson County that gives Asian-Americans a fighting chance to elect a 

legislator from the community and with the support of their community. 

 Thank you very much for your time. I appreciate it.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Councilman. 

 We’re going to do the following two witnesses, then we’ll have 

the break.  Following the break, we’ll start with Andrew Bloschak and Tilo 

Rivas. 

 So Rebecca Williams, Councilwoman from Plainfield, followed 

by Agha Khan. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMISSION:  She’s gone. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Gone.  Mr. Khan; then we’ll 

bump up Mr. Bloschak; and Mr. Rivas will go after the break, followed by 

Russell Cote. 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

A G H A   K H A N:  Good afternoon, and thank you.  And I welcome you 

and thank you for all the hard work you are doing for the communities. 

 My name is Agha Khan.  I am CEO of a Pakistani-American 

think tank, and CEO of the American-Muslim Foundation, and also 

(indiscernible) of the Republican Party of Hudson County. 

 I came over here from Pakistan some 35 years ago, and thanks 

to hard work and opportunity, I am one of the millions of success stories 

America produces every day.  Yet I have one concern about -- of our county.  

We have millions of people underrepresented; sociologists call us the New 

Americans.  Personally I’m glad I’m (indiscernible) to be a new anything.  

(laughter) 

 Many of these people are here, right here in Jersey City, 

Hudson County.  These New Americans are smart, and energetic, and eager 

to fully participate in the process and serve this County.  But they cannot 

because the local system does not see them.  Their windows are dirty with 

the politics of the past.  I ask the Commissioners to look for the rainbow -- 

the rainbow that is the people of New Jersey.  Use that rainbow to color 

your maps.  Give Asian-Americans a chance to serve. 

 The Pakistani and Asian communities are ready to do this --

share to keep New Jersey moving and growing.  We are better able to do 

that with fair and accurate maps, not with bad maps, bad counts, and the 

politics from the past. 

 Thank you, Commissioners. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Questions? (no response) 

 Thank you, Mr. Khan.  (applause) 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Andrew Bloschak; then the 

Commission will break.  Leading off after the break will be Tilo Rivas and 

Russell Cote. 

A N D R E W   M.   B L O S C H A K:  Good afternoon, distinguished 

members of the 2011 Legislative Apportionment Commission.  My name is 

Andrew M. Bloschak.  I’m a 27-year, working-class resident of Belleville, 

New Jersey -- the Cherry Blossom Capital of America. 

 I have two of my four children in Belleville’s public schools, and 

coach baseball in town.  I’m a member of the United Workers Union Local 

595, and a former legislative director for a postal workers union local.   

 I have been a longtime civil activist, and I come here today 

because my town needs to go in a new direction for a new decade.  As you 

all know, in 2001, Belleville and our neighbors in Bloomfield were merged 

with Irvington and parts of four Newark wards to form a new 28th District.  

This was in contrast to districts of the 1980s and 1990s that placed 

Belleville with other suburban communities.  Both Democrats and 

Republicans did a great job representing us in Trenton in those previous 

districts.  Since the district change of 10 years ago, Belleville faced 

economic and fiscal challenges as a result of being overlooked in State 

representation.  We have received little real support for needed 

redevelopment of our business districts or for making our schools excel.  

This must change to make Belleville a dynamic community once again. 

 Belleville must rely on its local property tax to finance schools 

and municipal services.  With little outside help and declining business 
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base, town residents have seen large property tax increases over the past 

decade. 

 We do not have celebrity entertainers and entrepreneurs 

assisting us with funding schools, or massive State and Federal aid.  I 

certainly champion Newark’s revival, but we must also look out for 

Belleville.  Belleville is an increasingly diverse community.  Like many of 

our neighborhood first-ring suburbs, Belleville has a minority-majority 

population as reported in 2010’s Census.  This diversity is a testament to 

our strengths as a community in attracting residents of all backgrounds that 

seek affordable home ownership with safe streets and good schools, as well 

as relying on our residents to fund programs. 

 Our Township of Belleville, and our friends in Bloomfield, are 

more in synch with Nutley, southwest Bergen, Secaucus, Kearny, Clifton, 

Totowa, Little Falls, Woodland Park, Wayne, and West Essex than we are 

with Newark.  It is easy to draw a new district or a combination of some of 

these towns that would be an ethnically diverse middle-class district where 

each town would have a seat at the table. 

 And this is why, ladies and gentlemen, I have spent much of the 

last month braving the weather to get my fellow Belleville residents to sign a 

petition to remove the Township of Belleville from the 28th District and 

place it in a new district like the one I described.  Several of our other 

township residents have circulated attached petitions as well.  While I 

would have been able to get more signatures had we not had the most 

January snow since World War II -- okay? -- I still received overwhelming 

support from Belleville residents of all ethnic backgrounds, neighborhoods, 
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and political parties.  Regular people understand the Cherry Blossom 

Capital is a great place to live, but we can make it a much stronger and 

more dynamic community with better representation. 

 I plan to continue getting more signatures, but I submit to the 

Commission what I have today; and I will submit a final copy to the 

Commission, Governor Christie, and my Mayor Kimble.  We need to create 

districts with communities of common interest, and changing which district 

Belleville is in would be a step in accomplishing that goal.  Please consider 

the voices of my neighbors when you are deciding how to best create a new 

map. 

 Any questions? 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any questions?  

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  Just a quick one:  How many 

signatures do you have? 

 MR. BLOSCHAK:  Well, right now I have over 100, okay?  I 

have three other people in town getting me signatures.  I plan, between now 

and March 5, myself to go out for four or five hours a day -- since the 

weather is beginning to moderate -- and knock on at least 200 doors.  In my 

career, I was a mailman for nine years, so I don’t mind walking.  (laughter)  

I used to knock off a 400-stop route in about three hours in my youth.  I’m 

62 years old now, but I can still move pretty fast. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I didn’t think weather stopped 

you.  (laughter) 
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 MR. BLOSCHAK:  No -- remember the thing about the 

mailman, though: Neither rain nor snow, nor the gloom of night shall stop 

him from his appointed rounds.  I still believe in that.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any other questions? 

 MR. BLOSCHAK:  Any other questions?  Just one side note-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you for your interest and 

your energy in getting involved in this process. 

 MR. BLOSCHAK:  Okay, one side note is the three towns, 

Belleville, Nutley, and Bloomfield, broke away from Newark 172 years ago.  

It used to be called the Second River section, all right?  And in Belleville, 

right where the Second River is, there was a battle fort during the 

Revolutionary War.  In fact, Rutgers is buried in the cemetery behind the 

old Presbyterian Church on Main Street, and so is Horatio Hornblower; 

and about 200 Revolutionary War soldiers are buried in that cemetery also.   

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Can they vote?  

(laughter) 

 MR. BLOSCHAK:  So Belleville has a fantastic--  It has a very   

-- a rich history, the town.  So I just appreciate when you redistrict, consider 

Belleville.  I appreciate it. 

 Thank you very much for allowing me to speak today. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you very much. 

 I have just about 4:00.  We will reconvene at 4:15 with Tilo 

Rivas, followed by Russell Cote. 

 

(RECESS) 
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AFTER RECESS: 

 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  (raps gavel) If we could 

reconvene. 

 We will start this session with the testimony of Tilo Rivas, 

followed by Russell Cote, followed by Lyle Himmel. 

T I L O   E.   R I V A S:  Good afternoon, and welcome to Hudson 

County.  My name is Tilo Rivas, Freeholder.  I’m also Commissioner of 

Union City in the 33rd District. 

 I’m going to be very brief and only refer about the 33rd 

District, in particular. 

 The 33rd District particularly has got something very unique -- 

it’s community; a community comprised of mostly Hispanics in West New 

York, also in Union City.  Two communities are pretty much alike; two 

communities with the same interests; two communities with the same 

struggle; two communities interested in being only one voice -- being heard 

in one voice.  To be represented equally. 

 And these two communities have many common bonds, but 

they are pretty much the same bonds.  And we would like to--  I would like 

to pinpoint this fact that Union City, for instance, and West New York --

they have a special interest in education.  We have made education a 

priority in the area in order for us to fight the drop-out rate which is very 

significant.  Actually, currently it’s been building the Hudson County 

Community College building now, in the area, in order to be able fight that 
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problem right now.  And we are going to be serving the area of West New 

York and Union City as well. 

 So if -- in the case that the 33rd District is not being kept the 

same way that it is right now, then the idea of keeping education a priority 

is going to be diluted now -- it’s going to be watered down, and all the 

efforts that have been done throughout the years -- everything is going to go 

down the drain. 

 So I plead:  Please, let’s keep the 33rd District intact now, now 

that we need it.  Now, that is your call.  We need that;  I plead you.  

 Thank you very much.   

 Any questions?  (no response) 

 Thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Russell Cote, followed by Lyle 

Himmel, followed by Lewis Candura. 

 I was remiss in not mentioning that Commissioner Palatucci 

had to go because of a family commitment, so he’s going to miss the second 

session. 

 I also spoke with the Commissioner and our Commissioners at 

the break, and wanted to suggest to Chairman Wisniewski and the rest of 

the Commission that the Commission begin to think about additional 

hearings -- public hearings -- in the next couple of weeks.  Each public 

hearing we’ve had has had more witnesses and more testimony than the 

last.  I know that, I think, Commissioner Sarlo has suggested having one in 

his district, and I know that Mayor Diaz offered to have one in her district, 

and-- 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Actually, Mr. Palatucci 

offered to have one in her district. (laughter) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  There was perhaps some 

solicitation involved in that.  She gladly accepted the suggestion.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  She accepted; she did. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  So in any event, not to be-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  I think Mr. Paulsen 

(phonetic spelling)  and Counsel can work it out and submit dates to the 

Commission. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I think we should work on that.  

And, again, I’m grateful for everyone coming out -- a terrific public turnout 

for an important process.  So thank you, and we look forward to speaking 

about more hearings real soon. 

 Mr. Cote. 

R U S S E L L   C O T E:  I would agree -- the more hearings, the better. 

 I’m going to be real quick.  I want to thank the Commission for 

having these meetings; and again, I think the more meetings the better.  I 

think we should have one a week until we’re done.  That would just be my 

opinion. 

 My name is Russell Cote; I come from Keyport.  But it was nice 

having the chance to come back up to Jersey City.  I lived at 85 Van 

Reypen Street for 10 years.  They called it Maniac Mansion when I was 

there.  I’m not sure if that’s because I was there, but that might have 

preceded me.  (laughter)  I’m not sure on that.  
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 I’m here for myself, as a voter of New Jersey.  I’m also here as a 

representative of the Bayshore Tea Party Group’s Redistricting Committee.  

And I just want to talk about some greater -- what I believe to be greater 

principles. 

 The Constitution is pretty--  It’s not -- I wouldn’t say it’s clear, 

no Constitution’s are, but I think in overriding principles that I haven’t 

heard much of today--  We’ve heard the number 220,000, give or take; we’d 

like to see a map that reflects that.  We’d like to see a map that doesn’t go 

higher or lower than 5 percent.  I know there’s been some -- over the years, 

over the redistricting process, it’s gone as high as 14 percent up or down; as 

low down to 4.9 percent up or down.  So somewhere in the neighborhood 

of 5 to 10 percent we think, again, is fair.  I know it’s not possible to come 

up with a map that has 220,000 exactly, but as close to that as possible -- 

that’s the population consideration. 

 We think the compactness consideration is important.  I’m here 

to make your job as easy as possible, which is:  We’ve got the State of New 

Jersey, we have 8.7 million people, we got the Constitution that says 

population, compactness, contiguous -- okay?  The Court throws in a couple 

of other considerations, I acknowledge that; however, there are only three 

constitutional provisions that come directly from Article IV, Section II.   

 That being said, you take the State of New Jersey, divide it up 

into 40 districts -- you’re done.  That’s it -- okay?   

 Now, for three hours -- three-and-a-half or so hours, I’ve heard 

a lot of other considerations, and I understand that.  That’s why we have 

representatives -- whether it be in a community, in the Assembly, and the 
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Legislature, etc.  I get that, and I don’t think that they are to be wholesale 

discarded.  I would just like to say that there are other considerations that 

are greater and that come directly from the Constitution.   

 One thing I think that everybody here can agree on -- and I lost 

a lot of people, but that’s okay -- is that one consideration that should not 

be taken into effect in any way, shape, or form is the job security of any 

present legislator anywhere in the State of New Jersey.  If you lose your seat 

because of fair redistricting -- so be it.  That’s the way it goes.  And I would 

just like to get that on the record, because I haven’t heard it said today.  I 

do not think that that is a viable, respectable, constitutional consideration 

to be taken into when redrawing these maps. 

 I’d like to, on that note, go back to the testimony from Toms 

River.  I’d like to just read back into the record a quote from a colleague of 

mine and a friend, Sean Spinello. And I quote, “As you, Commission 

members, consider your proposed maps, we ask that you always consider 

this question:  Would you propose the same map if you were sitting here at 

this table as an independent thinker, as an independent voter of the State 

of New Jersey -- with family and friends throughout all the great counties of 

New Jersey -- as you will ultimately propose and support as partisan elected 

officials, as members of the Commission?  We ask you to consider that in 

this regard.”  I think that’s important. 

 The second thing -- and I’ll get out of here -- I’d like to talk 

about something that Ms. Perez-Cruz (sic) said at the beginning that I 

wholeheartedly agree with, and that is a major consideration should be that 

we don’t want to pit one group against another.  I agree with that 100 
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percent -- 100 percent.  I’ve heard that for three-and-a-half hours, though 

this is what it creates -- this is what partisanship creates.  Drilling it down to 

the lowest common denominator -- I’m talking wards here.  We’re talking 

members--  Like a thousand-person districts and special interest in each.  

That’s what happens; and the natural effect of that is to pit one group 

against another.  Instead of closing your eyes, here’s the State of New 

Jersey, 8.7 million people, 220,000 per district -- pack it up -- done.  That’s 

it.   

 And I’ll tell you why:  It’s because we should not be fighting 

against each other.  But if we need to have a fight, let’s have a fight in the 

marketplace of ideas.  I personally welcome that fight as a member of the 

Bayshore Tea Party Group; we welcome that fight.  And I think everybody 

in here welcomes that fight.  Let’s have this fight in the intellectual arena; 

let’s not fight against each other.   

 Ladies and gentlemen, again, I want to thank you for having 

these meetings.  I look forward to many others. 

 Thank you very much; take care.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Lyle Himmel, followed by Lew 

Candura, followed by Edith Jorge. 

L Y L E   H.   H I M M E L:  First, I would like to thank the Commission 

members for being here and hearing the public on this most important 

matter to our democratic process. 

 My name is Lyle Himmel; I’m also here as a citizen of New 

Jersey, and also to represent the Bayshore Tea Party Group, which is in 

Middletown, New Jersey.  I’m a resident of Aberdeen, New Jersey. 
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 We would like to come out and oppose very vociferously the 

practice of partisan gerrymandering by either party -- the Republican or the 

Democratic Party.  As you probably know, partisan gerrymandering occurs 

when the parties in power manipulate district maps to benefit a particular 

candidate or a particular party.  This effectively disenfranchises and nullifies 

votes of New Jersey’s citizens and results in elected officials no longer being 

accountable to the people.  This effects everybody in New Jersey, no matter 

what ethnicity, what group their in, what party they belong to.  And we 

would hope that the maps that are drawn do not have gerrymandering. 

 I think that the New Jersey Constitution takes a formula that 

actually, if you follow the formula, would protect against gerrymandering.  

The Constitution states -- I’m sorry, I have the wrong section up here.  I’m 

not sure where it is.  Okay, I’m not going to be able to quote; I don’t have 

the right section there.  But the Constitution states that the districts need 

to be contiguous, they need to be compact, and as equal as possible.  Also, 

the Constitution states as a guiding principle that no county or municipality 

should be divided into more than one district, unless it has more than one-

fortieth of the population of the state -- which, as we have mentioned, is 

around 220,000.  That means that there are only two municipalities in the 

state that should have more than one district, and those are Jersey City and 

Newark.  But the Constitution further states that if a county or 

municipality needs to be divided because the population is more than 

220,000, it needs to be--  The population of the town or the county should 

be divided by 220,000 and then you add that number plus one.  So that 

means a city like Newark or Jersey City should only have two districts.  A 
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county such as Bergen County, which has -- I don’t know the exact amount 

-- but somewhere between 900,000 and 1 million people,  should--  If you 

divide that by 220,000, you get four and a remainder -- so no more than 

five districts.  If you follow these formulas, this should be a protection 

against gerrymandering and should be a protection that would help 

everybody’s votes count. 

 This would lead to competitive districts throughout the state, 

which is something so many speakers here have spoken about -- that we 

want competitive districts.  We want there to be competitive races, and not 

to have districts drawn so that one particular candidate in one particular 

party has an advantage over the other.  It will allow more opportunities for 

different groups to have their voices heard.  And most importantly, for 

every citizen of the State of New Jersey it will allow every vote in New 

Jersey to count. 

 Again, thank you for coming here today to hear the public 

speak about this very important matter.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 Lew Candura, followed by Edith Jorge, followed by Victor 

Grullon. 

L E W I S   J.   C A N D U R A   SR.:  Thank you.   

 My name is Lew Candura; I’m the Morris County Democratic 

Chairman.  And as somebody who has been involved in public service as the 

Democratic Chairman, I want to thank each and every one of you for all 

your hours and hours and hours away from your family that you’re 
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dedicating to this process.  I know how difficult it can be, and I thank each 

and every one of you. 

 That being said, that I’m the Democratic Chairman, I just want 

to let you know that in certain ways I am not partisan, because my entire 

family is Republican.  My mother and father were the Republican district 

leaders in Belleville where I grew up.  I transplanted to Morris County 34 

years ago, always being a Democrat from my first election in the primary of 

June of 1968.  I voted as a Democrat and I’ve been a Democrat ever since. 

 It kind of puts me at odds with my family sometime, but I 

understand fairness, and I understand compromise, and I understand 

difficulty.  And you kind people here today have a very difficult task.  The 

way this is set up it puts you at odds.  We have a competitive nature as 

Americans.  We see that in sports, just recently in football -- whether you’re 

a Giant fan, a Jet fan, an Eagles fan, whatever.  It’s a competitive nature for 

us to get the edge up on our opponent, and it certainly works true with 

partisanship as well. 

 I ask you to try to put that aside, because I’ve heard a lot about 

diversity today and how our ethnic population is growing.  The African-

American and Asian populations are growing.  The geographic diversity has 

grown.  We have the largest minority group -- Latinos -- constitute 10 

percent or more of the population, and 25 of our 40 legislative districts.  In 

fact, in 13 of the districts, Latinos comprise 20 percent of the population.  

And this pattern is repeated in every one of our 21 counties.  And Morris 

County is no exception.  In 13 Morris County municipalities the Latino 

population exceeds 10 percent of the population, two of which are over 30 
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percent; two of which are over 60 percent; and as based on growth trends, 

these numbers will increase.  But yet in Morris County, we have five 

legislative districts, and in those five legislative districts we have 14 white, 

Republican, conservative men; one white, Republican, conservative woman.  

There is no diversity in the Legislature in Morris County. 

 When you redraw these lines, I’m asking you to keep that in 

mind for fairness; not fairness for any particular party, but fairness for the 

people who are the ongoing demographics in Morris County. 

 So as this Commission sets about the task of reflecting the rich 

diversity of our population, don’t look back -- look ahead.  You should 

anticipate a continuation, if not the acceleration, of the trends that we’ve 

seen in the census.  The growth of Latino, African-American, Asian 

populations will continue; so should the representation in this Legislature 

for the next 10 years.  And the representation should be a product of the 

legislative districts just as diverse as New Jersey’s population as a whole.  

Segregating voters in white districts on one hand, minority districts on the 

other will shortchange every single person in the State of New Jersey.  And 

history tells us that packing minority voters into few districts not only fails 

to guarantee election of minority legislators, but it also completely 

disregards minorities in counties like mine. 

 Giving voice to those minority residents, citizens who live in 

concentrations too small to constitute an absolute majority of voters 

requires a commitment from the leaders in this room today.  And on that 

score, there is simply no comparison of the 24 minorities in the current 

Legislature -- 23 are Democrats.  It’s a Democratic Governor who appointed 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

the first Latino U.S. Senator, Bob Menendez, who subsequently was elected 

with 57 percent of the vote. 

 So let me conclude with one last thought.  The next map, any 

map that you come up with can only deliver opportunities, not guarantees.  

This Commission should be about creating opportunities -- as many as 

possible for voters to elect legislators of their choosing.  It’s up to the 

leaders of both parties to nominate candidates who will reflect those 

choices.  It’s your job to come up with a fair map. 

 Thank you very much.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any questions? 

 You have a question, Chairman? 

 MR. CANDURA:  Thank you. 

 SENATOR SARLO:  Just--  Mr. Chairman, just a quick follow-

up. 

 You had heard before the exchange between Bill Ayala and 

Chairman Wisniewski regarding the process.  A lot has to do with process, 

of getting Latino candidates, minority candidates into elected office.  I 

know you’re sort of on an island in Morris County as a Democrat.  The 

party in power -- have you seen major moves on their part to get Hispanics 

elected?  In some of these towns, you have some significant Latino 

populations; I mean some of these towns of almost 20,000 people, 70 

percent Hispanic population.  In Morristown, 18,000 population, 34 

percent.  I mean, have you seen any significant strides to try to recruit some 

other candidates on the other side of the aisle? 
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 MR. CANDURA:  Senator, I respectfully decline to answer that 

question.  I work very, very well with my counterpart in Morris County, 

and I’m certainly not here to throw any stones in his direction.  He’s a 

friend; he does his job very, very well.  He’s a good man, and I’ll let it go at 

that. 

 SENATOR SARLO:  Thank you; that’s fair. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:   Thanks.  Just--  And the 

Chairman has come from Morris County; it’s the first time we’re getting to 

talk about Morris County.  So very briefly, I just want to correct the record: 

five districts represented- -- or have parts of Morris County in them; three 

of the five delegations include women, and their names are Nancy Munoz, 

Denise Coyle, and Alison McHose. 

 MR. CANDURA:  I stand corrected. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  And we believe in an inclusive 

party in Morris County.  The Morris County Republicans--  One of the few 

counties in the State that doesn’t have a party line, which means that the 

process is open to anyone who gets 100 signatures can get themselves on 

the ballot, unlike other counties in both parties that are very much 

controlled by the party apparatus.  So we’re proud of what we do in Morris 

County, and you’re welcome to come anytime you’d like, Senator. 

 Thank you very much. 

 MR. CANDURA:  Chairman, thank you for the correction. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Edith Jorge, followed by Victor 

Grullon, followed by George Gore. 
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E D I T H   J O R G E:  Good afternoon, Chairman Webber, Madam 

Speaker. 

 My name is Edith Jorge; I’m a recent graduate of Montclair 

State University.  I’m also the Vice Chair for the Hudson County Young 

Republicans, and I’m a first generation American. 

 I was born in Hoboken, I was raised in West New York, and I 

currently live in North Bergen, so it’s safe to say that Hudson County is my 

home. 

 The reason that I’m here today is to voice my concerns 

regarding distribution, and urge you to balance where Latinos -- but most 

importantly, other minorities whose percentages may not be as high as 

Latino -- will have fair a shot of representation. 

 Now, the reason that this Commission is here today is because 

of the results of the 2010 Census.  And at the beginning of this meeting I 

heard many of you say that those results ushered in an array of diverse 

communities within this county.  You said that we needed to be represented 

equally; I agree with you.  And I absolutely think that that is the way to go.   

 But here is where my concern is.  We had a Census in 2000, 

and these are just some of the results that we saw from that Census in 

2000:  We saw that Hudson County is the smallest, most densely populated 

county in all of New Jersey.  We saw that 40 percent of the residents were 

Hispanic.  Jersey City was one of the most populated cities in all of the 

United States.  It came 21st in the most ethnically diverse cities in the 

United States.  Of municipalities over 50,000 residents, Union City was the 

most densely populated in the United States.  The county altogether had 
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three communities on the list of 100 cities whose highest percentage was of 

foreign-born residents -- and those were West New York, Union City, and 

Guttenberg.  

 Now, my problem is if these were the statistics in 2000, then 

why was our representation not impacted by that data in 2000?  And if that 

was the case, how do we know that the same thing won’t occur with this 

data from our 2010 Census? 

 The residents of Hudson County are people of diversity; and 

they ask for equality, and they give and receive respect from each other.  

And that’s all that we ask of you today.  This Commission is doing a great 

job, and we understand that it is an ongoing process, and that most of it 

will take place in the upcoming months as the days get longer, and the days 

get warmer, and people start to wear less clothes, and start looking a little 

more tan than usual.  But we think that it’s definitely a job that can be 

done.  But it lies in your hands, and it will only get done if you allow it to 

be done. 

 I thank you for your time, and I appreciate what you’re doing.  

(applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you very much. 

 Victor Grullon.  (no response)  Not here. 

 George Gore, followed by Omar Dyer, followed by Wayne 

Harmon. 

G E O R G E   B.   G O R E:  Good afternoon.   

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Good afternoon. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Good afternoon. 
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 MR. GORE:  I’m going to try not to repeat what everybody else 

does.  (laughter)  As difficult as that might be, I think I want to key in on 

some key points that have been alluded to but not necessarily directly said. 

 Districts, when we draw them, should represent not color, but 

community of interest.  Color comes with community of interest -- you 

can’t separate the two.  We seem to want to put a divining rod between 

them and pretend like it’s not the same -- they are.  We have a very difficult 

-- and I say we, because it’s the State of New Jersey that ultimately is going 

to be the one that is going to be the benefactor or not the benefactor of the 

lines that we draw now.  Two things happen:  If we don’t look at 

communities of interest -- rural versus farmers versus the urban -- when we 

draw these lines, then you will greatly affect the economics of the State of 

New Jersey.  If I’m not looking at how farmland is reused, or redistributed, 

or not used, I’m going to affect the economics.  If I don’t look at the way 

that urban cities are redesigned and put back together, I’m going to affect 

the economics.   

 And let me give you a classic example that’s going on right now.  

New Jersey’s on the verge of losing 3,000 jobs because some of the 

distribution for Pathmark and A&P are leaving the state.  Not that the 

Legislature hasn’t tried to do something; not that the Governor hasn’t tried 

to do something; not that the union hasn’t tried to do something.  The 

problem is everybody waited until three seconds before time to look at it.  

However, if we make sure that the representatives who are in those areas, 

who are affecting that kind of economics, are on that at the time that we 

should be, then maybe things like losing 3,000 jobs won’t happen. 
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 We’ve got to have maps drawn with communities of interest.  

And losing 3,000 jobs from places like Woodbridge and other places are 

something that a local representative should have been involved in a year 

ago, because I’m sure the company didn’t make that decision just now. 

 So we have to look at not only how lines are drawn, but the 

business interests of how those lines are drawn -- because the business 

interests affect the community of interest.  We spend a lot of time talking 

about color, but we don’t spend enough time talking about the impact that 

color has on economics.  If we want our communities to be solvent, then we 

need to make sure that those people who we elect, and who are in those 

areas where those businesses are, are on top of where those businesses are 

going so the State of New Jersey does not continue to erode business.  And 

it won’t make any difference how you draw the line, because we don’t have 

any dollars in the state to support. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Omar Dyer, followed by Wayne 

Harmon, followed by Councilwoman Renee Baskerville. 

O M A R   D Y E R:  Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. 

 Can you hear me? (affirmative responses) 

 I’ve listened to everyone here for the past couple of hours, and 

what I say is we don’t have a population problem; we don’t have a density 

problem.  We have a political patronage problem.  And what that problem 

is, is that there’s no representation before taxation.  That’s the number one 

rule when we brought in the Articles of Confederation, which is 

representation for taxation.  If we break that rule and we have a political 
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patronage system, where dual offices are not reprimanded, then we don’t 

have the adequate representation that we need.  

 It’s not an attack on the Latino community, but there are two 

many dual offices in those subjective (sic) communities.  Let’s say if I have a 

problem with the mayor, and I want to go to the State Senator.  Well, I 

can’t get the State Senator because he’s also the mayor.  So I’m 

continuously growing the same problem:  it’s the State Senator that’s a 

mayor; and I can’t go to the mayor because he’s the State Senator; I can’t 

go to the State Senator, because he’s the mayor.  So there’s no 

representation, therefore there can’t be taxation. 

 And taxation means that subsidies come to the designed area.  

So if you have an area where there are two seat holders in one spot, then 

the subsidies can’t adequately come to that position because there’s no 

taxation without representation.   

 And I say you just leave the maps as they are, and enforce the 

dual offices, and we won’t have this problem where we’re losing 

congressional leaders every 10 years. 

 And I thank you for the time, and that’s it. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Just a point of clarification. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Dyer. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  Very good, thank you. 

 Just a point of clarification:  No longer in the State of New 

Jersey can a person hold two dual offices.  If you are a legislator, you cannot 

be a--  It was grandfathered in-- 
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 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMISSION:  It was 

grandfathered-- 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  --for the people who are already in office; I 

understand that point.  But upcoming members, they no longer can do that, 

okay? 

 MR. DYER:  Well, but it’s not the fact that it’s -- no longer 

doing it; it’s not enforced.  That’s the thing; it’s not enforced.  And the way 

you enforce it is with clean elections.  So we can go on and on. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you.  

 Wayne Harmon. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  He left. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Councilwoman Renee 

Baskerville, Montclair; followed by Ahmed Shedeed, followed by Esther 

Wintner. 

C O U N C I L W O M A N   R E N E E   E.   B A S K E R V I L L E,   M.D.:  

Good evening, Chairman Webber, Chairman Wisniewski, my 34th 

Legislative District Assembly Speaker Oliver, other esteemed members of 

the Commission.  I’m Dr. Renee Baskerville, the 4th Ward Councilwoman 

in the great Township of Montclair in Essex County.  It’s my honor and 

distinct privilege to appear before you today. 

 My words--  I’m also expressing comments that are shared by 

our Deputy Mayor of the Township of Montclair, Councilwoman Kathryn 

Weller-Demming, who shares my sentiments but was unable to be here 

today. 
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 As you are aware, Montclair is a relatively small township in 

Essex County with just under 38,000 residents, compared to many of the 

townships that we’ve heard from today.  And despite our relatively small 

size, our voices are loud and our voices are large, and Montclair has learned 

lessons that I believe might be instructive for the important work of this 

Commission. 

 In Montclair we embrace diversity and make it a driving force 

for everything that we do in our township.  And I think it’s very important 

that, as a Commission, you embrace diversity and make it a driving force 

for the redistricting process.  

 Montclair embraced diversity like no other township in the 

nation -- and this is both according to folklore and to facts.  In Montclair 

we’ve taken some steps not to view every contest as adversarial, and not to 

perceive every process impacting the precious right to vote as partisan.  We 

have nonpartisan local elections because we believe that, while recognizing 

and respecting fundamental philosophical differences along party lines, 

some elections and some actions should not necessarily be driven by party 

affiliation.  Some processes impacting the sacred right to vote and the 

determination of who gets how much of what, when, where, and how that 

flows from the citizen vote, should be approached as an effort to achieve 

more noble goals such as greater citizen participation, greater diversity, and 

a stronger democracy; a sense that we all have a stake in this process, and 

that if we work together we can move the state to becoming more 

representative of its racially, ethnically, socioeconomically, geographically 
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diverse residents; as well as to reflecting the increasingly diverse faiths and 

cultures of the residents. 

 We can move the state to becoming a more perfect state in the 

union.  I recommend to this Commission that as you undertake the work, 

and recommend adjustment to the legislative districts to reflect the 

population shifts in the state, you do it in a manner that is not so polarizing 

that our Legislature cannot work together to make sure that all the basic 

health, education, and human needs of the residents of the state are met, 

especially those of least advantage. 

 When redistricting is over, we want people in the Legislature 

who provide voice to every constituency in the State, especially those that 

have historically been voiceless, so that New Jersey will be celebrated for 

passing laws that are revolutionary in that they ensure that all residents can 

reside and raise their families in safe, sanitary, sustainable environments; 

and that every child in the state is afforded health care, an early start, a 

healthy start, a head start toward realizing his or her potential. 

 We want them to be evolutionary in that they will reflect the 

best practices of the new ecology of learning and attaining economic growth 

while sustaining the environment.   

 And I urge you to resist the type of vitriol that normally 

accompanies redistricting, and to be mindful that as the country is 

painstakingly and slowly beginning to recover from the economic crisis of 

the past decade, many people are close to the edge and we must prevent at 

all costs New Jersey from becoming the next tragedy waiting to happen. 
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 I’ve included in my prepared words -- which I will present to 

Mr. Parisi, and hopefully you will have an opportunity to review them -- 

something that I call R3; and R3 is Residents Redistricting Roundup.  And I 

was happy to hear that, perhaps, there’s consideration for further hearings 

of this nature.  Because in my R3 proposal for the future, I’m suggesting 

that we begin even earlier, on a municipal level, where the municipalities all 

across the State of New Jersey, at the same time on the same day, can have 

local meetings, and the reflections of the community would be on the 

record so we could get broader input from people.  

 In closing, the redistricting plan should recognize that all beings 

of the State of New Jersey are interdependent, and that every life has value 

and is entitled to respect and a voice.  Any plan that submerges or nullifies 

the voice of the recognized racial and ethnic voting bloc protected by the 

Voting Rights Act runs counter to the belief of the Commission and respect 

for all residents, and shall be rejected. 

 I thank you so much for the opportunity to appear before you 

and I stand ready to assist you in any way that I may.  And if that means 

holding some meetings in the great Township of Montclair, I’m sure that we 

can arrange to have that happen. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Another invitation.  (laughter) 

 Any questions? 

 Assemblyman Cryan. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  Councilwoman, thank you; thank 

you for your patience.  Thank you for your proposal -- I’m looking forward 
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to reading it.  The 3 Rs, I guess, have a different meaning these days, right?  

(laughter) 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  I didn’t even think of 

that. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  But certainly I appreciate it very 

much.  You were really thoughtful in terms of what you presented, and I 

promise you we will look through that. 

 I also want to particularly thank you for the embracing of 

diversity and what it means to Montclair.  And I just wanted to reflect with 

you, as I heard you speak, how proud I am that one of every three 

Democratic legislators is a person of color.  And, in fact, we are able to work 

together -- as you see here, literally -- on the side of the aisle; that we 

continue to embrace, and we’ll take your model and continue to work 

towards it.  And thank you. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Thank you so much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Anyone else?  

 Vice Chair Asbury. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Hello, Councilwoman; good afternoon. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Hi, good evening. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  I did have a question.  I wasn’t sure what 

you meant by polarizing in your comments.  Could you elaborate on that a 

little bit? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Okay -- where were we? 
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 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Talking about the--  I think you were 

talking about health care, a safe environment for the children -- that sort of 

thing -- and you’re hoping that-- 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  I just want to make sure 

that we’re all--  I think that that’s something that, when we go through this, 

we can all be pretty much in agreement that there are some basics that we 

really need to make sure continue to exist.  And I don’t think some of the 

things need to be partisan.  I don’t think that we should come to the table 

and think of them in terms of Republican or Democrat.  I think that those 

are just basic things that we should all embrace as things that people need.  

Just like an education of equal quality for all people.  Now, how we achieve 

that, certainly, there will be differences about how we achieve that, but I 

feel like -- basic things that we could agree on. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  No, you’re absolutely right. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Hopefully -- I’m 

hopeful. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Hopefully -- very hopeful.  Well, I’m glad. 

 And do you think that maybe it could be accomplished possibly 

by making districts more competitive in nature? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  I think--  Well, first of 

all, in the Township of Montclair, personally, I’m happy with things as  

they are.  I heard tonight about a 28th Legislative District that someone 

was talking about before that included a part of Montclair -- I guess with 

West Orange and some other things.  And that was before my tenure here; 

I’m relatively new to this process of political advocacy.  I’ve only been in 
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office for two years, so I’m not familiar with what that looked like at that 

time.   

 Certainly by expanding opportunities for all racial and ethnic 

minorities, as well as different economic groups, I think that we will have 

government that will more closely represent the diverse populations that we 

have.  And I think the tricky thing for me is how we can -- and I don’t know 

that we can do this by lines -- but how, at the end of the day, we can 

include people of lower socioeconomic means.  Because the way we have 

government now, basically, unless you have somebody who is backing you, 

without financial means you pretty much can’t represent a community. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Councilwoman, if you would--  

Do you have any-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  I don’t think we have any 

more. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Just to assure you:  We have 

disagreements among the Commissioners on any number of issues, not 

having anything to do with apportionment.  But this process hasn’t been 

filled with resentment or adversarial-- 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  It hasn’t. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I confess that I resent Chairman 

Wisniewski only for being taller than I am.  (laughter)  But other than that, 

we’re getting along fine. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  It appears so. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  (Indiscernible) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  “Shorty” -- thanks.    Now, those 

are fighting words.  (laughter) 

 Councilwoman, Montclair is what -- mixed wards, an at-large 

system? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  How does that work? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Four wards, two at-

large, and one mayor position. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Working well? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Working very well. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  And you represent the 4th 

Ward? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Yes.  And that’s the 

most racially, socioeconomically diverse group in the township. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Is it a majority-minority 

population in your ward? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Presently it is, yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Are there any others in 

Montclair? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Any other racially-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Wards that are majority-

minority? 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  No, but the 3rd Ward 

in Montclair is definitely very diverse; so the 3rd and the 4th Ward.  And 
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while Montclair nationally is celebrated for its diversity, we really are not to 

the degree that I would be--  We still do have very much of a color divide -- 

south of Bloomfield Avenue -- as we recognize it.  But that’s rapidly 

changing.  With the decline in Wall Street and the economic turn as it is 

now, we’re now actually moving towards more diversity.  A lot of people 

who were in the zip code of 07043, which traditionally is the whiter, more 

affluent population, are being forced to relocate to other areas in Montclair.  

So over time, however we get there, we are moving towards actually being 

more diverse.  Just like in our schools; we celebrate them for diversity, but 

certainly many of us who are in there every day do understand that that 

diversity is short-lived once you go in the school door.  It’s not in the 

classrooms yet, to the degree that I would be happy with. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  So the housing patterns in 

Montclair are becoming more integrated with time. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  We’re working on them, 

yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Does the political representation 

of the town follow along the housing lines?  In other words, representatives 

from 1st and 2nd Ward -- are they predominantly caucasian?   

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Yes.  And 

representation from the 1st Ward historically is; and the 2nd Ward, 3rd 

Ward can go either way; and 4th Ward has always been an African-

American.  But the interesting thing is the at-large people who run for the 

at-large seats -- they can go either way.  We have one African-American, and 

then we have one white female.  And so historically we’ve had diversity in 
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the at-large seats.  And so that demonstrates that you don’t necessarily have 

to live in the 4th Ward, where you have the highest concentration of 

African-Americans, to achieve that.  We’ve also had African-American 

mayors in Montclair.  And who knows?  Maybe after the next election we 

may have the first female African-American Mayor of the Township of 

Montclair.  You never know. (laughter) (applause)   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you so much for your 

testimony. 

 COUNCILWOMAN BASKERVILLE:  Thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Ahmed Shedeed, followed by 

Esther Wintner, followed by Nicole Plett and Lewis Webb. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Mr. Shedeed is 

not here. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Esther Wintner, followed by 

Nicole Plett and Lewis Webb, followed by Daniel Beckelman. 

 Ms. Wintner. 

E S T H E R   W I N T N E R:  Good afternoon, gentlemen. 

 I didn’t prepare anything, so I’m just going to read off my 

notes. 

 My name is Esther Wintner, aka Locust -- as reported by an 

Assemblywoman who purportedly represents my city of Jersey City. 

 I think when we see this tactic of divide and conquer it works 

against us as an electorate,  and that the most powerful group of people is 

people who are united.  I am someone who’s been doing local work in my 

community, in my city of Jersey City; and I’ve been very active.  And I do 
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that not based on party, but because I believe that these issues transcend 

party lines and affect everyone as a whole. 

 I think that representation of the electorate is an important 

thing; that we are strong when we are united, and the best way for us to 

make our voices heard is to have a majority or a larger portion in each of 

those legislative districts, as opposed to having three that we now have and 

being a minority in each one of those.  The larger we are in that portion, the 

better for us as an electorate.   

 Jersey City is an economic engine in the State of New Jersey, 

and we need to be able to make our voices heard loud and clear, and get the 

help that we need.  Because right now, being such a small portion of each 

district does not really help us as a group. 

 I don’t know what these terms are -- cracking and stacking -- 

I’ve never heard this before; I don’t subscribe to that.  I subscribe to the 

book of common sense, and I know very well that as we are united more 

strongly as a voting bloc, when we are together as one it is better for us.  

And every politician knows that how this works is that you split and it 

works against our favor.  And I would like to see in Jersey City that we will 

have two legislative districts so that we can have a stronger voice in our 

community. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Ms. Wintner. 

 Nicole Plett and Lewis Webb signed up together. 

N I C O L E   P L E T T:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Is Mr. Webb here? 
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 MS. PLETT:   Unfortunately, he had to leave. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay. 

 Followed by Daniel Beckelman, followed by Christos Genes. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Christos left. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Followed by Kabili Tayari. 

 MS. PLETT:  Good afternoon.  Thank you, Commissioners, for 

holding this hearing today.  I came here today with Mr. Lewis Webb who, 

unfortunately, had to leave at 5 o’clock.   

 My name is Nicole Plett, and I am the Vice President of the 

New Jersey Regional Coalition, which is a core member of the Integrated 

Justice Alliance. And it’s the Integrated Justice Alliance that Mr. Webb 

and I came to speak on behalf of today.  And if it’s okay with you, I will 

quickly--  We were going to switch off the reading; I will quickly read both 

our testimony. 

 Mr. Lewis Webb is Program Coordinator for the Healing and 

Transformative Justice Project in the American Friends Service Committee, 

and also a member of the New Jersey Integrated Justice Alliance, a solution-

oriented group of organizations that generates and supports effective public 

policies before, during, and after incarceration in New Jersey. 

 We recognize and appreciate that you’ve previously heard some 

of our testimony in Camden, Toms River, and Newark; and this was from 

five other member organizations of this Alliance who share a deep concern 

for the threats to fair representation raised by prison-based gerrymandering.  

And we were very happy that Assemblywoman Coutinho (sic) also referred 

to that earlier today.  
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 Stating the problem again for the benefit of the members of the 

public today, the U.S. Census Bureau counts prisoners as if they were 

residents of where the prisons are located rather than at their home 

addresses, even though New Jersey prisoners cannot vote and are generally 

not part of the community that houses the prison.  In fact, researchers 

estimate that nationally the Census Bureau has counted almost 2 million 

people in the wrong place. 

 Assigning incarcerated people to the census block that contains 

the prison rather than the census block that contains their home address 

also results in a significant enhancement of the weight of a vote cast in 

legislative districts with prisons, and dilutes the votes of residents in 

districts that do not count prisoners as part of their population. 

 This problem of weighting or diluting votes in any district by 

miscounting prisoners is sometimes hard for people to fully appreciate.  

However, it is precisely because prisoners are not true constituents of the 

districts in which they are so-often counted that we cannot, in good 

conscience, use them in the process of assigning political power.  To do so is 

to inadvertently use the over 28,000 State and Federal prisoners in New 

Jersey to unfairly enlarge certain legislative districts.   

 Moreover, because a significant number of prisoners are not 

incarcerated in their home districts, their absence due to incarceration 

weakens the political power of their home neighborhoods.   For example--  

And we’re excited today to have quite a bit of new data from the Census 

Bureau, and we’ve brought you some great charts and census block figures, 

all of which I’ll leave with you today. 
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 Through the new census data we learned that although nearly 

two-thirds of the State prison population in 2010 came from Essex and 

Camden County exclusively, it is Cumberland, Burlington, and Mercer 

counties that house the largest population of State prisoners.  If we look at 

the 2010 Census data by legislative district, we see a similar pattern.  The 

latest census shows that prisoners are limited to only seven legislative 

districts, namely 1, 3, 15, 19, 23, 29, and 30.  The legislative district that 

housed the largest numbers of State or Federal prisoners at the time of 

2010 Census enumeration was Legislative District 30, which includes 

Garden State, A.C. Wagner Correctional Facility, and FCI Dix, which 

together hold over 7,600 incarcerated adults. 

 Due to the time, I’ll leave the further figures with you. 

 The good news is that in the documents we submit for the 

record today, we include a table prepared by analysts from the Prison Policy 

Initiative that lists the exact census block and tract locations.   

 We understand the Commission is facing serious pressure to 

work quickly and fairly, and our remaining minute will be turned over to 

me, Nicole Plett, who will clarify what we are asking the Commission to do 

to solve this problem.  It’s just a few paragraphs. 

 We know there’s no longer sufficient time to work with the 

Department of Corrections to ascertain the accurate home addresses of the 

approximately 22,000 adults now incarcerated in New Jersey.  But we do 

not need to have these exact home addresses in hand to prevent the misuse 

of prisoners in the current redistricting process.  As others in the Alliance 

have previously explained, there are interim solutions.  If the Commission 
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would declare that all people who have been counted as residents of prisons 

have been counted there incorrectly, then the Commission could instead 

declare these 22,0000 home addresses unknown and treat them as at-large 

members of the State, and not as residents of any particular district. 

 Although ideally New Jersey will work to pass legislation that 

mandates that all people in custody be counted at their home address, the 

State does have the power and the prison data to avoid skewing the 

population distribution.  As you know, our neighbors in New York, 

Delaware, and Maryland have recognized this problem, and we are here 

today to ask that New Jersey take steps in the same direction. 

 Once again, the Integrated Justice Alliance remains prepared 

and willing to closely work with you to interpret the census data that we are 

submitting to ensure a fair count. 

 Thank you so much for your patience.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Kabili Tayari, followed by 

Lauren Murphy, followed by Bob Zuckerman. 

D A N I E L   G.   B E C K E L M A N:  Mr. Chairman 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I’m sorry? 

 MR. BECKELMAN:  I was next on the speakers’ list. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I’m sorry. 

 MR. BECKELMAN:  I was next on the speakers’ list. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Daniel Beckelman? 

 MR. BECKELMAN:  Yes. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I’m sorry; I did -- I moved a piece 

of paper prematurely.  Sorry. 
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 If you would just stay right there; you’re absolutely next, Mr. 

Tayari. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  He wants to speak. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  So it’s Daniel Beckelman -- my 

apologies. 

 MR. BECKELMAN:  Thank you for coming here to Jersey City, 

my hometown, to a hearing today.   I know it’s been a long day, but it 

seems like we got a lot of interesting things accomplished. 

 Can everybody hear me in the room? (affirmative responses) 

 First of all, I just want to point out--  I know we have had a lot 

of North Hudson elected officials here talking about the 33rd District; and 

while we certainly should try to preserve communities of interest -- I think 

that’s a goal that both parties have.  Because Jersey City can only be split 

twice; and, of course, Union City and West New York and Hoboken -- 

they’re all very close to Jersey City.  If Jersey City can only be split two 

ways, one of our North Hudson districts is going to have to go either to 

Bergen County or go further west to ensure that all the districts are split up 

properly and that Jersey City is only divided twice.  So that is something 

that everybody does have to keep in mind. 

 I’ll read what I wrote.  My name is Daniel Beckelman; I’m a 25-

year-old resident of downtown Jersey City.  I work in our state’s automotive 

retail business.  I come to speak to you today because we must be cognizant 

of how our state and Hudson County are changing when we draw our State 

districts.  
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 We must also make sure that this coming decade is a brighter 

one for New Jersey than the past one has been.  New Jersey’s economy has 

lagged considerably even before the recession of 2008 to 2009.  The Bureau 

of Economic Analysis estimates that we grew at less than half the pace of 

the nation between 2004 and 2009.  If you want to put that in exact terms, 

we grew less than 1 percent a year economically, which is not good. 

 The high tax and business unfriendly policies that we have here 

have hurt the Garden State, and I believe that we need districts that can 

elect more legislators that are friendly to business and less apt to multiply 

the number of government programs that we have currently.   

 Thankfully, Governor Christie is leading us in a better 

direction, but he needs more support to help make this state the top 

economy in America once again.   

 Here in Hudson County the picture is a little brighter.  Despite 

being an older, urban county, we outpaced Bergen, Essex, and Passaic in 

growth and personal income gains over the last decade.  Hoboken showed 

amazing growth, and major residential redevelopment has occurred in Jersey 

City, Bayonne, and West New York.   Thanks to some good local policies, 

Jersey City’s waterfront has attracted world-class corporations and agencies.  

We even have a new riverfront walkway throughout our county. 

 To continue and expand this momentum, and to combat our 

county’s 11-plus percent unemployment rate, we need better policies 

coming from Trenton.  New people mean new ideas.  Hudson is the 

youngest county in New Jersey by average age and contains immigrants 

from all across the globe.  Whether people have moved here from Latin 
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American or, as I have myself, another part of New Jersey, to ensure they 

have their opportunity we need to allow more competition for seats which 

will create a more diverse marketplace of ideas for voters. 

 Furthermore, the emergence of the millennial generation, of 

which I am a part, and social networking can transform campaigns and will 

continue to do so.  It’s possible that by the time this new map expires in 

2021, main legislators will be from my generation in bringing new ideas to 

the Capitol. 

 The vast majority of both parties know that we need to go in a 

new direction.  I must say that over the last year I am impressed that they 

have, in a lot of different ways, even if we differ in approach of how to get 

there.  Statewide we need districts where legislators talk about who is best 

to attract tech start ups, venture capitalists, and multinational corporations 

to New Jersey.  It’s not about putting license plate fees on bicycles children 

use to play and exercise, as it was suggested by a legislator recently. 

 More growth means more revenue to fund our education, 

transportation, and public safety priorities.   

 Please consider these concepts and look to draw districts that 

will allow us to take our public discourse and policy implementation in 

these directions so every New Jerseyan can make economic gains in the 

coming decade. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Questions?  (no response) 

 Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Now Kabili Tayari, followed by 

Lauren Murphy, followed by Bob Zuckerman. 
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K A B I L I   T A Y A R I:  Good evening.  As President of the Jersey City 

NAACP, I want to welcome this important Commission to our city. 

 I must, however, admonish you:  Please don’t ever have another 

public hearing for the public on Sunday, and particularly during church 

time.  If we are about democracy, let’s be about democracy, because 

everybody knows where the majority of people -- not just African-Americans 

-- but where the people are at on Sunday, particularly between 11 a.m. and 

2 p.m.  And I must say that, because I know there must have been another 

reason for having this hearing. 

 The other thing:  there’s been a lot of talk about your goal.  It’s 

not your goal.  There are classes that are federally protected under the 

Voting Rights Act in Section 2 that every one of you must adhere to and 

are bound by.  So it needs to be clear:  It’s not your goal -- it’s your Federal 

mandate, constitutionally.  

 To proceed.  The fight against the restrictive barriers that 

prevent Latinos, African-Americans, and Asians from exercising their most 

fundamental civil right -- the right to vote -- has been and remains one of 

the NAACP’s most important fights.  Over the years the NAACP has fought 

against literacy tests, grandfather clauses, lynching; and today remains 

committed against the more subtle, yet equally insidious, attempts to deny 

citizens of color the right to vote through packing and using turnout models 

to determine representation. 

 Review the practice of packing Latinos, African-Americans.  

And let me say for the record, 10 years ago you came talking about packing 

African-American communities and Asians in districts, and thereby federally 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

ensuring that no Latinos, African-Americans, or Asians are present in 

surrounding districts.  It’s equally reprehensible as the poll tax, and born 

from the same racist tradition.  Likewise, we caution against efforts that 

attempt to set districts using voter turnout alone as a barometer in urban 

districts, rural districts -- in all poor communities.  There are significant 

factors which contribute to the difference in turnout, including, but not 

limited to, voter satisfaction, work schedules, and some of the stuff that was 

addressed today.  And more often than not, given the economic conditions 

in our country, oftentimes our residents are preoccupied with survival. 

 In some instances, residents have made the conscience choice 

not to vote; however, when an individual is elected to office, he or she is 

elected to represent everyone in that district -- both those persons who 

voted, and those who failed to vote.  A process that favors citizens that 

voted over citizens that did not -- for whatever reason -- is fundamentally 

non-democratic. 

 This process has been mired in politics on both sides of the 

aisle for too long.  We at the NAACP and other civil rights advocates 

around the state are watching during this process and after to ensure there’s 

integrity in the process.  It is disingenuous for Democrats to advocate for a 

district to be created that gives a Latino, African-American, or an Asian an 

opportunity to win, and as soon as this process is over, the same Democrats 

endorse a white person to represent their district.  However, it is also 

disingenuous for Republicans to scream from the top of their lungs that 

diversity is important during the process, and then after this process the 
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Republicans fail to support a single candidate of color even in a Republican 

district where a black Republican or Latino Republican once served. 

 Yes, diversity is important in this process.  But this process goes 

beyond the rhetoric of diversity to the public policy of empowerment for all.  

Ultimately, the mandated result of this map and this process is to create 

empowerment for all citizens.  This reapportionment Commission is 

charged with the task of creating districts that will remain for the next 10 

years.  Watching this process we have been impressed by the calls for 

empowerment of citizens of color from both sides -- Republicans and 

Democrats.  But I caution each of you that we are less impressed -- and I’ll 

be finished in second -- by what you say than by what you do.  We call for 

diversity and inclusion from both sides.  But please forgive us if we are 

cautious that your calls for inclusion and diversity are empty promises 

motivated by the simple gamesmanship of the process. 

 If you believe in empowerment for all people, like you claim in 

these hearings, you wouldn’t sit idly by while the Governor removes the 

only African-American on the State’s Supreme Court.  Yes, we recognize 

that the stakes of this particular process are high and it goes beyond 

campaigns and elections to public policy.   

 We close with this statement:  We remain committed to fight 

attempts by -- both obvious and subtle, to deny all citizens their 

fundamental civil right -- the right to vote -- and any other racist initiative.  

As Reverend Martin Luther King said, and it’s stated in the movie The Great 

Debaters, “The time to ensure democracy, liberty, justice, and empowerment 

for all God’s people is now.” 
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 And remember, you have a mandate.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Yes, I have a comment. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Speaker Oliver. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Yes, thank you for your 

testimony.   

 And some of the things that you pointed out reminded me of a 

previous speaker who discussed the ethnic representation in Hudson 

County.  And I just wanted to enter into the record that currently Hudson, 

as constructed, has three Latino representatives in the Legislature, four 

caucasians, and two African-Americans. 

 MR. TAYARI:  That is correct.  And for the record, let me also 

say, representing my organization and the position in my organization -- 

both of which are on the State and national level -- but I serve as Deputy 

Mayor, and have been involved in the politics of this county and this city 

ever since--   And when I say involved, I mean involved since I was 18 years 

of age.  And in 1990 and 2000, I did a lot of research for the other 

Commissions around this issue, as well as for my own organization.  So I 

don’t come to this discussion intellectually or just bringing a bunch of 

rhetoric; and at the same time, nor does the NAACP on a national level or 

on a State level. 

 And I’ve heard some people say today about how we need to all 

come together.  Yes we do, but there was a serious sentence in Reverend 

King’s speech in the March on Washington: “We are fighting for the day 

that we will not be judged by the color of our skin, but the content of our 

character.”  My representatives who sit on this Commission:  That day is 

You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.



 

 

not here yet, and we’re still struggling for it. That’s why Section 2(a) of the 

Voting Rights Act is absolutely necessary and must be adhered to. 

 God bless--  Oh, I’m sorry. 

 ASSEMBLY SPEAKER OLIVER:  Thank you. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  I have one more question. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Vice Chair Asbury. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you so much for those words.  And 

speaking as a former minority candidate for the Republican Party in a 

primarily Democratic district, I hear what you’re saying.  But I’m just a 

little unclear.  Were you talking about voter turnout numbers to determine 

districts? 

 MR. TAYARI:  Yes.  What we’ve heard is there’s been some 

discussion -- and I’m not saying, per se, among you -- but there’s been some 

discussion.  And one other thing I just wanted to say real quick, in a very 

simple and honest way:  Please, all of us understand politics; and I always 

tell people all the time there is good politics and there’s bad politics.  But 

the bosses to the north and the bosses to the south, both Republicans and 

Democrats, have nothing to do with this process.  And we’re watching that 

very closely too.  Because whether you’re Republicans or Democrats, you 

know the bossism has got to stop, okay?  Somewhere along the line public 

policy has got to come to the forefront. 

 And what I was addressing is that we have heard at NAACP, 

and we’ve heard among our ranks, that people are looking at the fact that--  

Let’s say I live in the 31st District, okay?  I do live in the 31st District.  

And let’s say that I live in Ward F.   So Ward F had a very, very high 
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turnout.  The 10 districts in Ward C didn’t, so we are going to carve C and 

those 10 districts in Ward C out because they had a low turnout.  That’s 

wrong, that’s undemocratic.  And I’m not saying that you were considering 

that, but we at the NAACP are putting that on the table, because it is being 

discussed -- it is being discussed. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Can I ask where you heard that, because-- 

 MR. TAYARI:  No, that’s not important, that’s not important. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Well-- 

 MR. TAYARI:  I’m just telling you that we’re against that. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Well, we are too. 

 MR. TAYARI:  Okay. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Because from what we understand, it’s 

drawn on strict population numbers; it has nothing to do with voter turnout 

or voter registration. 

 MR. TAYARI:  Let me say again:  We understand the process.  

We’re saying what the foundation of that process -- doesn’t allow that to be 

a part of it; that’s all. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Okay. 

 MR. TAYARI:  And that’s why, if you’ve noticed in my 

remarks, I did not say that that’s what you were considering. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  That’s correct. 

 MR. TAYARI:  I did not say that.  I put forward that our 

position is: don’t consider it.  Just like we said don’t consider packing. 

 MS. KIM ASBURY:  Thank you. 

 MR. TAYARI:  Okay; thank you. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Anyone else?  (no response) 

 MR. TAYARI:  God bless you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  You too.  (applause) 

 Lauren Murphy. (no response) 

 Bob Zuckerman, followed by Mariel Mercado-Guevara and 

John Pacciulli. 

B O B   Z U C K E R M A N:  Good afternoon, everyone -- or is it good 

evening now?  (laughter) 

 My name is Bob Zuckerman, and I want to thank you for the 

opportunity to testify.   

 I am a native New Jerseyan.  I was born and raised and grew up 

in Livingston, New Jersey.  In fact, I went to school -- high school -- with a 

guy named Chris Christie; you may have heard of him. 

 I’m a former resident of New York City.  I actually moved over 

to Manhattan -- Brooklyn -- and lived there for 14 years.  And a couple of 

years ago I actually ran for the New York City Council out of a Brooklyn 

district -- was not successful, and then decided to return to my roots.  So 

I’m back in New Jersey, and my partner and I have a home in downtown 

Jersey City.  We actually have a second home -- so we pay two sets of 

property taxes to New Jersey -- and that’s in Asbury Park. 

 I want to talk to you about a couple of different things.  The 

first one is that having run for City Council, having been a candidate, I 

understand the importance of trying to keep neighborhoods together as you 

draw these maps.  And, more specifically in my particular instance, I ran in 

a district in Brooklyn that’s part of what they call the Brownstone Belt.  But 
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the largest community, or the most well-known community in the district 

that I ran in, is one you’re probably all familiar with -- it’s called Park Slope.  

However, Park Slope is broken up into a number of different districts, 

probably I think three council people represent the area of Park Slope.  And 

it can be very, very confusing for the citizenry when their neighborhoods 

are split in such a way. 

 So with no disrespect to the current group of legislators who 

represent Jersey City--  I know District 31, District 33; I know that based 

on the Supreme Court case that Jersey City is now probably going to be two 

districts, no longer three districts.  However, I would try to urge you -- and 

this is probably the same for Newark as well -- to try to keep the wards 

within those districts intact, together, in one particular district.  Right now, 

Ward E in Jersey City, which is downtown Jersey City, is broken up 

between District 31 and 33.  And I think it just would be beneficial for the 

representatives who represent those areas, as well as the citizens, that a 

community -- in this case in Jersey City -- would be kept together.  So I’d 

like you to consider that. 

 And then I also wanted to speak about one other thing.  I was 

very happy that Chairman Webber started this hearing by saying that he 

wanted to hear from communities that were underrepresented or 

unrepresented.  And I want to speak about one community that has not 

been heard about today, and that’s the lesbian, gay, bisexual, and 

transgender community -- one of which I am a proud member of, as we call 

the LGBT community. 
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 By all conservative estimates -- small c, not big C -- the LGBT 

community is at least 5 percent of the population.  Well, based on New 

Jersey’s 120 legislators, that would mean, probably, five or six Legislators 

who are LGBT; and New Jersey has one.  They have a very good one -- 

Assemblyman Reed Gusciora, who happens to be a friend of mine and who 

does a great job not just representing the LGBT community, but 

representing all of his constituents.  But Assemblyman Gusciora did not 

become a legislator--  He did not run for the first time as an openly LGBT 

person.  And New Jersey has actually never elected an openly LGBT person 

to the Legislature as a non-incumbent.  And so I’d like you to take a look at 

or consider, put it on the table, areas that -- where maybe that could 

possibly produce someone from the LGBT community to represent their 

constituents in New Jersey.  You have places like downtown Jersey City and 

Hoboken, which are contiguous and both have large populations.  Asbury 

Park and Neptune, which has Ocean Grove, would be another one.  And 

certainly Maplewood and South Orange would be another area where you 

have very large concentrations of LGBT folks. 

 And one thing I know from our friends across the river here 

that have a number of LGBT legislators: they all do a tremendous job of 

representing all of their constituents.  And they serve as role models as well, 

which I think in these days is a very important thing. 

 So that’s what I had to say, and I wanted to thank you very 

much for giving me the opportunity.  

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  One question, I think from 

Assemblyman Cryan. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN:  It’s not really much of a question; 

it’s just a thank you -- both the ward comments and the comments about 

the community are both well taken.  And you put a different perspective on 

it, and I just wanted to say an extra thank you.  I appreciate it. 

 MR. ZUCKERMAN:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Anyone else? (no response) 

 Thank you. 

 Mariel Mercado-Guevara, followed by John Pacciulli, followed 

by Bill Holland. 

M A R I E L   M E R C A D O - G U E V A R A:  Hi.  My name is Mariel 

Mercado-Guevara.  I have been a little out of the loop politically lately.  I 

was the New Jersey coordinator for the Obama campaign in 2007, and then 

in celebration I had a baby.  (laughter)  My husband and I celebrated, and I 

have an 18-month-old baby boy now, which is wonderful.  And now I’m 

back, kind of like, in the game, as I was saying to some of the people earlier. 

 I just want to share with you my experience as a voter 

registration drive coordinator and with the Latino community.  We had 

some issues during it that were -- I’m not sure if it came to the forefront, so 

I just wanted to speak on that. 

 I’m not representing anyone right now; and I’m a registered 

voter -- I’m speaking as a voter -- Democratic voter.  I’m from District 32, 

Ward D in Jersey City Heights, is what we know it as.  However, on the 

Ward map right now, it says Hudson City, which I’m not sure where that 

come from, or why, or how it affects the whole thing.  But I would like the 

wards -- as the man previously to me said -- I would love if you guys kept 
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the wards together.  Whether Jersey City should be three or two sections or 

districts, I don’t know because I’m not the expert.  But what happened 

during the campaign that I ran for was that it got a little clouded with--  

You do a lot of canvassing when you’re campaigning.  And during the 

canvassing we were restricted from Secaucus.  While that was not an issue 

during a Federal election, it would become -- or could become an issue 

during district elections, and Assemblymen and Freeholder elections. 

 So I have heard a lot of input from the Latino community, and 

I would propose, just from my unexperienced experience, that we keep the 

wards together, first of all, in Jersey City.  But if you need to split Jersey 

City up, try to keep the Jersey City Heights section, which is Ward D, 

District 32 -- try to keep it with Union City, North Bergen -- kind of in a 

north-south view.  Because right now they are split in an east-west view.  

And I think that with the demographics and the numbers -- that you guys 

probably know better than me -- in front of you, you should try to keep it 

with the demographics together and the socioeconomics together.  And 

going from the east-west kind of view splits Jersey City in three different 

districts, which basically dilutes our vote as one resident of Jersey City.  

And if you were to keep us together I would say to look kind of in the Gold 

Coast view north and south, rather than east and west. 

 And that’s all I wanted to say today.  And I thank you for 

giving me this platform to speak.  And I’m back in the game, I guess.  

(laughter)  I’ll be in touch with certain people.  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 John Pacciulli. (no response) 
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 Bill Holland.  (no response) 

 Jeff Kaplowitz, followed by Zaida Polanco, followed by 

Franklyn Perez. 

 I had Bill Holland--  Is Bill Holland here? 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  No. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay, Mr. Kaplowitz. 

J E F F   K A P L O W I T Z:  Good evening.  Thank you very much for 

allowing me to talk. 

 Welcome to Jersey City, the oldest city in New Jersey, the most 

diversity in New Jersey, the financial center of New Jersey.  A city that 

deserves good representation that I don’t believe it’s getting. 

 The Founding Fathers, when they met with the other 

representatives to the Congressional -- Constitutional Convention, they 

decided to take their principles and turn them into a Constitution.  They 

got some things eminently wrong;  some things they compromised on; some 

things they got right.  The one thing that they got right is that they knew 

the country was going to expand, and as it expanded the only way true 

democracy succeeds and functions is having its representatives elected by 

the people, accessible, accountable, and responsible to those people. 

 This doesn’t happen in Jersey City.  By being split into three 

sections -- three districts -- we are the afterthought of those elected officials, 

both on the State level and the national level.  I’m lucky:  I live in 31, so I 

know my State Senator -- Senator Cunningham.  She lives near me; I can 

talk to her.  But I have neighbors in Jersey City who their representatives 

don’t live in this town, they don’t have the access to them -- that the 
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primary function of those elected representatives are to their hometowns; in 

this case, they’re mayors of those towns.  And with all due respect, I think 

that the Legislature failed when it came through and said, “We will stop 

dual office holdings, but those who are there, we’ll let them sit there.”  They 

don’t represent all the people.  James Madison had it right in Federalist 

Paper 51 that says that concentration of power through different forms of 

government is a loss of democracy. 

 I would like to see Jersey City as it was: one proud city; the 

second-largest city in the State of New Jersey, with one representative -- a 

representative who I can go to, who is responsible to me, that I have the 

opportunity to talk to and decide if I want them to be my representative. 

 The political system here is broken, and I don’t mean just in 

Hudson County -- I mean in New Jersey and everything else.  I’m not here 

representing any organization; I’m not here representing special interest 

groups, ethnic groups; I’m not here representing an elected officials who 

wants to keep his job, or someone who’s running for office -- I have no 

desire.  I give you credit for running and being elected officials.  I’m here 

thinking that the system is broken.  And I hate to say it, with all the due 

praise that everybody who sat here gave you: you’re part of the problem.  

Five of you are Democrats; five of you are Republicans.  You have vested 

interests just like the elected officials who sat here in the very beginning of 

this meeting trying to keep their jobs.  This is all a power play. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  That’s right. 

 MR. KAPLOWITZ:  And I think that you really should have 

normal people -- citizens -- on this Commission who have no political 
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interests in the outcome of this.  The whole idea that we’re sitting here with 

10 members and knowing that there is going to be an 11th member who 

has to be appointed because you guys can’t agree 100 percent says it all.    

The system is broken. 

 I live in Jersey City; I want--   And I don’t care what color my 

elected official is; I don’t care what their ethnic background is;  I don’t care 

what their sexual preferences are.  I want them responsible.  I want them to 

do the best they can to represent me.  I don’t want to wake up some 

morning and see them being walked into a jailhouse in handcuffs, or a 

courtroom.  And I don’t get that.  Because the system, from your 

predecessors all the way back, have created a system that looks like a Rube 

Goldberg system: we’re going to have safe seats -- 90 percent renewal rates 

for you. 

 You’re there; you become unresponsible to the citizens.  That’s 

the bottom line.  You become entitled.  You become -- that you are the 

indispensible person to democracy and no one else can do your job.  And 

therefore the people who are upset that they’re not being represented have 

no say -- they are the enemies. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  I want to remind you that the-- 

 MR. KAPLOWITZ:  I understand.  But you know something?  

I would recommend to do something different in this format.  Instead of 

having all the elected politicians come and speak first to get their name here 

and put their stuff on the record, and not sit here the whole meeting to 

listen to what the citizens say -- well, you know something?  Who the hell 

are you working for?  Let’s be honest. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay; thank you for your 

testimony.  I appreciate your coming. 

 Zaida Polanco. 

 SENATOR SARLO:  She had to--  Mr. Chairman, she turned in 

her testimony.  She had to--  Her babysitter had to go, so she just left. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Senator. 

 Franklyn Perez.  (no response) 

 I’m trying to read the handwriting: Dominican-American 

Organization, Mr. Santos or Ms. Santos?  Lueilo (sic)? 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  (indiscernible) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Oh, Lucilo -- yes. 

 Chrissy Buteas, followed by Louise Wilson, followed by Sheryl 

Roberts. 

C H R I S S Y   B U T E A S:  Chairman Webber, Chairman Wisniewski, 

and members of the Commission.  Thank you for giving me the opportunity 

to testify today. 

 As was stated, my name is Chrissy Buteas, the Vice President of 

the Women’s Political Caucus of New Jersey.  The Women’s Political 

Caucus of New Jersey, a statewide organization led by President Lisa 

Kaado, is dedicated to increasing women’s participation in the political 

process, increasing the number of progressive women in elected and 

appointed office, and creating a women’s political powerbase to achieve 

equality for all women. 

 Every 10 years when new Census data becomes available, there 

is a great debate over representation to make sure that every New Jersey 
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resident is represented, and to recognize these communities that have 

grown in population with their representation. 

 We are here today to make sure that our voices are heard, and 

then when a map is drawn all New Jerseyans will be represented.  We 

understand that existing case law addresses the issues of minority 

representation, but we feel that women deserve fair representation too. 

 We are all guided by our life experience, and more than 

anything else gender is the greatest factor that determines that life 

experience.  In 2010, New Jersey made significant strides.  We elected the 

first woman to the office of Lieutenant Governor; the appointment of the 

Senate Majority Leader; and the first African-American woman Assembly 

Speaker, only the second women to serve as Speaker in over two centuries 

of State history.  While these are significant accomplishments, we cannot 

allow ourselves to become complacent. 

 Today women make up over 50 percent of the population but 

only 28 percent of the New Jersey Legislature, and there are no women in 

our 15-member congressional delegation.  In fact, no woman has 

represented our State in Washington since Marge Roukema led the House 

of Representatives in the 1990s.  And we have made some progress over the 

last few years, but clearly we have more to do. 

 The Women’s Political Caucus of New Jersey is paying close 

attention.  We are concerned that we may lose ground with regard to the 

number of women in the State Legislature.  We are concerned that 

incumbent women, who have overcome significant obstacles, do not end up 

drawn out of the picture. 
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 We need to increase our representation, not diminish the work 

that has already been done.  We also need to be mindful that it’s not only 

in the general election, but also in the replacement appointment process 

that women have not been fairly represented.  The past four replacement 

appointments to the New Jersey Assembly have all been males. 

 In conclusion, while the goal of redistricting of New Jersey 

Legislative election districts is to rebalance those districts to maintain the 

one person, one vote proportion and satisfying the Federal Voting Rights 

Act, the end result should not leave behind underrepresented groups -- 

women and minorities.  Be mindful of the words that our famous New 

Jersey woman, Alice Paul, said, “There will never be a New World Order 

until women are a part of it.” 

 Thank you for your time. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any questions? (no response) 

 (applause) 

 Louise Wilson, followed by Sheryl Roberts, followed by 

Yolanda Rosales. 

 Louise Wilson.  (no response) 

 Sheryl Roberts.  (no response) 

 Followed by Yolanda Rosales. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF COMMISSION:  Yolanda’s 

coming. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Yes. 

 Gary Haith? 

G A R Y   H A I T H:  Haith. (indicating pronunciation) 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Haith -- H-A-I-T-H; followed by 

Paul Bellan-Boyer. 

Y O L A N D A   R O S A L E S:  I’m Yolanda Rosales. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Ms. Rosales. 

 MS. ROSALES:  Good evening.  My name is Yolanda Rosales, 

and I live in Union City.  So I am one of the very proud Latinos in Hudson 

County. 

 Thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak here today.  

The outcome of redistricting of the New Jersey Legislature and the State’s 

congressional representation will impact a wide range of issues for the next 

decade.  These are issues that are important to me and my family, as well as 

the families of all the people of our state.  Your deliberations also touch on 

some fundamental rights for New Jersey residents, like full and fair 

representation.   

 I’m here today to ask you to uphold the simple idea of one 

citizen, one vote.  The Constitution says districts can’t have big differences 

in population.  This is so all people have equal representation.  Since I 

believe in equal representation under the laws, I strongly oppose any 

proposal that would give added weight to certain parts of the state on the 

basis of voter turnout in one election in 2009, or in one set of elections.  It 

would be a grave injustice for this body to under-represent residents of this 

state on the basis of participation in a past election. 

 Instead, I ask you to make a map that makes sure all New 

Jersey residents are fully and fairly represented equally.  Because your 

current debate will have such a dramatic impact on our future for the next 
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decade, it is crucial that your meetings be conducted in daylight and away 

from backrooms and special interests.  There are some simple common 

sense steps this Commission could take to make sure it happens where all of 

us can see. 

 Future hearings should be scheduled today so we can make sure 

residents of the state have enough notice to get to these meetings -- and 

hopefully not take as long as this one did. (laughter)  I also think the idea of 

a website is a good one -- we just got the website.  Comments posted online 

should be part of the official record. 

 Taking these steps will increase our trust in your results and it 

could lead to a map that more fairly represents the needs and priorities of 

New Jersey residents.  I hope that your future meetings will strive for a fair 

and open process, and a result that respects the rights of all New Jersey 

residents. 

 I also want to beg you to keep us together in West New York, 

Union City, Jersey City Heights, and all of the residents of the north part of 

the county.  We are all joined by the same interest; we are all part of the 

same type of society.  And I’m very proud to say that I’m a minority, but 

I’m a very well-educated woman with two master’s degrees.  And I have 

educated four children, and all of them attended public schools in my 

county -- I have two doctors, I have one schoolteacher, and one is an 

accountant.  And everybody was educated in Hudson County with public 

schools, and (indiscernible) of us as minority groups. 

 So I want you please to change your perception, that some 

people feel, that because we are minorities we have some kind of contagious 
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disease.  We are educated people.  And I also remind you that we also vote, 

and our votes count when it comes to election time. 

 Thank you so much.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Gary Hailth. (sic) 

 MR. HAITH:  Thank you for allowing me to be here this 

evening. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  H-A-I-L-T-H? 

 MR. HAITH:  No, it’s H-A-I-T-H, Haith. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  H-A-I-T-H; thank you. 

 MR. HAITH:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Followed by Paul Bellan-Boyer, 

followed by Jayson Burg. 

 MR. HAITH:  Hello, my name is Gary Haith.  I live in 

Irvington, New Jersey.  And thank you for allowing me to have input into 

this process. 

 The right to be represented is the most important right in our 

democracy, because it safeguards all of our other rights.  So many of the 

biggest struggles in our nation’s history have been about expanding the 

rights to vote.  Because the vote makes so much of everything possible, 

people have struggled and fought for that right, even before our country was 

founded. 

 Thank you for holding today’s hearing so that the public can 

provide input.  Since this was announced with enough time for me to make 

plans, I was able to be here today.  I hope you will announce the times and 

locations for future hearings before this one is over, and I hope you will 
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make sure they are all in different areas of New Jersey so that other people 

who work and have families can have the opportunity as well. 

 Throughout this process, New Jersey residents deserve an 

opportunity to protect their constitutional rights.  Our legislative districts 

need to ensure what we all know and what people in our country fought for 

for centuries: one person, one vote.  Some people have proposed that the 

legislative map should give more weight to areas with higher voter turnout.  

For example, four times the number of people voted in 2009 elections in 

District 9 in Ocean County as compared to District 20 in Union County.  

Those people say that when you make a new map, Ocean County votes 

should be weighted four times as much as Union County’s.  I oppose this 

proposal because it does not adhere to the principles of one person, one 

vote.  It would not ensure that all voices are represented -- whether African-

American, Latino, Asian-American, or white.  Should I receive less 

representation in the Legislature because some of my neighbors did not vote 

in one election in 2009?  I find that deeply offensive to me and my 

community.  I support a map that meets the constitutional standards of one 

person, one vote and provides fair representation for all New Jerseyans, 

regardless of race and ethnic backgrounds.   

 With so much at stake, I urge the Commission to protect the 

rights of all New Jerseyans to participate in this process and, most 

important, ensure that they are fully and fairly represented in your ultimate 

decision. 

 Thank you.  And I want to commend each and every one of you 

for doing the job that you’re doing, because I know it’s not very easy.  And I 
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encourage you to make the best decision for the whole State, and I thank 

you very much.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 Paul Bellan-Boyer, followed by Jayson Burg, followed by Anna 

Rivera. 

P A U L   B E L L A N - B O Y E R:  Mr. Chairman and distinguished 

members, thank you very much for this opportunity to testify before you. 

 In my church work, I get throughout the state a lot and I get to 

see a lot of different communities.  And surprisingly this is a pretty 

interesting topic in a lot of places.  

 Perhaps you have heard the widespread perception that these 

hearings are only for show, and that the real deals come about due to inter- 

and intraparty dynamics where, for political and sometimes personal 

reasons, there’s a negotiation behind the scenes about which incumbents 

are going to get thrown under the bus. 

 Now, there are plenty of reasons why people might think that.  

I love and respect many of my elected representatives, and have great 

admiration for our legislators and the legislative process.  However, you’ll 

note that every incumbent loves their district just the way it is.  The ones 

you heard testify today were very eloquent and passionate in how their 

district is perfect just with its current boundaries. 

 Now, many people expect the outcome of a redistricting process 

to just simply institutionalize incumbency, and then secondarily be a 

partisan battle for advantage rather than to produce truly competitive 
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districts -- competitive in terms of parties, competitive in terms of 

demographics and access to office, competitive in terms of ideas. 

 Now, the kind of process that we’re talking about seems to 

have-- 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  (raps gavel)  Excuse me one 

second. 

 MR. BELLAN-BOYER:  Sure. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  If we could keep the noise down 

so that every witness has an opportunity to testify, that would be 

appreciated. 

 MR. BELLAN-BOYER:  Thank you, Chairman. 

 Now, we’ve seen a lot of very static districts.  Again and again 

we see all the Democratic and Republican money in the State flowing into 

just one or two or three districts in each election.  A more fair district map 

-- while I doubt that this is a legal standard, you’ll know that you’ve done 

your work well if you see more close elections coming out of this process;  

you’ll see more turnover -- a challenge for each of you personally, but 

healthier for our representative democracy. 

 I’d like to make a few suggestions for your work.  First of all, 

our districts need to reflect the reality of our state.  Packing seeks to make 

districts blacker or whiter, more poor or more prosperous, more Latino or 

less Latino than their region.  A majority of New Jersey’s African-Americans, 

Latinos, Asians, Arabs -- just about every other ethnic group you can think 

of -- now live in suburbs.  Chairman Webber, I think earlier you were trying 

to help Assemblywoman Quijano enunciate the Goldilocks standard: not 
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too hot, not too cold, but just right.  Now your job is to find a balance 

between packing and cracking without, as Goldilocks did, eating somebody 

else’s lunch.  Now you know you’ll succeed if the new districts do not wind 

up dramatically less diverse than the regions in which they’re situated. 

 Second, it’s been alluded to before, and I’ll just mention it very 

briefly:  Your map must be based on the census, not on voter registration or 

turnout.  The Vice Chair asked earlier where this idea is coming from; it’s 

most recently been floated in a column by Jack Collins, the former Speaker 

of the Assembly, in the Asbury Park Press.  Now, this kind of notion, that 

turnout or registration should have any kind of weight in districting, is just 

a nonstarter in terms of constitutionality and fairness.  It disenfranchises 

citizens who choose, election by election, when to register and when to 

exercise their franchise. 

 Third, I’d like to commend you on scheduling this hearing at a 

time and place which is widely accessible.  Chairman Webber and 

Chairman Wisniewski, will you commit to scheduling more public hearings 

once your 11th member is appointed?  And will you also commit to giving 

the public speedy access to all your maps? 

 Any further comments I’ll just send in through your website.  

Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 

 Any questions? (no response) 

 Thank you. 

 Jayson Burg, followed by-- 
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 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Mr. Burg is not 

here. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Mr. Burg? 

 Anna Rivera. (no response) 

 10-4 Evans, followed by Myrna Pérez, followed by Barbara 

James. 

1 0 - 4   E V A N S:  Praise the Lord, everybody; 10-4 Evans has come to 

the table. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE:  Amen. 

 MS. EVANS:  Good evening to everybody. 

 My name is 10-4 Evans.  Good evening to the (indiscernible) 

Sheila Oliver, and to the Assemblymen, and to everyone on the table. 

 I’m calling to you, Jay Webber -- you did not do right at all.  

We are trying to get the people together, and you were dividing us.  You 

put everybody in front of me, before I even--  I was here before any of them.  

That’s not the point.  Whoever comes and signs in, they are supposed to be 

able to talk -- not for you to go and do something. 

 Now, I’m here for the sense of talking about the districts.  

Number one:  Why are we having this problem, and what’s the reason why 

we’re doing the map?  The map is supposed to be done every 10 years for 

the Census.  But the most important thing, what we hear the fussing about 

and wonder what is going on, number one: you want to move Codey from 

District 27.  Also, Steve Adubato and George Norcross want to control the 

Senate, the State of New Jersey.  But they won’t be (indiscernible) while 

I’m here.  We’re going to do it right, we’re going to do it fair like it’s 
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supposed to be done.  Not because they tell you that’s what they want.  

They want to move--  After he leaves, you’re going to do the new map and 

still put District 27--  But you and everyone, the way you played your hand 

in that, you let me know that you were prejudiced.  And I don’t have to call 

your name out, but I did call it out because I’m a woman who stands on my 

word. 

 We are here to get the district right and put on the map, and 

let the people know where you’re going and where you’re leading.  But you 

played a dirty (indiscernible).  I don’t have much to say.  John Wisniewski 

was a very civil man.  He had the Chair, he did an excellent job in Essex 

County.   You called me to be the last one on this table here.  And I’m 

going to tell you now:  How are you going to let the people know to be 

together on this district when you are not together sent to the table. 

 Have a blessed evening. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Ms. Evans is not the last speaker. 

 MS. EVANS:  (indiscernible). 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  We have several more.  Ms. 

Myrna Pérez, followed by Barbara James, followed by Alexis Karteron. 

M Y R N A   P É R E Z,   ESQ:  Alexis has left. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Followed by Virginia Miller. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  She’s not here, 

Mr. Chairman. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Followed by Lorenzo Richardson. 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  He is here. 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay, so we have Myrna Pérez--  

Is Barbara James here? 

 UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF AUDIENCE:  Yes, she is. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Okay, then Lorenzo Richardson. 

Good, okay.   

 And I’ve said so many names, I’ve now lost track.  Myrna 

Pérez. 

 MS. PÉREZ:  Myrna Pérez. (indicating pronunciation) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Myrna Pérez.  Thank you very 

much. 

 MS. PÉREZ:  Good evening.  My name is Myrna Pérez, and 

I’m a lawyer at the Brennan Center for Justice, NYU School of Law.  I’m 

also a resident of Jersey City. 

 I have to say how incredibly impressed I am with all of your 

stamina and the stamina of everybody in the room -- I’m exhausted.  It’s 

been a long day. 

 The Brennan Center is a nonpartisan public policy and legal 

advocacy organization, and we are named after New Jersey’s native son, 

Justice William Brennan.  We have extensively studied redistricting 

practices nationwide.  My testimony today will focus on three areas: 

openness and transparency; the importance of recognizing and preserving 

communities of interest; and the importance of assuring that racial and 

language minorities have an equal opportunity to elect their candidates of 

choice.  
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 I am very mindful of the time I have allotted, and have 

prepared oral remarks accordingly.  But my written testimony is more 

detailed, and even more detailed is the Brennan Center’s Citizens Guide to 

Redistricting, which I have given all of you copies. 

 First, in order to draw districts that represent real communities, 

the Commission must hear from those communities, consider their input as 

to how they identify, how they define the values they share, and how they 

bind together to share a voice and be represented in the government. 

 To encourage transparency and increase public engagement, we 

recommend that this Commission conduct at least four more public 

hearings.  Now, two of those should occur after a map plan has been 

developed and before it’s been certified so you can get public input on those 

plans.  You should also provide adequate notice.  A number of people have 

mentioned that they want more notice of the meetings, but I think it would 

be helpful if you also gave notice as to the schedule for plan development.  

Let people know when the plan is going to be developed, and make sure you 

have provided public access to that plan -- again, before it’s certified. 

 Number three:  Please make the data available.  All of the 

public data that you use in the development should be made public, in 

order for the public to utilize that data in order to analyze the plans that 

you guys are going to be proposing. 

 Fourth:  Consider public maps and comments.  I was very 

encouraged to hear how excited many of you were at actually being able to 

get a map.  I hope that you make those maps public so that the rest of the 
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public can look at those maps and see what the other members of our 

community are thinking. 

 And finally -- and this is critically important to getting 

community buy-in -- you have to explain your reasoning.  When you have a 

map -- because the community understands that redistricting is about trade-

off, and it is impossible to optimize every single desirable criteria -- if you 

actually explain why a map looks this way, why some decision was made in 

this part of the town, I think the public will better understand why it 

happened and be less prone to assume that it was partisan shenanigans. 

 On to communities of interest.  To ensure that all New 

Jerseyans are fairly represented in our government, the Commission must 

recognize, preserve, and be accountable to real communities, or 

communities of interest.  People have been talking a lot about communities 

of interest.  You guys have a job to do; you have to identify them.  Now, 

communities of interest should not be viewed as special interests.  

Preserving communities of interest is actually a very long-recognized 

transitional redistricting criteria.  It has been recognized by the Supreme 

Court even before there was a Voting Rights Act, and it should not be 

deemed as a special interest or way to put people apart.  Many of the 

traditional redistricting criteria -- like New Jersey’s rules regarding 

municipal wholeness, or standards of compactness -- have, at their basis, the 

principle of communities of interest.   

 So how do you identify communities of interest?  We at the 

Brennan Center like to give legislators tools.  The first thing you can do is 

call upon the public.  Community members are best equipped to educate 
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and inform the Commission through testimony and comments about their 

communities of interest.  And I hope my neighbors will listen up, because I 

have homework for all of you.  Specifically, the public can and should 

provide qualitative information about their communities by describing 

physical boundaries, socioeconomic status commonalities, commonalities in 

political or representative interests, the existence of community-wide social 

networks, and common risks.  And I’ll explain all of those. 

 Physical boundaries of community interest include things like 

specific streets, or borders, or shopping centers, or other cultural centers, 

parks, or specific landmarks. 

 I’ve actually got it timed; I’ve got another 40 seconds.  

(laughter) (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Take 50 seconds. 

 MS. PÉREZ:  It’s not the first time I’ve done this. 

 Commonalities in socioeconomic status include things like the 

use of media, and production, and consumption habits.  Commonalities in 

political or representative interests include things like concerns about crime, 

health conditions, the environment, or schools.  Social-wide networks 

include things like religious activities, parades, festivals, public concerts.  

Common risks include things like environmental dangers or public concerns 

of the communities. 

 You also need to enlist the data experts.  We have a lot of really 

great demographers, historians, and other sorts of political scientists in this 

country.  They need to look at the census and tell you common 

socioeconomic status that can be used to establish communities of interest. 
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 You also need to work with your community organizations who 

can also help you identify communities of interest. 

 And finally, I want to end with the Voting Rights Act.  There’s 

been much that’s been said, so I’m going to be brief.  When the 

Commission draws the lines, they must ensure that the redistricting plan 

does not dilute minority voting strength or the plan will be in violation of 

the Voting Rights Act.  But there are legal principles for determining when 

vote dilution has occurred.  It’s not just something that occurs because 

someone uses the words vote dilution; there’s a standard for it.  It’s set in a 

case called Thornburg vs. Gingles, which also was written by Justice Brennan.  

The 2009 Supreme Court decision in Bartlett clarified when states are 

required to create majority-minority districts in order to avoid vote dilution, 

but there’s nothing stopping a state from deciding that it wants to create a 

majority-minority district provided -- and this is an important provision -- it 

does not allow race to unjustifiably predominate the redistricting process. 

 We encourage you to look at all of your legal options to make 

sure that redistricting is done fairly and that all of our communities are 

represented.  The Brennan Center stands ready to serve to help you, should 

you want that assistance. 

 Redistricting should not be reduced to lines on a map, or 

boundaries of census blocks.  It’s about people, it’s about communities, and 

the redistricting process needs to reflect as much. 

 Thank you.  (applause) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you. 
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 Barbara James, followed by Lorenzo Richardson, followed by 

Cid Wilson.  Is Cid Wilson still here?  

B A R B A R A   J A M E S:  Good evening.  My name is Barbara James, 

and I think I just heard from someone who should be your 11th member.  

(laughter) (applause)  

 I’m from Plainfield, and that is the Queen City with a female 

Mayor who is very touchy-feely.  Her constituents know that she touches 

their issues, she touches their hearts; they’re very responsive to her.  She’s a 

possible member of this Commission, by the way.   

 There have been people who complain that the Commission is 

too heavily politically weighted, so these are two people who you might 

think about. 

 Why am I here?  Everybody has certainly said everything that 

needs to be said that I could possibly think of.  This is the third hearing 

that I’ve attend; this is the first time I’ve spoken.  I was in Camden, I was in 

Newark, and now I’m here.  The issues that I heard covered have to do with 

packing, unpacking, bleaching, cracking, diluting, transparency, contiguous 

lines, gerrymandering, political composition of the Commission, recycling of 

census data, that the data is questionable.  Certainly we feel that way in 

Plainfield, because everybody knows we have more than 50,000 people in 

Plainfield.  We’ve heard testimony from interest groups versus individuals.  

We’ve heard complaints of hearing locations and numbers, notification.  

We’ve heard of encouraging public input, the information on the website -- 

one up for you -- Commission members using the hearing for their political 
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points.  We have heard of all of these, so everything has been covered that I 

could possibly talk about, so why am I sitting here? 

 I’m sitting here because when we were in Newark something 

happened that really caught my attention.  And I’m sorry that the one 

member of the Commission left, because he should hear this.  There was a 

speaker who was giving testimony, and he went through all the positions 

that he took and the things that he was concerned about.  And a member 

then said to him -- asked him a question about representation from a 

particular area.  And he didn’t know it.  Asked him about representation, 

does he know of representation from another particular area.  And he said, 

“No, I don’t know it.”  For those of us who were sitting in the audience, this 

is what we were hearing.  We were hearing:  All right, if he doesn’t know 

these two things, he’s not qualified to speak here.  Oh, if he doesn’t know 

these two things, all the things that he said prior to that are questionable 

because he doesn’t know these two things. 

 Unfair.  It’s difficult to come before you and speak, and for a 

person who is not a public speaker, this is very, very nerve-racking.  It takes 

a lot of chutzpah to get up here and really say something.  So just be a little 

kinder in that kind of remark, because although you say that what you want 

is public input -- and I do believe you do -- that kind of thing discourages 

people from coming to this mike and speaking up.  And I think that’s what 

you need to be sensitive to. 

 I am happy to hear that you’re considering further hearings, 

and thank you for the letters that I regularly get from you on the e-mail -- 

that’s great; nice.   
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  You’re welcome. 

 MS. JAMES:  Nothing to do with anything I’ve said before, but 

I just had that opportunity to say that.  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Thank you; I appreciate it. 

 MS. JAMES:  But just be considerate of the people who come 

here -- we’re not professionals.  And I think what you want to hear is from 

other people -- the voters, the residents -- as opposed to those necessarily 

who are elected to positions.  They have the mike, they have the media all 

the time.  But to give us the opportunity to speak to you is really good. 

 Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  (timer rings) Well-timed, too. 

 Any questions?  (no response) 

 Thank you for your interest in the Commission’s work; we 

appreciate you coming so often. 

 Lorenzo Richardson, followed by Cid Wilson, who will be our 

ultimate speaker. 

L O R E N Z O   R I C H A R D S O N:  Good evening, everyone. 

 I guess many folks don’t have that stamina.  I grew up in a 

Baptist church, so I can handle--  (laughter) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  We’re just getting warmed up. 

 MS. CRUZ-PEREZ:  It is Sunday. 

 MR. RICHARDSON:  This is nothing. 

 Good afternoon, everyone.  I just want to take a more 

humanistic look at this process, because for as long as I can remember, 

redistricting always involved money and resources, basically.  It goes down 
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to that census tract level, and the influence that comes with it.  What I’m 

concerned about, though, is what happens with the money when it comes in 

-- because that’s what I believe this really boils down to -- and the decisions 

that are made with those monies. 

 It is not unusual to hear that money has gone back to the State 

or the Federal government because funds that were granted were not 

utilized.  We’re not even spending the money on the intended purposes in 

many cases when money does come in.  And that’s a big problem.  And I 

think that’s a big reason why you don’t see a lot of turnout, and all these 

other things you want to see, from the public.  As lawmakers and 

stakeholders who are responsible for the tax dollars we pay for vital services 

in our communities, can you please ensure that the monies are properly 

dispersed where they are intended?  Because people are hurting in Jersey 

City and elsewhere, in other communities; even in affluent communities 

where you have people who are struggling.  And do not let this process 

result in the continuation of denying New Jersey residents those vital 

services needed to keep our communities from falling apart, because we see 

what’s happening. 

 What a lot of people also don’t understand is that when people 

fall down on welfare or they struggle, they’ll move them -- if they’re in 

Hudson County, to Jersey City; if they’re in Essex County they move them 

to Newark; if they’re in Camden County they go to Camden.  But they 

don’t want to give all the money there to take care of all those issues.  
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 So those are the things you need to look at when it comes to 

redistricting, when it comes to doling out those dollars, because that’s what 

it comes down to -- the dollars. 

 And pay attention again to that census tract, because that’s 

where a lot of things get skewed.  In Jersey City when those rich folks 

moved in downtown, they thought everybody was rich because the median 

income jumped from $30,000 to $50,000, $60,000.  And you still have all 

these poor folks out here who can’t get anything because they think we’re a 

rich district now -- and that’s not the case.  So please take a look at that as 

well.  

 And Jersey City has the population to have our own full 

legislative district based on population, and I think that should also be 

taken into consideration.  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Questions?  (no response) 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you, Mr. Richardson. 

 Cid Wilson. 

C I D   D.   W I L S O N:  Well, I got here in the afternoon, but I have to 

say good evening (laughter) to Chairman Webber; to Chairman Wisniewski; 

to Speaker Oliver; and, of course, our two Senators whose districts represent 

Bergen County, Senator Sarlo and Senator O’Toole; and distinguished 

members of the Commission. 

 There’s an old saying that you always remember your first and 

you remember your last. And since I’m your last person speaking, I hope 

you all remember me. 
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 My name is Cid Wilson.  I am the Vice Chairman of the Board 

of Trustees at Bergen Community College.  We are the largest community 

college in New Jersey with over 33,000 students -- half of which are full-

time, half are part-time.   

 I sat here throughout the whole time listening to every one of 

the testimonies, and I was rather surprised, actually, that we heard about 

Hudson County and Essex County and Middlesex County, but I didn’t hear 

anything about Bergen County.  So I thought that I would give you just 

some brief comments about Bergen County; but I also want to give a 

recommendation.  I understand that you may be looking at doing more 

hearings.  I would certainly like to invite you to do it at Bergen Community 

College.  I know that this was a great location and I know Glen Gabert,   

the President of Hudson Community College, is very happy that you are 

here.  We at Bergen Community College would also be happy for you to 

have it at our location.  In fact, my best suggestion would be to use our new 

Meadowlands Campus, which is right there in Lyndhurst -- Senator Sarlo’s 

District.  It’s right there by Route 3, next to Passaic, very easily accessible.  

And I think that you would also get a very good turnout in that location.  I 

would also recommend--  Of course, we have our campus in Hackensack 

and Paramus.   

 But Bergen County is also--  One of the reasons why it would 

be great for you to come to Bergen County is because we are the largest 

county in New Jersey -- over 900,000 residents live in Bergen County.  

We’re an incredibly diverse county.  We have a large African-American 

population; we have a large Latino population; we have a large Orthodox 
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Jewish population; a very large Muslim population; and Bergen County is 

the first county to have a city or town that is a predominantly Asian-

American city, in Palisades Park.  And Fairview, New Jersey, is now, for the 

first time, a predominantly Latino population. 

 I can tell you that if our students were here at this hearing, they 

would tell you that they want the Legislature to better mirror that of our 

students.  Of course, at Bergen Community College one in two of our 

students are students of color: Latino, African-American, and Asian.  And so 

as you start to think about the lines, we certainly want you to take those 

into consideration. 

 But I also want to thank all of you for--   I know how exhausted 

you were; I was pretty exhausted being the last person waiting to speak.  

But I wanted to at least give that color about Bergen County, since Bergen 

County had not been mentioned -- not even once -- today.  And I’m 

assuming it hasn’t been mentioned a whole lot since you started from the 

south in Camden, moving your way further north; which is why I would 

certainly encourage you to consider coming further north to Bergen County.  

And we would certainly be willing to host you at our South Bergen Campus 

in Lyndhurst, which is right -- very close to Passaic and Essex counties. 

 So with that, thank you very much. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Any questions?   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Cid, we regret to tell you 

that you’re no longer the last speaker.  (laughter) 
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 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  We’re having so much fun, we’re 

going to have another witness -- Ahmed Shedeed has been able to come 

back.  So Mr. Shedeed, you have your five minutes. 

A H M E D   S H E D E E D:  Thank you. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  (timer rings) Oh, I’m sorry, that’s 

the end of your testimony.  (laughter) 

 MR. SHEDEED:  It’s over already.  (laughter) 

 I’m going to try to make it less than five minutes. 

 Thank you very much for allowing me to speak in front of you, 

and also thank you for coming here.  A special thanks to Kim for inviting 

me and asking me to come in. 

 I represent the Egyptian community, the Arab community, and 

the Muslim community of New Jersey.  I think we are undercounted, 

underserved, and underrepresented.  To my calculation, I know that we 

have at least 300,000 Egyptians in the State of New Jersey.  I believe that 

we have at least 30,000 to 40,000 people living in New Jersey here.  And I 

have a lot of testimony today, but I’m telling you:  This is Little Egypt in 

New Jersey.  If you go to the businesses around this area here, and the 

residents, 50 percent of the residents and the businesses in the area here are 

Egyptian.  I’m not exaggerating or saying something that--  But believe me, 

everybody here in the room -- they might (indiscernible) point to that. 

 But we have no seats; we have no services.  I blame myself for 

not being counted in the census.  We worked very hard to be counted, but 

we are undercounted and I would like to have (indiscernible). 
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 Just to say to you, in all due respect to Mayor Healy, I just had 

a meeting with him. When he said that 4 percent of others -- 4 percent of 

others -- he did not count the Indians, the Filipinos, and the extended 

community of--  And our community was really growing very fast, in 

tremendous numbers.  In Bayonne --- and you can ask, I just spoke to the 

Bayonne Mayor -- at least 6,000 people in Bayonne City alone are 

Egyptian. 

 So we need to look again to the map.  We need to be counted.  

Hudson County needs a lot of services.  And my community, I’m going to 

repeat again, is undercounted, underserved, and underrepresented.  And we 

need seats.  We are the new kids on the block and we need coaching.  I’m 

talking now to you as a Commission, but I’m actually directing my talk to 

the Democratic Party and the Republican Party -- to try to give us some 

seats and some coaching.  We have a very well-educated community.  In the 

Arab community in New Jersey we have more educated doctors and 

engineers than any other community.  I’m not saying that to--  But it’s a 

fact.  But we need to be represented again. 

 I thank you very much for having me, and I’m sure that I have 

to even come back. 

 Thank you.   

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Thank you.   

 Any questions?  (no response) 

 Okay.  That will conclude the public input portion of the 

meeting.  The Apportionment Commission does plan on having more public 
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hearings, hopefully before the 11th member is appointed if that’s necessary; 

certainly after the 11th member is appointed if that’s necessary. 

 Please check the website for updates and other avenues of 

public notice. 

 I want to thank again our hosts here at Hudson County 

Community College, everyone who testified, and the staff that has been as 

patient as you could be. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WISNIEWSKI:  Motion to adjourn. 

 ASSEMBLYMAN WEBBER:  Seconded. 

 No opposition? (no response) 

 We are adjourned. 

  

(MEETING CONCLUDED)
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Submitted by Myrna Pérez, Esq., representing Democracy Program, Brennan Center 
for Justice, New York University School of Law:  
Justin Levitt,  A Citizen’s Guide to Redistricting,  2010 Edition, Brennan Center for 
Justice, New York University School of Law @ 2010, www.brennancenter.org. 
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